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Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Thursday, 26 July 2012 8:.08 AM
To: Ainslie Barran

Subject: FW: Disability reform

Hi Ainslie

Can you please start to have a look at this? Regards Craig
Craig' Evans AM

Deputy Director-General

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

+617 34062140

www.premiers.gld.gov.au

----- Original Message-----

From: Jon Grayson

Sent: Thursday, 26 July 2012 8.06 AM
To: Tina Davey; Craig Evans

Subject: Disability reform

Craig, Tina

Whilst Qld is not in a position to participate In NDIS at this stage {(and the Commonwealth has shown no sign of wanting to engage
in any case), | think there would be an appetite to reform our services within existing resources, and consistent with ultimately
participating in NDIS,

| expect that reforms would include greater choice, individual controt, and private sector delivery.

Could you put fogether a PBN which canvasses the-siate medeis/{particularly WA) and proposes we move in this direction with
Margaret, :

Happy to discuss further.
Thx
JDG

Sent from my iPad
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Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Thursday, 26 July 2012 8:07 AM
To: Jon Grayson; Tina Davey
Subject: RE: Disability reform

Will do

Craig Evans AM

Deputy Director-General

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
+61 7 34062140

www.premiers.qgld.gov.au

----- QOriginal Message-----

From: Jon Grayson

Sent: Thursday, 26 July 2012 8.06 AM

To: Tina Davey; Craig Evans

Subject; Disability reform

Craig, Tina

Whilst Qld is not in a position to participate In NDIS at this stage (and the Commghwealth has shown no sign of wanting to engage
in any case), | think there would be an appetite to reform ourservices within existing resources, and consistent with ultimately
participating in NDIS.

| expect that reforms would include greater choice, individual coritrol, and private sector delivery.

Could you put together a PBN which canvasses the state. models {particularly WA) and proposes we move in this direction with
Margaret.

Happy to discuss fuither.
Thx
JDG

Sent from my iPad

1

RTI Document No.2




Thisdocument has been released under the RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 (Qld)

Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 8:38 AM

To: David Hourigan; Amanda Pafumi; Michael Tennant; Adrian Jeffreys; Tina Davey; Ainslie
: Barron; Christine Castley; Anthony Crack

Subject: FW: Governance update

For info

Craig Evans AM
Deputy Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

+61 7 34062140

WWW.premie rs.qu £0v.au

From: Patrick Vidgen

Sent: Wednesday, 25 July 2012 8:36 AM
To: @Governance Division {DPC)

Cc: Jon Grayson; Craig Evans; Sharon Bailey
Subject: Governance update

Dear Colleagues

On 2 July 2012, the Director-General, through his regular communiqué; discussed the implications of the
Commission of Audit’s Interim Report. He reminded DPC of the Préniier’s repeated message - the only way to
protect our future is by finding savings and new, cost-effectiveways of delivering services to Queenslanders. We
were further reminded that it is a case of all agenries ondeck to'rectify the situation.

I can confirm that the 2012/13 DPC budget remains.undep/consideration. Additionally, once a final position has
been reached, the budget outcome, similarforall agencies, is only likely to become public at the time of the State
Budget on 11 September 2012. Any impacts on BPCand its staff will be communicated at that time.

However, this does not prevent DPC from exploring alternate service delivery options in some areas now. | can
confirm that Ministerial Serviceshas been requested to develop an options paper on the services its provides,
namely human resource, finange, information technology and facilities. The options will canvass interjurisdictional
models and analyse centraliséd and decentralised service delivery. The main focus of the exercise is to confirm
whether the current mode{ remains the best approach.

Similarly, late last weelcadecision was’reached to change the delivery model for internal audit and risk services.
DPC will follow the tfend in other jurisdictions and move from a completely in-house internal audit function to one
which retains somednternal capacity but also utilises the expertise of external providers. This decision is not based
on cost cutting but rathér’adopting an accepted industry model which will provide better audit outcomes for DPC.

Over time, | anticipate that other areas of DPC will also be examining their service delivery model. Self review is
important to ensure that hest practice approaches are always front of mind, especially with the client in focus. If
you have any concerns in relation to current arrangements | encourage you to talk with your director.

Regards

Pat

Pat Vidgen
1
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Deputy Director-General | Governance | Department of the Pramier and Cabinet
Phone: 07 3224 6061 | Mobile:|s49 - CTPI
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Barbara Tollenaere

From: Patrick Vidgen

Sent: Tuesday, 24 July 2012 5:37 PM
To: Jon Grayson; Sharon Bailey
Subject: : Draft email re MSB and audit
importance: High

Sensitivity: Confidential

Jon

Please see draft below. | can either send this from me to governance division (cc Craig) or it/ tan be reshaped from
you to all DPC. :

Please let me know your preference (and any changes).

Pat

Pat Vidgen
Deputy Director-General | Govg artment of the Premier and Cabinet
Phone; 07 3224 6061 | Mobile)s49 - CTPI

Dear Colleagues

On 2 July 2012, the Director-General, through his regular communigué, discussed the implications of the
Commission of Audit’s Interim Report. He also reminded DPC of the Prémier’s repeated message - the only way to
protect our future is by finding savings and new, costéeffective ways of delivering services to Queenslanders. We
were further reminded that it is a case of all agencies on-deck to rectify the situation.

I can confirm that the 2012/13 DPC budget remains under consideration. Additionally, once a final position has
been reached, the budget outcome, like for all agencies, isonly likely to become public at the time of the State
Budget on 11 September 2012, Any impaeis on DPCand/its staff will be communicated at that time.

However, this does not prevent DPC from expioring aliernate service delivery options in some areas now. fcan
confirm that Ministerial Services has been réquested to develop an options paper on the services its provides,
namely human resource, finance, information.technology and facilities. The options will canvass interjurisdictional
models and analyse centralised@nd decentralised service delivery. The main focus of the exercise is to confirm
whether the current model rémains-the best approach.

Similarly, late last week & decision was reached to change the delivery model for internal audit and risk services.
DPC will follow the trend in otherjurisdictions and move from a completely in-house internal audit function to one
which retains some internal capacity but also utilises the expertise of external providers. This decision is not based
on cost cutting but rather/adopting an accepted industry model which will provide better audit outcomes for DPC.

Over time, | anticipatethat other areas of DPC will also be examining their service delivery model. Self review is
important to ensure that best practice approaches are always front of mind, especially with the client in focus. If

you have any concerns in relation to current arrangements | encourage you to talk with your managers.

Pat Vidgen
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Barbara Tollenaere

From: Lara McKay

Sent: Wednesday, 11 July 2012 6:09 PM

To: Jon Grayson

Cc: Patrick Vidgen; Sharon Bailey

Subject: Central media monitoring function

Attachments: Attachment - Media Monitors - June 2012 - WoG Contract with Sentia Media (formerly

Media Monitors).pdf

HilJon
Re: centralised office within DPC to rationalise media monitoring services

Please find attached the original request from Kate Winter regarding a proposal to have a-centralised media
monitoring unit within DPC.

We have broadly assessed the proposal and agree that there are benefits of a.central portal through reduction of-
duplication and copyright fees. We are trying to get a handle on current budgets that-€xist across departments but
further investigation is needed to gather this data. There is a desire tg implement this team very quickly so | wanted
to get your advice before | respond to Kate’s email below.

The Premier’s Office has proposed a staged process towards a centralised moadel whereby a team within this
department will operate and manage a centralised media mgnitoring/serviee! It is not clear where this unit would sit
but Kate has identified that it should be as ‘independent’ as possiblé, and therefore her preference is that it would
sit in Office of the Director-General. Obviously, we can explore otheroptions if needed. As the contract is a whole-
of-government arrangement, the management of this contract sits within the Queensland Government Chief
Procurement Office (QGCPO).

Stage 1 of the proposal includes managing depaftinentat accounts through a single portal. Currently, there are 29
separate portals within departments, each paying a monthly’retainer. To manage the central portal, it is proposed
that an office be set up within the Department of.thé Premjér and Cabinet. This proposal includes a team of seven
staff, including a director. The current team within the Premier’s Office is two staff and one director who would
transition to DPC. We have been asked to identify four staff from across government who could transition in to this
new team. We have not been able to identjfy any dedicated staff members within departments whose sole job is
media monitoring. It appears to be approximately 0.2 FTE position in large departments like Health, Communities,
Education and Transport and Main Roads but these agencies are all actively reducing numbers of communications
staff across the board)CTP!

CTPI

I
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CTPI

Finally there is also some conversation to be had about the role of DPC in this communications space and if we
should be providing more ‘whole of government’ functions or if the communication, marketing and event services
we provide are corporate in nature and exist to service the Premier’s Office and DPC, rather than as a whole of
government lead. That is pertinent, as there are other areas where we could'gainmore control over advertising and
marketing functions which would again create efficiencies, but also increase FTE in DPC at a time when we are
targeting a reduction.

Obviously this is a complex issue and | apologise for the long email, We areAvorking through the issues but | think it
will take a bit longer for these to be clarified. 'm not sure of the xrgency ta move the existing staff across from the
PO, Without growing the team, and providing the same function, this could be a simple move but in order to move
to the one portal and increased team we just need a bit more.time,1'd be’happy to get together to discuss but
would appreciate your advice on how to respond to Kate’s emaiiin thefirst instance.

Kind regards

Lara

From: Lara McKay

Sent: Tuesday, 10 July 2012 1:25 PM
To: Wendy Bell

Subject: Fwd: Media monitors

From: Kate Winter <Kate.Winter@ministerial.gld.gov.au>
Date: 10 July 2012 1:17:03 PM AEST

To: Vara McKay <Lara.McKay@premiers.gld.gov.au>
Subjecty Miediarnonitors

Hi Lara,

Hope you are having a good day!

Just wanted to touch base on the media monitors proposal. Could you possibly
provide interim advice on whether you think this will proceed and estimated

timeframe for the 3 media monitoring staff to transition to the dept?

Kind regards,

2
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Kata Winter
Deputy Chief of Staif

Cffice of the Premier

Level 15 Executive Building, 100 George Street, Brisbane
Telephone +61 7 3224 7335

Facsimile +61 73221 3631

Mohile s49 - CTPI

Email kate.winter@ministerial.gld.gov.au

This email, together with any attachments, is intendgd for the
named recipient(s) only; and may contain privileged/and
confidential information. If received in error, yol/are/ #dsked
to inform the sender as quickly as possible and delete Lhis
email and any copies of this from your computer -system
network. :

If not an intended recipient of this email, you muasSt not copy,
distribute or take any action(s}) that relies on it; apy form
of disclosure, modification, distribution _and /or publication
of this email is also prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views
of the sender and not the views of Lle Queensland Government.

Please consider the environment kefore printing this email.
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Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2012 6:23 PM
To: Tina Davey

Subject: RE: QCSSI| Funding

Thanls Tina

Craig Evans A
Deputy Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

+617 34062140

www.premiers.gld.gov.au

From: Tina Davey

Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2012 12:36 PM
To: Craig Evans

Subject: QCSSI Funding

Craig

Contrary to my previous advice, there was a specific budget allocation of $5M for QCSS! — funds were transferred
from the old DEED{ to DPC,

They sit in a cost centre called the Smart Futures Fund ~as such, there will be a direct saving of $3.4M to DPC when
the agreement ceases.

Regards
Tina

Tina Davey

Executive Director

Social and Health Polficy Unit

Department of the Premier and Cahinet

Tel: (07)322 78367; Ext: 78367 Moh{%49 ~CTF!
Email: tina.davey@premiers.gig.gov.au
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Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2012 5:50 PM
To: Patrick Vidgen

Cc: Jon Grayson

Subject: FW. QCSSI Funding

Hi Pat

Can we confirm the location of these funds? We may not be in a position to hand back before 30 June {as the
agreement with the Unis may not be finalised). Regards Craig

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

Contrary to my previous advice, there was a specific budget allocatign of $5M for QCSSI - funds were transferred
from the old DEEDI to DPC. ‘
They sit in a cost centre called the Smart Futures Fund/~as such; there will be a direct saving of $3.4M to DPC when
the agreement ceases.

Regards
Tina

Tina Davey

Executive Director

Social and Health Policy Unit

Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Tel: (07)322 78367; Ext: 78367 Moh{>*® - CTP!
Email: tina.davey@premiers.gld.gov.au
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Ashfeigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Saturday, 23 June 2012 12:45 PM
To: Patrick Vidgen

Subject: Re: Saving Measures

Thanks Pat

I am still concerned about offering up the five fte in policy on the basis that it will significantly curtail Amanda's
ability to manage an huge program. What [ forgot to raise yesterday was the issue of the next wave of temporary
contracts that fall due 31 dec. | recall that there were a number of these. Is it possible/f@r Debbie to ascertain how
many when and where? Thanks for the work to date. Regards Craig

Sent from my iPad

On 22/06/2012, at 5:32 PM, "Patrick Vidgen" <Patrick.Vidgen@premiers.qld.gov.aus wirote:

Craig

Docs attached.

Thank you for your help with all this, it s much appreciated:
Have a good weekend and we'll go again next week!

Pat

Pat Vidgen

Deputy Director-General i Governance | Department of the Prenierand Cabinet
Phone: 07 3224 6061 | Mobile]s49 - CTPI

From: Annette Sargent

Sent: Friday, 22 June 2012 5:25 PM

To: Patrick Vidgen

Subject: FW: Saving Measures

Sorry Pat — Here they are — doly6u wahi-hard-copies

Annette

From: Phillip Fogarty

Sent: Friday, 22 June-2012 5:14°”M

To: Annette Sargent

Subject: Saving Measures

Hi Pat,

Annette has reqiested | forward these amended documents to you on her behalf.

If you have any questions in regard to the content or layout, please don’t hesitate to call me.

Regards

Phil

Phillip Fogarty
A/Director, Strategic Management Accounting

1
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Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Phone: (07) 3224 7717
Fax: (07) 3224 6915

<Attachment 1 - Savings matrix. DOCX>
<Attachment 2 - Organisational Structure - FTE and Cost per FTE.DOCX>
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Ash[eigh Edwards ;

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Woednesday, 6 June 2012 3:32 PM

To: Jon Grayson

Subject: FW: Business Case

Attachments: System Manager Proposed Structure.jpg; System Manager Bus Case, Trans Plan.docx

Just received — Tony will give you a call. Regards Craig

Craig Evans AM
Deputy Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cahinet

+617 34062140

www.premiers.ald.gov.au

From:; Dan Harradine [maitto:Dan.Harradine@health.qld.qgovial]
Sent: Wednesday, 6 June 2012 3:25 PM

To: Craig Evans

Cc: Tony O'Connell (Health)

Subject; Business Case

Craig, copy attached as discussed. Page 14 of the a’ctdched business case has the organisation design reference (itis
also pulled out as a single attachment for gase of reference).

Dan

Dan Harradine

Executive Director

Office of the Directar-Genefal
Queensland Health

Level 19, Queenstand Health Building
GPO Box 48 BRISBANE QLD) 4001
P: 07 3234 0536 | £:07 32341482 {349 - CTP!

FRFIKFFEAREERRFRAFEEAHEAN R Ik deded deded dode ARSI B Sl R A dok Ik RSk A K AR AT K AR I AT RI R R TR RIHREE

This emall, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived
or lost, if you receive it and you are not the intended recipient(s}, or if it is transmitted/received in error.

Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly prohibited. The information contained in this email,
including any attachment sent with it, may be subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to heaith service matters.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked fo immediately notify the sender by telephone
collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return email. You should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network
and destroy any hard copies produced.
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If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification,
distribution and/or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain malicious software, Queensland Health does not
accept responsibility for the consequences if any person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is
infected with a virus, other malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a consequence of receiving this email.

Unless stated otherwise, this emait represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland Government.

B T T T e et Lo St
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Business Case for Change: Restructuring
Queensland Health’s Corporate Office to
become System Manager from 1 July 2012

Prepared by: Office of the Director-General, Queensliand Health
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In April 2010, the Australian Government announced its intention to undertake significant reform of
the Australian healthcare system. In August 2011, Queensiand, as a member of the Council of
Australian Governments (COAG), signed the National Health Reform Agreement (NHRA}, committing
to major changes in the way that health services in Australia are funded and governed. These
changes take effect from 1 July 2012 and include:

e moving to a purchaser-provider model, with health service delivery to be purchased from
legally independent Hospital Networks (to be known as Hospital and Health Services [HHSs]
in Queensland)

¢ introducing national funding models and a national efficient price for services, with the majority
of services to be funded on an activity unit basis into the future’

o defining a refocused role for state governments in managing the health system /including:

— the use of purchasing arrangements and other levers to/drive access.and clinical
service improvements within and across the HHSs

— aresponsibility to intervene to remediate poor performance, either at the state’s
initiative or in response to prompting by the Natienal Health Peiformance Authority
(NHPA)}, which will publicly report on performance of the HiHSs and healthcare
facilities.

The Health and Hospitals Network Act 2011 (HHNA), eriabling the establishment of the new health
- service entities and the System Manager role for the health departmight in Queensland, was passed
by the Queensland Parliament in October 2011.

Under the new arrangements, the role of Queensiand Health’s ¢urrent corporate office will change.
Corporate office will transition to the System Manager and will purchase services from the proposed
HHS under service level agreements negotiated between the two entities. The System Manager will
not be involved in the day-to-day functioning/of health semvices, and will devolve responsibility for
frontline service delivery to the HHSs unléss there is a/significant economic or similar benefit to
maintaining a state-wide function.

Given the devolution of functions to/the HHSs, the’System Manager will have responsibility for:

e developing system-wide strategy, pelicy and standards

o focusing the direction of activities of the health system in Queensland by interpreting wider
public health objectives, understanding the needs of Queensiand’s health consumers, and
setting system-wide Objectives and targets in line with government policy direction

« planning and forecasting the delivery of health services required by the Queensland
population, guided by policy.and strategy cbjectives

e integrating workforce, infrastructure, health technology and finance needs to ensure aligned
planning across the HHSs, which will deliver services under a contractual, service level
agreement-arrangement

e acting ag’'the purchaser and contract manager on behalf of the state managing the
relationship with-the national funding body and Independent Hospital Pricing Authority (IHPA)

s managing.enterprise bargaining arrangements at a state-wide level, while devolving other
day-to-day decisions in relation to human resource management to the HHSs based on their
performance ‘

¢ monitoring the system’s attainment of targets and identifying activities and processes which
can assist HHSs to improve performance

e providing guidance and performing regulatory functions relating to public health and private

! This efficient price will incorporate service delivery overheads and be set by the Independent Hospital Pricing -
Authority (IHPA).
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health licensing as required under relevant legislation, as well as health protection programs
and emergency preparedness activities
implementing programs relating to health promotion and disease prevention

¢ statewide crisis co-ordination

e supporting Queensland Government strategy and policy.

Following the March 2012 election, the new government has strengthened Queensland’s commitment
to the devolution of front-line service delivery within the healthcare setting to further empower health
professionals working in HHSs.

The new government has also confirmed its desire for a single, streamiined and more responsive
System Manager role for the current corporate office. It is proposed that the new structure set out in
this business case will functionally commence from 1 July 2012, in support of the néw HHS
arrangements where possible, with devolution to continue over a 12-month/period as the capacity of
HHSs to take on additional functions grows. Transition to the new structure will link with/similar “best-
practice” initiatives underway across Government wherever possible, including the Public Sector
Renewat Program, the Commission of Audit and the Public Service Commission's reviews of Human
Resource issues,

This business case meets Queensland Health’s obligations within section 4.2-6f the Queensiand
Health Framework Award — State 2012 to establish the benefits of the significant organisational
change described therein. During the process of change, there will be consultation with key
stakeholders including staff and unions for the purpose of/ seeking'théir input and to identify any
issues which Queensland Health may need to consider furthepin its\transition to the System Manager
role. :

RTI Document No.24




Thisdocument has been released under the RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 (Qld)

1.0 Background

In April 2010, the Australian Government announced its intention to undertake significant reform of
the Australian healthcare system. In August 2011, Queensland, as a member of the Council of
Australian Governments (COAG]), signed the National Health Reform Agreement (NHRA), committing
to major changes in the way that health services in Australia are funded and governed.

1.1. National Health Reform Agenda

Changes under the National Health Reform, to take effect from 1 July 2042, will facilitate the
devolution of management in the healthcare setting to more localised models of decision-making.
They include:
¢ moving to a purchaser-provider model, with health service delivery to be purchased from
legally independent hospital networks (to be known as Hespital and-Health Services [HHSs] in
Queensland)

» introducing national funding models and a national efficient price for services, with the majority
of services to be funded on an activity unit basis into the future?;

e defining a refocused role for state governments in managing the health system, inciuding:

— the use of purchasing arrangements and otherlevers to drive access and clinical
service improvements within and across the HHSs

— aresponsibility to intervene to remediate poof performance, either at the state’s
initiative or in response to prompting by the/National Health Performance Authority
(NHPA), which will publicly reéport on perfermance of the HHSs and healthcare
facilities.

1.2. Drivers for change in Queensland
Queensland Health's reform agenda has'been-driven by a number of critical factors:

The State Government believes the best-health service outcomes are achieved by devolving
management, responsibility @nd accountability for the delivery of services to local decision-makers.

Similarly, the public’s confidence in-Queensland Health’s current organisational approach needs to be
rebuilt. The current arpangements with corporate office overseeing both the total system and
intervening in the delivery of-health services is not sustainable, and this lack of role separation
(between system manager and health services provider) departs from industry best practice, which
recognises the disparate capabilities in performing true strategic direction-setting and frontline service
delivery roles. :

As the department’s-corporate office function has grown, its structure, frameworks and processes and
have not adequately adapted to increasing responsibilities. This has resulted in a lack of focus in
some areas and outcomes that have increased exposure for the department.

Concerns have been raised about the culture of Queensland Health. Broadly, there is a lack of trust
and confidence with a perceived reluctance of the corporate office to frust in the capability of local

? This efficient price is to incorporate service defivery overheads and is to be set by the Independent Hospital
Pricing Authority (IHPA).
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management, and conversely, a lack of confidence in the ability of corporate office to deliver on its
core responsibilities. It is likely that this culture is a symptom of a range of issues, including lack of
role clarity for corporate office and inefficiencies created by a large centralised bureaucratic corporate
office function.

The current structure and functionality of Queensland Health’s corporate office is not consistent with
the National Health Reform agenda or the State Government’s view that large, centralised
arrangements create inefficiencies and do not provide the flexibility to respond to local interests.

1.3. Instrument for change

In support of the National Health Reform and the Queensland Government’s-drivers for change, in
October 2011, the Queensiand Parliament passed the Health and Hospitals Network' Act 2011
(HHNA) to provide for the creation of:

e new Local Health and Hospital Networks, which will have responsibility arid accountability for
the delivery of front-line healthcare services and

¢ a System Manager function to replace the current Depaitmentof Health.

Following the March 2012 election, the new government strengthened Queensland’s commitment to
the devolution of accountability for front-line service delivery within the healthcare setting to health
professicnals working in proposed Hospital and Health/Serviges (to replace the Local Health and
Hospital Networks). Similarly, the new government has-confirmed,its desire for a single, more
streamlined and more responsive System Manager to repiace the/current corporate office.

2.0 Purpose of the business case

This business case sets out the proposed {rangsition of Queensland Health’s current corporate office
to that of a System Manager.

It outlines the guiding principles supporting National Health Reform and confirms the State’s
commitment to empower the propased HHSsto-deliver front-line services through provision of clear
strategic direction, targeted funding and&fficient administration.

The approach outlined has kieen informed by extensive consultation undertaken in relation to various
System Manager model pigpositions, including internal consultation throughout the first half of 2011,
work by PricewaterhouséCoopers in Becember 2011 and the subsequent Solomon Report prepared
by KPMG in January 2012, Significant work in relation to individual elements of the National Health
Reform program has already-heen completed. The implementation of a new structure and devolution
of functions to HHSs is-the final element to supporting the new operating environment for health
services from 1 Juiy 2012.

No steps to impiement_ the proposed structure have been undertaken, and the business case fulfills
Queensland Health's obligations under section 4.2 of the Queensland Health Framework Award —
State 2012 to consult with staff and unions in relation to proposed significant organisational changes.
Feedback from that process will be incorporated into the final model to be considered by government.

2.1  Scope of the business case

This business case identifies the proposed approach that Queensland Health's corporate office will
take during transition to satisfy its key responsibilities agreed by COAG. it summarises the:
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o role of the System Manager in Queensland’s Health System
¢ delineation of functions, roles and responsibilities within the System Manager

¢ governance arrangements to support decision making for the transition of corporate office to
System Manager

e human resources and industrial relations considerations of the transition process.

This business case does not identify activities, risks or implications of any other'zomponent of the
National Health Reform arrangements, which are being managed through alterinate hrojects by each
of the relevant health service districts transitioning to HHSs.

3.0 Governance

The governance structure supporting the implementation of the National-Health Reform program, as
illustrated below, will continue to be used for the purposes of transitioning the cufrent corporate office
to the new role of System Manager. Significant work in relation te-individuai-eléments of the National
Health Reform program has already been completed, and the impiementatien of a new structure and
devolution of functions to HHSs is a final element to support the new/cperating environment for health
services from 1 July 2012. Therefore, it is appropriate that'the existing governance arrangements
continue with reporting to the Health Reform Program Executive (HRPE) and Queensiand Audit
Office (QAQ), as currently occurs, to continue.

Figure 1: Program Governance Structure
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©Minister for Health * "
-{The Honourable Lawrerice

Director-General
Queenstand Health
{Dr Tony O'Conneif)

Chief Executive
A

: Responsible for coordination of program and project management consistendy,

4.0 Acknowledgements

This business case draws on a range of sources, including:

e a detailed process facilitated by the Queensland Health Reform Transition Office (QHRTO)
across both corporate divisions and heaith service districts during the first half of 2011

e work undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers for Queensland Health in late 2011

e areport prepared by MrShane Solomon (Partner KPMG), who was engaged from mid-December
2011 to mid-January 2012 te provide advice about corporate office reform opportunities.

The final business/Case draws on various elements of work prepared for and by Queensland Health
fo date in preparation fortire-implementation of National Health Reforms from 1 July 2012.
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5.0 Design approach

The organisational design proposed in this business case aligns with:

e a number of key principles designed to align Queensland Health's restruicture with the
National Health Reform agenda

e the role of the System Manager (see section 7)

« people and change management principles.

5.1 Assumptions

o The System Manager will be leaner, more flexible and provide greater sUpport to the 17 HHSs
than the current corporate office model.

o Restructure is targeted for 1 July 2012, however this is subject te-consultation with affected
staff and unions, in accordance with Queensland Health’s\industrial obligations, and any
future directions stemming from complementary processes underway at a whole-of-
government level, such as the Public Sector Rengwal Programt, the Commission of Audit and
the Public Service Commission’s reviews of Haman Reésource issues.

o Empowerment of the HHSs will be a staged process, with devolution of key corporate services
dependent on; ‘
- system capability/readiness
— capability and performance of thie individual'biHSs
— establishment of agreed protocols with referfence to accountability/responsibility of
legacy issues.

e The Director-General will have the support of the HRPE to:
— scope and appoint the’ System Manager's executive management team (EMT)
— redeploy current remaining executives to alternative positions within the System
Manager, as required: '

o HRPE will endorse the proposed business model and three-phased implementation process
described in this plan’

o Access to expert advice/resources to facilitate the implementation is available, subject to
approval of the Director-General.

e Any cost asscciated with the System Manager restructure will be funded by Queensland
Health and savings identified from the process will be realised.

5.2  National Health Reform design principles

The Queensland Government has adopted the following broad principles to guide design of the new
System Manager:

e The System Manager will be focused on strategic, whole-of-system functions with frontline
service delivery to be devolved as far as practicable.

e Accountability for health services will be held at a local level wherever possible.

o Frontline services should be devolved to HHSs unless there are demonstrable advantages of
statewide / regional operation.
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e Service level agreements underpinning service del:very requirements will be developed
between the System Manager and HHSs.

o Staff should not experience a reduction in their terms and conditions.
e A governance system is essential to maintain connections between ali the agencies in the
health system.
5.3 Key principles

The System Manager transition proposes to follow a number of key principles,” to which transition
leaders will refer when assessing competing priorities and options throughaout the/process.

People Principles’

Queensland Health is committed to maximum empieyment-security for permanent
public sector employees. Where changes to empioynient arrangements are necessary,
there will be active pursuit of retraining and deployment opportunities in accordance

-1 with the Queensiand Government’s policy/on emp]oyment security.

- Staff and health unions will be informed, corigulted’and involved throughout the
transition and will play a key role in shaping the-new health system.

Queensiand Health employees will-continue their employment under the same terms,
conditions and entitiements.

Staff will have up-to-date infgrmation on heaith reform.

-Transition leads will facilitate tfransforimation activities at the local level.

| Queensland Health s [aff will be sunported and treated with respect

.ZC‘hange Prmciplee %

People have a shared understanding of the vision for an improved and sustainable
health system

2 ,‘ Adopt an amproach that is consultative, participative and inclusive of all stakeholders.
3 ‘_““ Leaders/act and im plement changes locally that are consistent with the vision.
4 Peonle are su;;oﬁed to manage and implement the change.
5 _' | The aocess of transition will be sufficiently flexible to ensure locatl innovation and

-~ [‘senvice/improvement will continue to be enhanced.
6 | Communication is open and transparent

Transmon PrmCIpIes

1| Devolution of responsibility and accountablilty for the dellvery of health services to

8 Approved by the previous Queensiand Government

* Transition Principles included in Health Reform Queensland Change Strategy November 2011 Version 1.1

10
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HHSs is paramount.

The health and safety of Queenslanders remains our first priority.

Creation of value for patients is a clear focus.

Program governance structure is transparent and outcome focused.

Decision-making is evidence-based.

7| The fina! business model! allocates clear accountabilities and responsibilities.

7 Transition and improvement efforts will be efficient, effective/and prioritised to deliver
- +| maximum benefits to the health care system.

5.4  Organisational design principles

The organisational design approach used to deliver the draft structure proposed/in this business case
is based on five design principles. It considers the importance of-a nationally-consistent system
focused on local delivery, accountability and decision-making ;

The principles reflect the government’s desire to improve the efficiency of health expenditure by
streamlining and reducing the size of central control featUres evident in the current system, and re-
directing funding, functions, accountability and responsibility for heaithcare services to local decision-
makers. This approach will ensure a higher proportion of the‘health/budget is spent on providing
front-line health services. The approach seeks to achieve these/objectives through ensuring greater
clarity of roles, reducing the size of the System Manager relative to the current corporate office,
simplifying structures and better aligning functions and processes.

Principle ‘ Rationale " __/Vimplication for System Manager structure

1. Understanding | Organisationa! design Theorganisational model must enable effective

the greater must consider the role of | rélationships between

context the System Manager in 1. the System Manager and the HHSs
context of both the 2. the System Manager and the national health
state’s healtheare imodel system.
and the broader naticnal It must enable the System Manager to interact
system: effectively with internal and external stakeholders in

order to deliver agreed outcomes (e.g. funding).

2. Role clarity The System Manager Separation of accountabilities will facilitate far greater
has two distinct high level | role clarity and enable efforts to be focused.
functions:

1. System Manager, | Greater ability for the organisation to support and
as specified in empower the HHSs in their delivery of frontline
the HHNA services.
2. Service provider
(where there is Greater transparency in goal setting, including a
benefit in more performance focused approach to the functions
standardisation or | of the System Manager.
economy of .
scale) Efficient decision making processes will lead to

greater trust in the organisation to support the needs
of the health system, leading to an improved culture
over time.

11
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3. Simpilification
wherever possible

A simplified, more
streamlined structure
should reflect the
devolution of relevant
functions as part of the
National Health Reform
agenda. It should
eliminate the duplication
of functions and facilitate
improved role clarity (as
per design principle 2)

A more streamlined structure will result in greater
financial efficiency and the direction of a larger
proportion of Queensland Health’s budget to the
delivery of front-line services.

Elimination of duplicated functions will further clarify
roles within the state’s system and effectively
empower the HHSs to deliver agreed cutcomes. This
‘handing over of the reins’ willimprove the -
relationship between frontline’service providers and
the System Manager, resulting in an improved
culture over time.

4. Functional
alignment to
promote effective
teams

End-to-end processes
grouped under one
executive will facilitate:

e  greater functional
alignment and
improved workflow
efficiencies

e  improved
communication, co-
operation and

~ collaboration
between teams
engaged in related
functions

e reduced compilexity
of management.

This reflects best-practice arrangements in other
jurisdictions and other porfolios.

Functional alignment will allow individual managers
to focus en their area of expertise and deliver
outcomes that will benefit the greater heaith system,
and will ensure the\irnproved delivery of common
goals,

This approach also facilitates a greater focus on
leadership and team dynamics, and will assist in
improving arganisational culture within the System
Manager:

Finally, this approach also facilitates improved
stakeholder engagement strategies because of
cldrity in purpose {(e.g. internal service delivery
functions versus outward-facing customer focus)

5. Alignment of
structure and
processes

|

A simplified structire
facilitates streamlined
processes

This opportunity has allowed for a review of process
design in the context of National and State Health
Reform (structure, accountabilities, outcomes) to
further provide efficiencies within the System
Manager’s functions which will deliver further
devolution to frontline service delivery entities.

The new structure will reduce red-tape and
bureaucratic complexities, facilitate greater
empowerment in the delivery of health services and
significantly reduce corporate costs and overheads.

5.5

Proposed organisational design

In support of the organisational design principles outlined above, it is envisaged that the functional
structure of the System Manager will be divided into two components, made up of the core System
Manager functions (as described at point one below) and entities that will seek to transition to
commercialised business units (as described at point two below):

12
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1. functions supporting the role of the System Manager, such as:

— Strategy and Performance (system strategy and governance, state policy and
ministry functions);

— System Support Services (key strategic corporate functions to support the state in
its delivery of health services (e.g. finance, internal governance, human resources,
risk, assurance and legal services)

— Health Service and Clinical Innovation (clinical functions).

2. commercial and/or customer focused services provided to the HHSs (e.g. supply chain
services, |CT, radiology and pathology support services, transactional/sérvices delivered by
the Queensland Health Shared Service Partner).

This separation of function will enable the Systern Manager to clarify its roles and-acgotntabilities and
focus on clear outcomes, both for the health system as a whole and for/the individual/needs of the
HHSs. [t is also intended to:

= illusirate the devolved nature of responsibility and accountability of heaith services to HHSs
e demonstrate the fundamental change in approach to héalthcare-delivery in Queensland

+ facilitate increased trust in the public health system by adding value through clear leadership
and efficient provision of services, rather than a cagmiplex system of bureaucracy.

13
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5.6 Structure of the System Manager

The proposed structure will provide a streamlined, more efficient System Manager function rather
than those provided under the current corporate office arrangement.

The total number of divisions will be reduced from nine to three, improving the span of control of the
Executive Management Team (EMT). It also reduces the current practice of multiple areas of
Queensland Health corporate office being responsible for similar tasks. While some integration of
‘work must occur across divisions, the reduced number will mean clear resporisibility and greater
accountability where it oceurs. :

Similarly, the Queensland Government's commitment to devolve decisions abeut-heaithcare services
to local boards, as far as practicable, means a reduction in the number af functions in'the System
Manager.

In the proposed organisational structure, the three divisions will each have a broad area of
responsibility. Branch structures within divisions will be determined by EMT-mémbers following their
appointment. The broad movement of current units to new System-Manager, entities is set out in
Appendix 2.

In the proposed new structure, service delivery responsibilities will he devolved to HHSs wherever
practicable, leaving the System Manager accountable for system-wide policy, strategy and
performance management.

it is therefore appropriate to establish a smaller EMT whose responsibility will be predominately to
support the chief executive in system-wide poliey;-strategy, risk and performance management. The
reduced operational functions in the re-shaped System Manzger will be performed by the next level in
the management structure that would have the delegationg’ of authority necessary to resolve any
operational issues arising within the System’'Mapager's span of control—which would be reduced
given the devolution of functions to HHS:!

This smaller EMT will consist of the ehief executive 6fficer, three direct reports (Deputy Directors-
General) and the officers responsibig for the Commercialised Business Units, each of whom will be
individually responsible for health(sesvice improvement, system performance management and
services essential to support the efficient operation of the system.

The three key Deputy Directors-General wiill be responsible for the following divisions:

e Health Service and Clinicaklnnovation
« System Policy and Performance
e System Suppeft Services.

The intent of this/delineation is to provide clarity of focus on the particular knowledge required to
manage the system, acknowiedging the different skills required to deliver health services, policy and
strategy functions and corporate service arrangements.
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6.0 Scope of the change

6.1 Role of the System Manager

Under the proposed arrangements, the System Manager will purchase services from HHSs under
service level agreements negotiated with the various HHSs. It will have responsibility for:

e« developing system-wide strategy, policy and standards :

» focusing the direction of activities of the health system in Queensland by interpreting wider
public health objectives, understanding the needs of Queensland’s health cohsumers, and
setting system-wide objectives and targets in line with government palicy direction

e planning and forecasting the delivery of health services required by,the QOueensland
population, guided by policy and strategy objectives

s integrating workforce, infrastructure, health technology and finance needs|to ensure aligned
planning across the HHSs, which will deliver services under a centractual] service level
agreement arrangement

e acting as the purchaser and centract manager on behaif-of the-state managing the
relationship with the national funding body and Independent Hospital Pricing Authority (IHPA)

e managing enterprise bargaining arrangements at a/state-wide level, while devolving other
day-to-day decisions in relation to human resource‘management to the HHSs

e monitoring the system’s attainment of targets and idertitying-activities and processes which
can assist HHSs to improve performance '

e« providing guidance and perfoerming regulatory funciions pglating to public health and private
health licensing as required under relevant iegislation, as well as health protection programs
and emergency preparedness activities

e« implementing programs relating to heajth premation and disease preventicn

e statewide crisis co-ordination

« supporting Queensland Government strategy and pohcy

In addition, the System Manager will aiso suppori-and empower the HHS through the provision of
services for which: _ ' :
e state-wide economies of scale wi/other demanstrable reasons for a state-wide approach exist
° there are demonstrable advantages, such as cost-savings, in the standardisation of systems.

These services will be provided within an approach that is commercial in nature (that is, in order to
deliver the most efficient/and costeffective arrangements as possible by generating competitive
tensicns) through the gradual separation of these functions into commercialised business units.
Functions to be delivered inthis. manner include:

e managing; deveioping and implementing system-wide information, communication and
technolegy (ICT)-systems (and establishing governance protocols for the implementation of
localised iCT systems)

e« administering-state-wide technology programs such as e-health
e« delivering clinical support services such as pathology services and radiology services

¢ establishing and implementing a supply chain strategy across the state.

It is envisaged that these functions will be gradually separated into commercialised business units to
further build the culture of customer focus and service provision within a commercial environment.
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6.2 System Manager divisions
The three broad areas are described below:
Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division

The Health Service and Clinical Innovation Division will comprise the state-wide clinical support and
coordination functions within the System Manager. This division recognises that the core business of
the health system is delivery of patient care and, while it will not be directly invalved in the delivery of
services, it will assist HHSs with interdependencies between direct health service delivery performed
in the HHSs. It will also provide coordination functions for matters that have’whole-of-system
implications, such as emergency coordination and response, aeromedical and other clibical transport
coordination which may cross HHSs boundaries and public health functions.

An important component of the division will be the management of quantitative and gualitative clinical
information, to inform standards and regulations around clinical safety-and quality to ensure
Queenslanders continue to receive standardised, world-class healthcare irrespéctive of the HHSs in
which they receive healthcare services.

The offices of the Chief Health Officer, Chief Nursing Officer and Chief Dental Officer will fall within
this division. The Chief Health Officer will continue a defined role as the key advisor on medical
matters to the Director-General and Minister, in addition {o being the arganisation’s key point of
contact in responding to crisis situations. There will also be/afocus on clinical process improvement
to help resolve issue with patient access to care across Queensland.

The division will also provide guidance and perform regulatory functions relating to public health and
private health licensing as required under relevanilegistation. It is also proposed that the division be
responsible for state-wide health protection and disease prévention programs, and the coordination of
mental health and alcohol, tobacco and driigs programs.

System Policy and Performance Division

The System Policy and Performance Division-consists of those functions that fulfil the System
Manager role as specified in the HHNA,/The division will provide coordination and strategic functions:
« to ensure performance goals are met
o to determine future purchasing decigions of the System Manager based on state-wide
demand for health servicas
o {0 act as the contract manager in negotiating service level agreements with HHSs (and in -
doing so to ensuré-integrated-planning on a system-wide basis)
« to provide dirgctiontoHHS in relation to government policy.

In situations where tihe performance of an HHSs performance falls below the required standards, the
System Policy and Perfarmance Division will also engage with the HHSs to ensure they are enabled
fo deliver the range of services detailed in their service agreements, and provide guidance when
necessary. -

The division will incorporate strategic policy and strategy functions to develop and maintain system-
wide arrangements for health and other services. The division will inform service planning, which in
turn will be integrated with other state-wide planning requirements such as workforce, infrastructure,
health technology and financial plans, drawing input from experts across the health system.

These arrangements will, logically, be key inputs into service level agreements negotiated between
the System Manager and HHSs, which will be overseen by a health services contracts management
function. The service contracts will inform funding allocations and financial planning activities. Finally,
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the performance improvement function will ensure that appropriate initiatives are taken to address
any part of the system that is unable to meet targets or where remedial action is required.

System Support Services Division

The System Support Services Division will provide functions that are necessary to support both the
System Manager and the broader health system to enable it to function effectively, but are not directly
involved in heaith service delivery. It will comprise what are considered to be key corporate services
functions, including financial services, risk, assurance and legal functions, capital program delivery
and human capital areas.

Within this division, the human capital and capital program delivery functions will e outward looking
and primarily concerned with providing system-wide support, although thenature of that support will
vary. For example, the human capital function will undertake statewide gnterprise bargaining and
industrial relations functions, to provide system wide oversight, coordinatieil,capability building and
reform to address workforce issues. '

Capital program delivery will be responsible for capital program’ and-project management for major
projects {unless otherwise agreed), and support to HHSs in relation t¢ minor projects wherever the
need arises. This function will necessarily have strong links.to the integrated planning function in the
System Policy and Performance Division, since capital wgrks are strongly linked to state-wide service
and capital planning and the purchase of services through negotiations with HHSs.

Links to theé workforce planning function in human capitaiwill.alsg e required to ensure the pipeline
of future staff reflects services to be delivered from planned hew facilities.

The financial services function within System Support. Service's will provide support to the System
Manager, including budgeting and accounting/expertise It will also need to provide high-level
assessment and interaction with Queensland Treasury inthe management of system-wide funding
and financial issues.

Additionally, the risk, assurance and fegal gervices function will provide services as required to the
other functional areas in the System Mlanager, including a significantly increased emphasis on audit,
fraud prevention and risk identification, managernent and mitigation. The HHSs will be separate legal
entities and as such will require independent legal services.

6.3 Commercialised Business Units

It is also proposed that two separate entities—Health Information Technology Services and the
Health Services Support Agency—be established.

The intent of separating these entities from the three divisions of the System Manager is to
distinguish their cléar service delivery objectives in assisting HHSs in the direct delivery of front-line
services. Additionally,/given the nature of the functions grouped within these entities, it is clear that
efficiencies will be able to be gained by pursuing structures that reflect best practice in a corporate
environment, by seeking.to transition each of them to commercialised business units.

A table setting out the movement of current units within Queensland Health into the new
organisational structure is provided at Appendix 2.

Health Information Technology Services

- Health Information Technology Services (HITS) will report directly to the Director-General and provide
ICT support for the HHS and the System Manager as well as administering important technology
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programs such as e-health. This entity will operate on a fee-for-service basis with commercial
pressures being an attempt to ensure prices and volumes for services reflect industry best practice.
Functions within the current Information Division which do not relate specifically to service delivery,
such as parts of Information Management and e-health teams, will move to better align with other key
areas of the System Manager.

Over time, individual HHSs will be able to procure discretionary services from this entity according to
their needs and based on an ICT services catalogue endorsed by the System Manager. It is intended
that ‘tied arrangements’ will be in piace in the initial period, while transition to the new organisational

arrangement occurs.

Health Services Support Agency

The Health Services Support Agency (HSSA) will also repaort to the Director-Generaland will similarly
seek to transition to a commercialised business unit, given the nature of the functions it provides to
HHSs.

The HSSA wilf work closely with HHSs to provide support services directly related to clinical care,
such as pathology services and the provision of clinical consumables,in-instance where economies
of scale and thus cost savings are achieved by undertaking a coordinated, whole-of-system approach
to functions.

It will similarly seek, over time, to allow individual HHSs ta procure/sérvices from it according to the
needs of the HHSs and based on a services catalogue endarsed’by the System Manager. It is also
intended that ‘tied arrangements’ be used in the initial period; while transition to the new
arganisational arrangement occurs. '

The intention of fransitioning both HITS and the HSSA to.¢commercialised business units will deliver
greater efficiencies by introducing a competitive tension in the delivery of their services and the prices
that they charge HHSs. While contestability will be introduced in a phased approach over coming
years, its introduction will provide the opportunity for HHSs to purchase services from alternate
providers and thus generate greater gconomic benefits if possible. Similarly, the two commercialised
business units will need to ensure ¢ost structures are maintained at a competitive level if with are to
continue to function in a contestable-market:

6.4 Mental Health Commission

As noted in the proposed Organisational structure, the Government’'s commitment to further examine
a proposed Mental Health' Commission will also have an impact on those staff who currently work
within the Mental Health' Directorate of Queensland Health. The organisational structure
acknowledges the futtire role-of the Mental Health Commission, which will be the subject of further
specific consultation undertaken by Government.

6.5 Implementation of restructure

It is proposed that the néw structure will functionally commence from 1 July 2012, with additional
reform planned in a phased approach. Implementation of the System Manager changes under
National Health Reform have been detailed in the System Manager Transition Plan, attached as
Appendix 4 |
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7.0 Benefits

The Queensland Government is resolved to return decision-making on frontline health services to
local communities, by devolving management, responsibility and accountability for the delivery of
health services to local communities. .

Queensland Health’s current organisational structure has become confused, with' corporate office
both overseeing the total system and intervening in the delivery of health services. This/lack of role
separation (between system manager and health services provider) departs fromindustry best
practice, which recognises the disparate capabilities in performing trug’ stratégic direction-setting and
frontline service delivery roles. It also disempowers local staff and commUnities who are unable to
influence decisions in relation to local health care arrangements. The devolution’/of functions and the
streamlining of the current corporate office into the new System-Manger entity will provide real
benefits in this regard. Where local communities require swift decisive action in relation to a local
healthcare issue, local decision-makers will be empowered to make svch determinations.

Similarly, as Queensland Health’s current corporate office fungtion has grown its structure,
frameworks and processes have not adequately adapted to thé increasing responsibilities. This has
resulted in a lack of focus in some areas and outcomes thatevidence increased exposure for the
department.

The new structure will remove the perceived and sometimes real silos that exist within the current
corporate office structure by reducing the total/number of gghior executives and broadening the span
of control of the EMT. This will have the beigfit of ensuring greater emphasis on similar areas of
operation within the System Manager entity, witi/increased accountability for those functions and the
better realisation of synergies within the System Manager.

In this regard, the more streamlined’and fiexible System Manager entity will mean reduced corporate
overheads for the public health system and-will see the maximisation of health expenditure at front-
line service delivery areas.

In relation to the broader culture of Queensiand Health, it is widely acknowledged that various events
within the organisation overythe previous five years have impacted on the culture of the organisation
and the perception of the 2ntity itself.~This is despite the significant results that have been achieved
against key national benchrinarks. Broadly, there is a lack of trust and confidence—a perceived
reluctance of the corporate office to trust in the capability of local management, and conversely, a
lack of confidence inthe ability of Corporate office to deliver on its core responsibilities. It is likely that
this culture is a symiptom of a range of issues, including lack of role clarity for corporate office and
inefficiencies created by atarge centralised bureaucratic corporate office function. The revised
structure will over iime, and aligned with internal change management strategies, seek to restore the
organisational culture within the System Manager entity.

7.1 Enhanced setvice delivery to the organisation

The proposed re-structure of Queensland Health's current corporate office to that of a System
Manager will deliver a number of improved efficiencies and deliver greater effectiveness to the
organisation, and therefore the community, through:

s increasing clarity regarding the role of the System Manager, which-in turn empowers the
System Manager to add value to the health system in Queensland
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s organisational structure (of the System Manager), desighed to support its purpose and allow
the members of the EMT to focus on functions relevant to their individual capabilities

e empowering the HHS to deliver agreed health care services and standards of service, without
the interference of a centralised bureaucratic corporate office

e clear focus, increased functional alignment and improved processes within the System
Manager will reduce its financial and other risk (e.g. reputational risk)

e functional alignment will allow individual managers to focus on their area of expertise, create
greater synergies and deliver outcomes that will benefit the health systein

o functionally aligned divisions within the System Manager will facilitate’a pgrformance based
culture through common goals and appropriate leadership

o increased trust in the System Manager to add value, rather thafn-a complex-layer of
bureaucracy '

s performance mechanisms within the health system {e.g. service delivery contracts) will affirm
positive performance and therefore confidence in the HHSs to deliver agreed health care
outcomes

¢ clarity in purpose and organisational structure creates a platfoim for a targeted change
management program, aimed at improving organisational culture

e reciprocal trust and confidence between the HHSs and'the System Manager will facilitate a
cultural change in Queensland Health

e re-branding exercise of the System Manager that incorporates clear communication of
purpose and common goals will build orvimproved internal culture.

7.2 Enhanced service delivery to the community

The proposed structural changes have been-forrnulatéed for the purpose of enhahcing service delivery
to the community by: :

¢ meeting the requirements of National Heaith Reform and therefore securing funding from the
Australian Government as/well ag the State Government

e placing accountability and responsibility for decision making in health service delivery as close
to the front line as possible, thereby reducing bureaucratic and costly delays and optimising
health service outcomes-(as indicated by industry best practice)

e re-branding the System Manager and communicating the department’s purpose and goals
that results in improved public perception of Queensland Health

s separating system manager versus service focused functions to enable clarity of purpose for
teams and facilitate better outcomes for the HHSs. More efficient outcomes for the HHSs
empowers them/to deliver improved health care services

s increasing the/proportion of the state’s healthcare budget that is spent on front-line service
delivery, thereby enabling better health care outcomes for Queensland’s population.
7.3 Improved efficiency and effectiveness
The re-structured corporate office will result in improved direct improvements linked to the
Queensland Government's desire to demonstrate: ‘
e a culture of performance through the implementation of service delivery contracts

e clarity in purpose and structure that allows process improvement to increase efficiencies
throughout the system and result in better health outcomes for the communities
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role of the System Manager that facilitates economies of scale wherever possible, thereby
creating cost and other efficiencies

a streamlined, more flexible System Manager that results in reduced corporate overheads for
the public health system and maximised expenditure in frontline service delivery areas

delegation of financial performance to local boards that creates a more customer focused
environment for the HHSs and results in improved financial performance of the system as a
whole. This will enable the allocation of more funds to the delivery of frontline services.
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8.0 Risk and mitigation

Critical risks to the successful implementation of the System Manager re-structure on 1 July 2012,
together with appropriate mitigation strategies, are summarised below. The mitigation strategies
have been and continue to be adopted in the preparation and subsequent release af this Business
" Case

Rlsk *@M |t|gat|o'h' stratngy _
Appomtment of the new EIVIT may be delayed { Planin place t¢ appoint new EMT in actlng
thereby impacting on finalising divisional capacity to allow commencement of
organisational designs. 4 implementation following consultation feedback.
Delay in communicating new organisational Ensure detailed’comimunications strategy is in
structure to affected employees will deplete place to avoid’dll possible delays and facilitate
morale and contribute to additional staff clear’communication of changes and direct
turnover and subsequent loss of knowledge. impacts on staff/ Maintain channels of
camimtinication for staff through cascade
briefings
Some or all of the HHSs will not have System Manager structure designed to
capability to take on functions being fully incorporate transitional/ongoing service
devolved by the System Manager on 1,/July provision for health service districts requiring
2012. support, with ‘gradual’ devolution of more
complex functions that may need to provide
| ‘support’.
Business continuity will be affgcted ifthe Dedicate appropriate resources to ensure
appropriate health service directives/and completion of task within specified timeframe.
service level agreements are not inpiace by 1
July 2012.
Key business systems.witlnet be ready to Engage early with system owners to identify all
support the restructure, particularly finance potential business continuity issues.
and payroll.
Ensure that appropriate ‘work around’ solutions
are in place to prevent business continuity
impacts.
Key stakeholdapexpectations of the timing for | Business case and transition plan approved by
the devolution-of eurrent ‘corporate’ functions | government and distributed to all key
(eg shared services) will not be aligned with stakeholders as soon as pOSSIble for their
the capacity of systems and capability of HHSs | review.
to allow actual transfer.
Key messages from business case and
transition plan communicated as early as
possible.
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Appendix 1: Glossary of terms

CASS Clinical and Statewide Services

CBU Commercialised Business Units "]

CHI Centre for Healthcare Improvemerit

CHO Chief Health Officer ~) |

CHS Children’s Health Services

ClO Chief Information Officer

CMH | Commissionei’ for Mental Health

COAG Council of/Australian Governments

DDG Deputy Director-Gengral

EMT Executive Manadement Team

FPLS Finance, Procarement and Legal
Sepvices

HHNA . Health’and Hospitals Network Act 2011

HPA Hespital Pricing Authority

HHS “~_[\Hospital and Health Services

HPID D Heaith Planning and Infrastructure

HRPE 7 Health Reform Program Executive

HRS N Human Resource Services

HSD Health Service District

HSSA Health Services Support Agency

HTIS Health Information Technology Services

IHPA ' Independent Hospital Pricing Authority

NHPA National Health Performance Authority

NHRA , National Health Reform Agreement
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ODG Office of the Director-General

P&A ' Performance and Accountability

PSR Policy, Strategy and Resourcing

QAO Queensland Audit Office

QHSSP , | Queensland Health Shared Services
Partner
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Appendix 4: System Manager Transition
Plan

~ Prepared by: Office/of the Director-General, Queensland Health
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Introduction

In April 2010, the Australian Government announced its intention to undertake significant reform
of the Australian healthcare system. In August 2011, Queensland, as a member of the Council
of Australian Governments (COAG), signed the National Health Reform Agreement (NHRA),
committing to major changes in the way that health services in Australia are funded and
governed. These changes take effect from 1 July 2012 and include:

e moving to a purchaser-provider model, with health service delivery to be purchased from
legally independent Hospital Networks (to be known as Hospita! and Health Services
[HHSs] in Queensland)

s introducing national funding models and a national efficient price far/services, with the
majority of services to be funded on an activity unit basis into the fture®

e defining a refocused role for state governments in managing the health system,
including:

— the use of purchasing arrangements and other levers io diive access and clinical
service improvements within and across the HHSs

— aresponsibility to intervene to remediate poot performance, either at the state’s
initiative or in response to prompting by the NationalFiealth Performance
Authority (NHPA), which will publicly repert on performance of the HHSs and
healthcare facilities.

The Health and Hospitals Network Act 2011 (HHNA}, enabiing ti¢ establishment of the new
health service entities and the System Manager role forthe heaith department in Queensland,
was passed by the Queensland Parliament in October 2011

Purpose of the System Manager
The purpose of the System Manager is 10:

“Provide strategic focus on system-wide policy,/planning and funding arrangements to
ensure value for money in the deiivery of public health care in Queensland and support
Hospital and Health Services to deliver the highest standard of care to patients.”

The System Manager has responsibility for:

e developing system-wide strategy, policy and standards

« focusing the direction-of activities of the health system in Queensland by interpreting
wider public health objectives, understanding the needs of Queensiand’s health
consumers, and setting system-wide objectives and targets in line with government
policy direction ‘

¢ planning and forecasting the delivery of health services required by the Queensland
population;-guided by policy and strategy objectives

e integrating workforce, infrastructure, health technology and finance needs to ensure
aligriad-plainning across the HHSs, which will deliver services under a contractual,
service levél agreement arrangement

e acting as the purchaser and contract manager on behalf of the state managing the
relationship with the national funding body and Independent Hospital Pricing Authority
(IHPA)

e managing enterprise bargaining arrangements at a state-wide level, while devolving

® This efficient price will incorporate service delivery overheads and be set by the Independent Hospital
Pricing Authority (IHPA).
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other day-to-day decisions in relation to human resource management to the HHSs

¢ monitoring the system’s attainment of targets and identifying activities and processes
which can assist HHSs to improve performance

e providing guidance and performing regulatory functions relating to public health and
private health licensing as required under relevant legislation, as well as health
protection programs and emergency preparedness activities

s implementing programs relating to health promotion and disease prevention

o statewide crisis co-ordination

e supporting Queensland Government strategy and policy.

Figure 1.1 illustrates the new functions within Australia’'s public health system,‘including local,
state and national levels. These changes will be implemented from /i duly 2012:

* Deliverhealth geivicesundet:
‘service agresients N
« Delivertrainirig and research -
initiatives s
. Manage and defiveriodai
improvementinitiatives
*Marage clinical safetyand
quality.”

Mana _,lemenr strustue
ac&us{edon!y where -
-:requuecﬁfﬂrnew _':

Deliver

Medicare
_Locals

MedicareLocal
# ational Ao dy

» Natipnal poligizs and
-framewaorks _
Manage programé&to address -
na“lDP al heaith pnontles

|mprovem entand support
‘»Manage programs o acldress
state-wide health’ prlontles
_  State-wide poilmes and
- frameworks
=Plan. and pu rchas heaith

8

i@iailaﬂa Hea}m
oo~ Fuhding Poct

ﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ“ﬁ:@&ﬁmﬁm H

e Natl on al wnr'cforce planning :

<L New striciure to

8 Lordmate hospltal funding Planane Siiport o haftions
"“Fi'errorrnanceAuth_nr'it'y ln depen dEI‘It pnCll‘I i}
o : - Performan ce monitoring and Momtorsystem performance
reparting
+Set cimlcal standards . Gavem clm;cal safety and
: Clinical staff reglstratton o ahty
Figure 1.1: Australian Public Health System
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Scope

Transition from corporate office to System Manager

In addition to ‘business as usual’ functions, Queensland Health will, by 1 July 2012:

plan for a 1 July 2012 change in role from corporate office to Systerni Manager

commence developing the vision and high level strategic plan for the Systém Manager (in
consultation with the Executive Management Team - EMT)

document leadership and core capability requirements of the SystetmManager
identify and mitigate transition risks to business continuity

oversee the legislative changes required to establish the Gysterh Manager
review key policies and processes to support System Mariager outcomes
liaise and collaborate with the various restructure stakenolders

communicate the status of the restructure pro¢ess, paiticularly any impacts on employees to
staff, unions and other stakeholders

provide timely and accurate information to the Health Reform Program Executive (HRPE)
and government as requested

plan, monitor and control activity to érsure the Systém Manager is operational on 1 July
2012 and those functions that are o/ devolve fror’1 July 2012 are positioned to do so

plan, monitor and control activity beyend 1 July 2012 to accommodate the future devolution
of key corporate functions as HHSs’ readipess allows

liaise and collaborate with/HHSs that will be administered from 1 July 2012,

National Health Reform design principles

The Queensland Government has adoptéd the following broad principles to guide design of the
new System Manager:

The System Manager will be focused on strategic, whole-of-system functions with
frontline seivice defivery to be devolved as far as practicable.

Accountabiiity for health services will be held at a local level wherever possible.

Frontline services should be devolved to HHS unless there are demonstrable
advantages Of statewide / regional operation.

Service levelhagreements undérp]nning service 'delivery requirements will be developed
between the System Manager and HHS.

Staff should not experience a reduction in their terms and conditions.

A governance system is essential to maintain connections between all the agencies in
the health system.
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Assumptions

¢ The System Manager will be streamlined, more flexible and provide greater support to
the 17 HHS than the current corporate office model.

e Restructure is targeted for 1 July 2012, however this is subject to consultation with
affected staff and unions, in accordance with Queensland Health’s industrial obligations,
and any future directions that the Queensiand Government provides.

¢ Empowernmient of HHS will be a staged process, with devolution of key corporate
services dependent on:

— system capability/readiness
— capability of the individual HHS

- establishment of agreed protocols with reference to accountability/responsibility
of legacy issues.

¢ The Director-General will have the support of the HRPE to;
— scope and appoint the System Manager's EMT

— redeploy current remaining executives to alterrative positions within the System
Manager, as required.

¢ HRPE will endorse the proposed bdsiness-medgland three-phased implementation
process described in this plan.

¢ Access to expert advice/resources to‘facilitate the implementation is available, subject to
approval of the Director-General

e Any cost associated with the System Manager restructure will be funded by Queensland
Health.
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Principles

The System Manager transition proposes to follow a number of key principles °, to which
transition leaders will refer when assessing competing priorities and options throughout the
process.

Queensland Health is commltted to maximum employment security foi nermanent publ:c sector
employees. Where changes to employment arrangements are necessary, there will be active pursuit
of retraining and deployment opportunities in accordance with thedQueensland Goyvernment's policy
5| on employment security.

Staff and health unions will be informed, consulted and involéed throughout-the transition and will play
a key role in shaping the new health system.

Queensland Health employees will continue their employment under thé/same terms, conditions and
entittements.

Staff will have up-to-date informaticn on health reform.

Transition leads will facilitate transformation aciivities at\the local level.

CQlueensland Health staff will be supported and treated w1th respect

‘ .hange Prmmples - o

People have a shared understandlng of the visior-for’ an |mproved and sustalnable health system

Adopt an approach that is consultative, participative and inclusive of all stakeholders.

Leaders act and implement changes locally that/are consistent with the vision.

People are supported to manage and implement the change.

: 5 | The process of transition will be sufficiently flexible to ensure local innovation and service
] improvement will contjrive to\be enhanced.

8 | Communication is opén 2 and transparent.

fTransntlon Prlnmples

1 Devolution of responsibilityand accountablllty for the delwery of health services to HHSs is
paramount.

The hegith and safety-of Queenslanders remains our priority.
Creafign of value for patients is a clear focus.

Program governance structure is transparent and outcome focused.
Decisjion-making is evidence-based.

The/final business model allocates clear accountabilities and responsibilities.

: D ot R W N

| Transition and improvement efforts will be efficient, effective and prioritised to deliver maximum
| benefiis to the health care system.

8 Approved by the previous Queensland Government

" Transition Principles included in Health Reform Queensland Change Strategy November 2011 Version
1.1
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Exclusions

This System Manager transition process will not seek to ensure readiness of HHS or to deliver
business improvements outside the scope of National Health Reform. However, any
improvement opportunities identified will be documented, prioritised according to risk and
benefit and recommended for future action.

Dependencies

The transition plan and subsequent implementation is dependent on:

feedback from the staff and union consultation process
government confirmation of proposed outcomes

successful transition of HHS

legistative changes and administrative orders ready for restructure

finance and payroll systems in place to support the business needs of/the HHS and
System Manager.

Critical risks

Internal controls provide reasonable assurance regarding achieving the System Manager’s
objectives. Critical risks to successful implementaticty of the restructure can be mitigated by:

clarification of the business model, with clear accountabilities across the restructured
entities — System Manager and the 17 HHS

broad support for the proposed restructure by kev/industrial relations stakeholders

sufficient due diligence to ensure ali business critical impacts are identified (eg employee
liabilities, system deficiencies, impacts of voluntary separation packages)

stakeholder buy—in on high level visicn and strategic plan for the System Manager
compliance sign-off

business continuity:

— Health Service Directives and service level agreements are in place

— key staff are rétained during a period of low morale

— information/and khowledge is retained and transferred

— key business systems are ready to support the restructure, particularly finance and
payroll

key stakehalder expectations of the timing of devolution of current corporate functions
(eg shafed services, capital maintenance delivery) to the HHS are aligned with the
capacity of systems and capability to allow actual transfer

operating-protocols relating to post-transition issues are established.

Constraints

The restructure will be subject to confirmation that the proposed business model and transition
plan meet the HHS business needs and health outcomes for patients are maintained.
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Implementation

Role of the System Manager

Transformation of the Queensland Health corporate office to System Manager will require a
number of fundamental changes to organisational purpose and functional design.

These changes will support a cultural shift to enable the System Manager to perform its role and
drive improved health outcomes through: '

devolution of responsibility and accountability for health services to A4S

provision of strategic direction for Queenstand’s health system

planning and coordination of statewide health services

implementation of mechanisms to support a culture of accountability and.performance
across the state

e provision of customer-focused key corporate services, that(add valde {either through an
interim transition period ¢r on an ongoing basis).

Structure of the System Manager

. The proposed structure will provide a streamlined, morg gfficient System Manager function
rather than those provided under the current corporate office arrangement.

The total number of divisions will be reduced from nine to three/ improving the span of control of
the Executive Management Team (EMT). It also reduces the Current practice of multiple areas
of Queensland Health corporate office being responsible for-similar tasks. While some
integration of work must oceur across divisiofs, the reducéd number will mean clear

. responsibility and greater accountability where it acours:

Similarly, the Queenstand Government’s/cominitment to devolve decisions about healthcare
services to local boards, as far as practicable/ means a reduction in the number of functions in
the System Manager.

in the proposed organisational stricture/the three divisions will each have a broad area of
responsibility. Branch structures within divisions will be determined by EMT members following
their appointment. The broad movemént of current units to new System Manager entities is set
out in Appendix 2.

In the proposed new striicture, service delivery responsibilities will be devolved to HHSs
wherever practicable/|gaving the System Manager accountable for system-wide policy, strategy
and performance management.

It is therefore appropriate to establish a smaller EMT whose responsibility will be predominately
to support the chiefexecutive in system-wide policy, strategy, risk and performance
management./The reduced operational functions in the re-shaped System Manager will be
performed by-the néxt level in the management structure that would have the delegations of
authority necessary-to resolve any operational issues arising within the System Manager's span
of control—which wouild be reduced given the devolution of functions to HHS.

This smaller EMT will consist of the chief executive officer, three direct reports {Deputy
Directors-General) and the officers responsible for the Commercialised Business Units, each of
whom will be individually responsible for health service improvement, system performance
management and services essential to support the efficient operation of the system.

The three key Deputy Directors-General will be responsible for the following divisions:
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e Health Service and Clinical Innovation
» System Policy and Performance
s System Support Services.

The intent of this delineation is to provide clarity of focus on the particular knowledge required to
manage the system, acknowledging the different skills required to deliver health services, policy
and strategy functions and corporate service arrangements.

A high-level, draft organisational structure for the System Manager is included in the business
case.
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Roadmap for creation of the System Manager

The implementation timeline for establishing the System Manager is illustrated below:

Facilitation

1 July 2012

Systems & culture

30 June 2013

v

Bealth service

Armnnwiarmont

Activities associated with each stage of implementation are:

Mobilisation

o determine System Manager
organisation structure

e determine executive
management and core
capability requirements for the
System Manager

¢ appointment of EMT

« develop name and brand for
System Manager

» establish System Manager
governance arrangements

= identify functions, resourees.and
timeframe for devolution,
focusing on those jitems to be
devolved 1 July 2012

o confirm critical risks/issues

e confirm busiresscontinuity
impacts and mitigation
strategies of heaith reiorin.

e confirm service' Jevel agreement
arrangements.

Customer focus & capability

develop-high level/sirategic
vision/direction-fop/System Manager
ddcumerit

develop high'level purpose, vision and
strategic piilars for System Manager.

Exzcute Styategic Planning and change
mznagement activities fo:

faster cultural change to support
renewed customer focus for System
Manager

progress devolution of longer-term
functions as system capacity is
rectified

increase commerciality of statewide
support functions by progressing to,
and implementing, commercialised
business units )
build performance management
framework for commercial/transitional
service components of System
Manager

continue change management
activities with all key stakeholders
(including employees and HHS)
upgrade key systems

devolve functions that may require
system support/disinvestment.

RTI Document No.86

Devolution &
empowerment

o reach agreement on
operational protocols for
management of legacy
issues as part of
devolution of final
functions.

e devolve all service
delivery functions and
transactional functions
{either to HHS or
commercialised business
units), unless there is an
economic or other case
for statewide
coordination.
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Functions for which the individual HHS will become accountable on 1 July 2012 have been
summarised and are attached at Appendix 3.

Key milestones

COAG has provided guidance on the implementation pathway for states/territories in relation to
structures for central entities. It is recognised that reducing uncertainty to staff is an important
consideration along with adequate consultation with staff and unions. The key milestones for

this process are:

Identify key functions to be retained by System Manager or devolved to HHS April 2012

Draft System Manager organisational structure, based on functions-identified Aprii 2012
Draft Business Case for Change to meet industrial obligations to censult staff April 2012
and unions

Ministerial endorsement of draft organisational structure and Busihness Case for | May 2012

Change
Commence hoth corporate consultation process and direct-¢onsultation with Week of
affected staff 21 May 2012
Specifically consult with directly affected staff and-identify options for: Week of

e movement to HHS/commercialised business,unit environment 21 May 2012

¢« movement to alternative role-within. System Manager

e re-skilling or deployment.
Complete consultation process Week of

4 June 2012

Finalise arrangements for devoiution of functions and final System Manager June 2012
organisational cultuie '
Government endorsement of final System Manager organisational structure June 2012

Announce Exé&cutive agement Team

Mid-June 2012

Confirmation offinal System Manager organisational structure to staff

Mid- June 2012

2012

Finalise System Manager governance arrangements for commencement 1 July Mid-June 2012

System Manager entity commences operation 1 July 2012
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Stakeholders

Key stakeholders

Employees of the’
5System Manager '

expect clarity in reporting lines, that conditions of their employment will
be maintained and that any future impacts on them are identified and
communicated early.

»  require clarity re impact on end-to-end processes, egaccountability,
process re-engineering

¢« need to be positioned to ‘manage / lead’ staff directiy impacted by the
re-structure

» have obligation to consuit re national health reform
« have relationship with members directly impacted by re-structure

« are directly impacted by end business rode! (building accountabitity
and capability for their respective\ HHS, process re-engineering as
reguired)

« act as agents for futdré ‘custemers’of transitional services (eg, clinical
services, supply chain, capital project delivery, ICT, payroll,
transactional finance). Expect censultation re System Manager Service
Support Agreement, and standards of service

= provides platform fer consistency across the System Manager and HHS
transition/teams

Program Manageme to
s monjtors intetdependencies {across teams), coordinates program

reporiing-and expects efficiency and timeliness

Health Reform
Program Executwe S
[Qu" __ns!and Health] j‘:

» /hasaverall health reform program governance.

o / expects fuii-and timely disclosure of significant transition issues,
nefiding interdependencies

Quaensland

provides the highest [evel of governance.
G:Q_\._rernment o

expects national health reform program to be successfully delivered on
schedule

System Manager ... | o provides critical input into organisational design, performance
Executive Managemenf.‘ frameworks, systems and processes to ensure the success of the

Team System Manager

HHQ—Qemo -
executives, G over_ ng
Councils, CEOs and -
service prowsmn

contacts {i.e. “client -
contagt_s) B

o act as service providers fo the System Manager and can negotiate
directly re health service delivery outcomes and monitor ongoing
performance against contractual deliverables

e customers of transitional services provided by the System Manager.

« expect consultation re System Manager Serwce Support Agreements
and standards of service

Suppliers « provide materials and services to existing entity, either through

contractual arrangement or ad hoc agreement

6o
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e expect that transition to System Manager will not impact on continuity of
payment.

e assume that current supply arrangements will be maintained

External agencies = | ,  expect clarity re model of health services delivery in Queensiand
(varrous eg Austrahan

Medlcai_ As socnatlon
Queensland, =~ .
Queenslal Abongmal
& Island Health
Councn'-*Aged Care
ensland, Medlcare
']ocals ste ';:

Stakeholder management and communication plan

A detailed stakeholder management and communication plaii will ensure {ran5|tton activities
focus on:

e identifying information needs of all key stakeholders

e« developing communication strategies for each/key stakehpolder group throughout the
mobilisation and customer focus and capability phases.

Communication priorities include the following:

s defining and preparing primary communication channels and resources including
progress updates, communication protocels-and/pianning for improvements

e communicating the recommended/business model (for the health system) and providing
clarification for employees befcre infarmationyis leaked to the media

e communicating to key stakehoiders the strategic direction of the System Manager
(purpose, vision and high level strategic-plan)

s developing key messages for émployees updating them on transition activities as the
transition progresses (from-System Manager, Director-General).
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

_Jon Grayson

Wednesday, 30 May 2012 12:20 PM

Michael Caltabiano (Transport and Main Roads)
Craig Evans

Re: TMR Procurement Reform

Michael - i don't think we should wait on the CoA or the departmental reviews to initiate sensible cost

saving reforms.

It is useful for us'to know (and I have copied Craig) so we can make sure it is not'incoysistent with our
direction, and that we may fund useful lessons to apply in other agencies.

Thanks

Kind regards

Jon Grayson
Director-General

 Department of the Premier and Cabinet

Ph: 07 322 44728
Fax: 07 3229 2049

Email; jon.grayson@premiers.gld.gov.au

PO Box 15185 City Fast Qid 4002 | Floor 15, 100 George Street; Brishane Qld 4000

-~
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Kelly Skuse

From: Michael Caltabiano (Transport and Main Roads)
Sent: Wednesday, 30 May 2012 10.06 AM

To: Jon Grayson

Subject: Fw: TMR Procurement Reform

FY| see below

Jon we are progressing procurementy reform at a pace to get ahead of the Commission of Audit, anticipated savings
$125 Million per year '

Kind regards,
Michael Caltabiano

Director-General (Transport and Main Reads) | Executive Directorate
Office Of The Director-General | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Fioor 13 § Capifal Hill | 85 George Street | Brisbang Qid 4000
GO Box 1548 | Brishane Qg 4001

P: (07} 330673148 | F: {07) 33067122

E: michael.a.caltabiano@tmr.gld.qov.au

W: www_ tmr.ald.qov.au

—-- Forwarded by Michasl A Caltabiano/cpi/gdot/au on 30/05/2012 09:59 AM ——/

from; Christopher W Mead/cp1/QMR/Au

To: SLT, Procurement Reference Group, Procurement Infermation Network, Ray G Cameron/GentralQld/gdot/au, tan R Husband/Central/qdot/au@aqdot,
Trevor J Los/SouthEast/QMR/Au@qdot, Allan G Bell/EngSen/QMR/Au@qdot, Karen J MoiliSolthEastyQMR/Au@qdof, Doug M
Wass/WideBay/qdot/au@qdot, Tony J PlatzWarwick/Border/qdot/au@gdot, Stephen J Mallows/WideBay/qdot/au@qdot, Alan J
Stone/SouthEast/QMR/Au@qdot, Scolt A Whitaker/Centraligdot/au@dqdet, Shane G Doranjcpi/qdot/au@aqdot, Stephen F How
Lum/Eng Sen/QMR/AU@QDOT, Melita J Goff/Finance/qdot/au@qdet, Karen LZech/cpi/ddot/av@adot

Ge: PsC Core Members, PsC Nominated Representatives, PsC Standing Invitees, Jolin/E Bateman/cp1/gdot/au@QUOT, Meagan P
Loague/CentralQld/qdot/au@qdot, Deanne M Hawkswood/cp1/4dst/au@gdot

Date: 30/05/2012 09:36 AM

Subject: TMR Procurement Reform

Sent by: Kathie A Stephens

Good morning

You would have seen the Direclor-General's message last week where he announced the start of a significant
program of procurement refopm for TMR. The Board of Management agreed that TMR have a dedicated procurement
function under a Chief Procdrément Officar who will be accountable for procurement. The agreed model for operating
procurement will be centre-led.(not centralised). As outlined in the Director-General's message this transformation of
our procurement is focussed on achieving:

= asingle pojntofaccountability for procurement in the department

e transparengy in our procurement spend so that we can identify and realise savings and benefits and
demenstrate 'value for money' -

+ improved precutement capability and skills across the department

e operational efficiency by leveraging better procurement practices, processes and systems.

Work on the Procurement Reform implementation plan, communication pian and program charter is now underway
and will be presented back to the TMR Board of Management shortly. The TMR Procurement Reform implementation
team will commence 1 July 2012.

There is a lot of work ahead with the team only just starting to unpack the tasks that need to be undertaken. This is a
big step for TMR and procurement which supports the Government's direction of achieving better value for meoney and
delivering stronger accountability.
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| would like to thank those staff who contributed views, information and suggestions to the project team during the
past 3 months. Your input helped greatly to enable a positive decision by the Board of Management.

Regular updates will be provided over the coming weeks to keep you abreast of implementation planning. Should you
have any gquestions or concerns please email strategic.procurement@tmr.qld.gov.au

Kind regards,

Chris Mead
Chief Finance Officer
Finance | Department of Transport and Main Roads

Flooy 22 | trishane - Ternica Place | 140 Creek Straet | Brisbane Qid 4000
GO Box 1412 | Brisbane Qid 4001

P {37} 31486065
M:|s49 - CTPI
E: chrisiopher.w.mead@tmr.qid.cov.au

W www.tmr.gld.gov.au

T e e R S e P

WARNING: This email {including any attachments) may contain legally
privileged, confidential or private infermation and may be protected by
copyright. You may only use it if you are the person(s} it was

intended to be sent {0 and if you use it in an authorised way. No one

is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, print

or copy this email without appropriate authority,

if this email was not intended for you and was sent to you by mistake,
please telephone or email me immediaiely, destroy any hardcopies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer
system. Any right which the sender may have under copyright law, and
any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not
waived or destroyed by that mistake.

Itis your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by
third parties or replication problems (inciuding incompatibility with
your computer systemy,

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily refiect the
opinions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads(,
Maritime Safety Queensfand or endorsed organisations utilising
the same infrastructure.

FEh A E AR AR R R IR R AR T e ook e de ke ok F9ok ik kR A R A kR A K R Ak 20k bk ek Rk
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Ashleigh Edwards

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2012 3.27 PM

To: Michael Tennant; Amanda Pafumi; Anthony Crack; Samantha Luke
Subject: RE: Follow up to ACC

| am comfortable with this level of detail as long as we do not provide any private information. Regards Craig

Craig Evans AM
Deputy Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

+61 7 34062140

www.premiers.qid.gov.au

From: Michael Tennant

Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2012 1:41 PM

To: Craig Evans; Amanda Pafumi; Anthony Crack; Samantha Luke
Subject: FW: Follow up to ACC

Importance: Low

Hi Craig, Amanda and Anthony
Please see below email request from the Together union and HR's regquést to me.

If you agree, | suggest that DPC HR Services only provide the following detail re the PDO-IGR-OPSR changes focussing
on temporary and seconded staff and a copy of the' before and after Policy Division org charts that Sam has provided
me {copies attached). A copy of the Director-Generalemail to,all DPC staff and the Premier’s announcement — when .
these have been issued - can also be provided.

1. The following applies to the proposed managemént realignment affecting the Performance and Delivery
Office (PDO), Intergovernmentaf Relations Branch and establishment of the Office of Public Sector Renewal
within DPC Policy Division.

2. The before and after organisational structure charts for the Policy Division are attached. It is proposed that
the PDO Performance’nit wiliwreport though the Cabinet Secretary, Cabinet Services. It is proposed that
the PDO Delivery Unit will be renamned and report through the Executive Director Office of Public Sector
Renewal. It is proposadthat the Executive Director PDO —who has been performing both the ED PDO and
Executive Relations Intergovernmental Relations roles for the majority of the past 12 months — will transfer
to the ED Intergovernmental Relations position.

3. Previousty agreed period$ for PDO and IGR staff seconded from other departments, temporary staff who do
not have a permanent joh within the Queensland Public Service and higher duties for DPC officers will be
honoured. No sesondments, temporary contracts or higher duties will be ended earlier than previously
approved and agreed with individual staff.

4. Three PDO officers seconded from other departments will return to those departments at the end of their
current secondment periods (i.e. 30 June 2012}. These officer have permanent jobs in other departments.

5. One PDO officer - who is on a temporary contract with PDO from December 2011 to 30 June 2012 and who
does not have a permanent job within the Queensland Public Service — will finish at the previously agreed
end date of 30 June 2012. DPC is actively working with the person to find and secure alternative
employment.
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6. Approval has been provided to proceed with permanent appointment of two PDO officers to vacant
permanent positions. Both these officers have been through open merit selection recruitment processes
and were recomnmended for permanent appointment. One of these officers has been on secondment to
DPC from another department. The other officer has been a temporary employee and does not have a
permanent job elsewhere within the Queensland Public Service. Both officers have indicated their
acceptance of offers of permanent positions.

7. One Intergovernmental Relations officer - who does not have a permanent job within the Queensland Public
-Service - is on a temporary contract until 30 June 2012 . Approval has been provided to proceed with the
advertising and recruitment process to permanently appoint to the vacant permanent position and to
extend the officer’s temporary contract pending finafisation of the recruitment and appointment process.
The officer has indicated her intention to apply for the position when it is advértised:

Sam —can you please double-check the above numbers for me to make sure | have not-missed ahyone. Many
thanks. ‘

Happy to discuss.

Repards

Michael Tennant
Executive Director | Performance and Delivery Office & Interaovernmental Relations | Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Phene: {07) 3224 6789 | Short Dial: 46789 | Mobile]s49 - CTPI || Fax: (07) 34(4/3662

Email: Michagl. Tennant@premiers.gld.gov.au | Web: www.premiers.ald.gov.au
Level 3, Execuiive Building, 100 George Street, BRISBANE QLD 4000 | PO Box 14185, ZITY EAST QLD 4002

From: Bradley Wise

Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2012 11:18 AM
To: Michael Tennant

Subject: FW: Follow up to ACC
Importance: Low

Hi Michael,
As discussed, [ received the attached email from Dan Goldman at Together Union this morning.

Do you have anything that wouid be suitable to provide to Dan on the details of the organisational change in Policy
and on any contracts or secongments that will be ended as a result of the change.

I'll pursue Dan’s other queries-separately.
p q

Regards

Brad

Brad Wise | Principal Human Resource Consultant | Business Services | Department of the Premier and
Cabinet | b4 bradley.wise@premiers.qld.gov.au | % 07 3836 0573 | & 07 3210 2848 (Fax)

g2 Please consider the environment before printing this email
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From: Dan Goldman [mailto:Dan.Goldman@together.org.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2012 7:50 AM

To: Bradley Wise

Subject: FW: Follow up to ACC

Importance: Low

Hi Brad, | received an out of office response from Deb to the email below, so just thoGgh | would keep you in the
loop as well.

Regards,

Dan Goldman
Organiser / Project Officer

From: Dan Goldman

Sent: Wednesday, 23 May 2012 7:47 AM
To: 'debbie.paterson@premiers.qld.gov.au’ (debbie.paterson@preiiers.qld.Gov.au)
Subject: Follow up to ACC

Importance: Low

Hi Deb,

I am just following up with you in relation to consultation processés/around the EMP and its effect on temporary
employees. '

Do you have any more information with respect to the procéss that DPC intends to use to consult with the union
about EMP decisions and are you able to provide the data’we spoke about with respect to a list of all temporary
employees, their position title, unit or division-and their start and end dates?

| also wanted to let you know that in addition to the provisions of section 4.7 as discussed at the ACC, the union has
sought an interpretation of section 4.8 of the Award and its application to temporary employees and has sought an
interim injunction to prevent temporary workers’being terminated without consultation.

In respect to the organisational change oecurring in the Performance and Delivery Office and Intergovernmental
Relations, | am advised by/the our Delegaté Kirsten Richards that the local process taken to inform staff has been
collaborative and very open and-that our members have not raised significant concerns on the basis of the
information available to-them at this.time. There does not appear to be a need to have an urgent meeting to discuss
the impacts of this ehdnge. | also reiterate that our interaction in the context of the ACC and other discussions have
been collaborative and positive and you have made efforts, within the timeframe provided to you, to facilitate
discussion with unien-délegates and workers.

However, | am concerned at the process taken more broadly with respect to consultation about this change, and |
wanted to clarify consultation processes going forward, particularly with respect to timeframes. The union’s position
is that for genuine consultation to occur there must be an opportunity to influence the gutcome. This means that
the proposed change needs to be notified to the union, {that is ~ both the affected staff and union office) - and
those affected by the change need to be given an opportunity to consider and respond to the proposal and these
responses need to be considered by management before any change is implemented. That's why it would be best
practice to be able to keep these matters on the Agenda at ACC as well.

Further, as more detail emerges about the practical impact of these changes there may be concerns that need to be
addressed with you in respect to implementation.
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Now that the decision is no longer cabinet in confidence and has been formally made, can you provide anything in
writing setting out the details of the organisational change, including any temporary contracts or secondments being
ended?

Thank you very much Deb, please don’t hesitate to contact me directly.

Regards,

Dan Goldman
Organiser / Project Officer

tegether

Phone; 3170 6714
Fax: 3170 6814

Email: dan.goldman@together.org.au

www.together.org.au

Together Queensiand, Industrial Union of Emplovees is an amalgamation of the Queensland Piblic’Sector Union, and the Australian
Services Union (Clerical) Central and Southern Queensland Branch, Together vepresenits—over 38 000 members working across
Queensland.

For more information abour Together call 1800 177 244 or go to www. fogethér. org.ay.

'k**'k'k*'k'k***********Disclaimer e v e e s o ke ok e e ek e ok Rk

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient only.

This email may contain information which is cenfidential, ©f'a private nature or which is subject to legal
professional privilege or copyright. Accordingly, any formi Of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or
publication of this email message is prohibited unless expressly authorized by the sender acting with the
Authority of or on behalf of Together.

If you have received this email by mistake, please inform the sender as soon as possible and delete the message
professional privilege attached to thisemail’1s not waived or destroyed by that mistake.

It is your responsibility to ensure that this-email does not contain and is not affected by computer viruses, defect

or interference by third parties ot replication problems (including incompatibility with your computer system).

Unless expressly attributed, thie views expressed in this email do not necessarily represent the views of Together.
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Barbara Tollenaere

From:
Sent:

To:

Cc:

Jon Grayson

Wednesday, 16 May 2012 4:52 PM

Alan Millis (Energy and Water Supply); Andrew Chesterman (Environment and Heritage),
Barry Broe (Coordinator-General); Barry Leahy (Justice); Bob Atkinson (Queensland
Police); Brett Heyward (PSC); Dan Hunt (Natural Resources and Mines), David Edwards
(State Development, Infrastructure and Planning), Debbie Best (ATSI and Multicultural
Affairs); Graeme Newton {QRAY); Helen Gluer (Treasury); Jack Noye (Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry); John Glaister (Parks, Recreation, Sport and Racing); Julie
Grantham (Education, Training and Empioyment); Kelvin Anderson (Community Safety),
Margaret Allison (Communities, Child Safety and Disability}, Michael Caltabiano
(Transport and Main Roads); Natalie MacDonald (Housing znd Public Works); Neil
Castles (Local Government); Phillip Reed {Science, [T, Inngvation,and Arts); Richard
Eden (Tourism and Major Events); Tony O'Connell (Heaith)

Craig Evans; Sharon Bailey

Subject: Achieving Cost Savings Across Government

Dear Colleagues

In late March, | wrote to you regarding the Premier’s direction that there-be:

An immediate freeze on all public sector permanent and temporary appeiniments, excepting those involved
in front line service delivery {eg nurses, teachers and police).

A cessation of all advertising campaigns, unless deemed by Directors:-General to be essential (The only
exception is non-campaign advertising which has a legal requiremenit'to be published).

No consultancies let until further notice.

A cut to travel expenditure of 20% by all agencies, with an expéctation that travel will only be undertaken
when other alternatives are not possible.

| have talked with many of you about these measures and-my.office has received a number of queries from agencies
about the best way to implement these measurés, white ensuring that the quality of service delivery is maintained
and improved.

The overriding principle in the above four'measures,is that Directors-General are fully across their budget position
and have robust processes in place to ensure savings are made and every dollar is focussed on delivering core
objectives.

There will be exceptional instances where an‘agpointment, a consultancy, advertising and/or travel is critical to the
delivery of the Government’s agenda. Consequently, | am proposing to institute a range of processes to assist the
management of the above four measures:

In regard to establishment management processes, the standard position, is that there is to be no
recruitment or replacement of staff. While Directors-Generals can exercise some discretion up to the AO8
level, all proposals to appointnon-frontline positions of SO and SES officers, will require approvatl by the
Director-Genarahof the Department of the Premier and Cabinet;

Al advertising (withrthe-exception of classified or advertisements of a legal requirement) needs to be
endorsed by Dirdctors-General in the first instance. Following endorsement, it then needs to be provided to
the Executive Director, State Services, Department of the Premier and Cabinet (EDSS) for approval by the
Director-General, Premier and Cabinet;

All proposals for consultancies will require a strong business case and approval by the Director-General and
proposed consultancies exceeding $150,000 should be referred to the Director-General of the Department
of the Premier and Cabinet; and

In regard to travel, it is requested that you have a clear analysis of your agency’s current travel spend,
including where efficiencies might be made, and that going forward there is a process for travel approval
that sets out clear criteria, is understood and adhered to throughout your agency, and will ensure you are
able to achieve the 20% reduction. The current TMS reporting capacity will be a useful tool in this process.
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To ensure that the Government has access to timely data on the exercise of these measures, | am requesting that
Directors General:
e Report on the management of their establishment, particularly the exercise of their discretion to make
exceptions up to the A08 level, to the Public Sector Commission on a weekly basis;
e Report on the use of consultancies within their agencies, to Queensland Treasury, on a weekly basis; and
e Table these reports at our CEQ Leadership Team (CLT) meetings.

The Public Sector Commission and Queensland Treasury will contact you shortly in regard to a template and process
for this reporting.

| look forward to discussing this further at our next CLT meeting.

Regards

Jon Grayson
Director-General

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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Barbara Tollenaere

From: Anthony Crack

Sent: Friday, 27 April 2012 9:30 AM

To: Annette Sargent

Cc: Jon Grayson; Craig Evans

Subject: FW: Treasurer's letter

Attachments: Treasurer letter to the Premier on savinrgs.pdf
Annette

Thanks for that. Corporate Governance Group has requested that its next meeting on 2/May deal with Budget issues
and you should come to that. This would be the forum for discussion about potential savings. Could'you please
prepare a brief the DG prior to that meeting. | presume this will work with the proposed.résponse’date to the
Treasurer of Friday 4 May.

Anthony Crack
Acting Deputy Director-General Goverp

Department of the Premier and Cabing 549 CTP'

Telephone: (07) 322 46061 Mobile: 02

From: Annette Sargent

Sent: Friday, 27 April 2012 9:08 AM
To: Anthony Crack

Cc: Phillip Fogarty

Subject: FW: Treasurer's letter

Hi Anthony,

| received a copy of a letter from the Treasurer to thé Premierregarding the requirement for all departments to
identify $100:million in <cashable savingslin the reniaining2 months of this year — 2011-12 (Attached). Apparently a
letter to the DG is to follow.

Our Treasury officers advise that departments are not-heinggiven a specific target. We did a quick pro-rata of our
controlled appropriation to the whole of Government and on that basis we would need to find around $500,000. It
does not have to be ongoing savings — just.a one-offretirn of cash.

We are expecting to have a surplus in our end of year position and after adjusting for limited life projects where any
unspent funding has to be returned;we could offer up some of that surplus. We also have about $900K set aside
for a CRM (including Project'Athena), which we intended to carry forward to next year. To give this up would mean
the project may not go ahead.{_ We also-can return some cash from the DG’s Reserve which is what we do anyway
but it will add to the cash yeturned.

I am wondering how 10 proceed with this. | have a meeting with our new Treasury Portfolio officers this morning
and will raise this matter. - | wonder if we should prepare something for discussion at next week’s CGG.

Do you have a preferred grocess for dealing with this?

Annette.

From: Paula McLaughlin
Sent: Thursday, 26 April 2012 3:26 PM
To: Annette Sargent
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Cc: DPCCLLO
Subject: Treasurer's letter

Hi Annette

Please find attached a scanned version of the Treasurer’s letter to the Premier on departmental savings. | will
arrange for the original to go through Trim.
Regards,

Paula McLaughlin

Acting CLLO

Cabinet Services v
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Telephone (07) 3224 7135
Paula.McLaughlin@premiers.qld.gov.au
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TRY-00226
2 & APR 2012

Treasurer and Minister for Trade

The Honourable Campbell Newman MP
Premier

PO Box 15185

CITY EAST QLD 4002

Dear Premier

Sch. 3-2

Consequently, you are now required to identify proposals relating to your portfolio in
accordance with the following criteria:

e savings must be cashable in 2011-12, but can extend beyond 2011-12

e savings must be specific and be able to be publicly identified (that is broad efficiencies
will not count)

e savings cannot include carrying over-2011-12 expenditure into subsequent years.

The Under Treasurer is also writing te Directors-General in relation to this issue. That letter
will include a proforma thatagancies are expected to follow in outlining savings.

Departments are expected to return their responses, via return letter to the Under Treasurer
by close of business Friday, 4 May 2012.

Yours sincgraly

Tim Nicholls
Treasurer and Minister for Trade
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Barbara Tollenaere

From: Craig Evans

Sent: ‘ Thursday, 26 April 2012 8:14 PM

To: Sharon Bailey, Jon Grayson

Subject: RE: Achieving Cost Savings Across Government
Hi Sharon

Thanks for this draft -
! think that we should emphasise that the EMP does mean no recruitment or replacement as the standard position -
there are to be no appointments at any level but that DG can personally exercise a discretion for A04-8 roles.

We should also create a reporting process and mention that DG are to report {weekly to P5C) on the exercise of
their discretion.

For consultancies, a reporting process should be put in place where DG repol weekiy = Treasury have offered to
collate these reports.

My view is that these weekly reports should be tabled for CLT.
Regards C

Craig Evans AM

Deputy Director-Generai

Depariment of the Premier and Cabinet

+61 7 34062140

www.oremiers.qld.gov.au

From: Sharon Bailey

Sent: Thursday, 26 April 2012 5:49 PM

To: Jon Grayson; Craig Evans

Subject: Achieving Cost Savings Across Government

DG and Craig

This morning at CGG we discussed a draft email out to agencies regarding processes to assist agencies
implement the Premier’s directions re establishment, advertising, consultancies and travel. The below is a
first cut. ls this the sort ¢f thing that you were after? Please let me know if I'm not on the right track — just
wanted to get a starting point that we could amend. '

Sharon

Dear Colleagues
In late March, | wrote to you regarding the Premier’s direction that there be:

¢ Animmediate freeze on all public sector permanent and temporary appointments, excepting those
involved in front line service delivery (eg nurses, teachers and police).

e A cease to all advertising, unless essential

¢ No consultancies let until further notice.
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e A cut to travel expenditure of 20% by all agencies, with an expectation that travel will only be
undertaken when other alternatives are not possible.

| have talked with many of you about these measures and my office has received a number of queries from
agencies about the best way to implement these measures, while ensuring that the quality of service
delivery is mainfained and improved.

The overriding principle in the above four measures, is that Directors-General are fully across their budget
position and have robust processes in place to ensure savings are made and every dollar is focussed on
delivering core objectives.

There will be exceptional instances where an apposntment a consultancy, advertising and/or travel is
critical to the delivery of the Government's agenda. Consequently, | am proposing to institute a range of
processes to assist the management of the above four measures: :

¢ In regard to establishment management processes, all proposals tc appum nor-frontline positions
of SO and SES officers, will require approval by the Director-General of the Pepartment of the
Premier and Cabinet. | have also attached the Establishment Managenient Process currently in
place with my Department, to give an example of how such a program might operate;

« All proposals for advertising will need to be submitted to the CEO Adyertising Committee and
demonstrate why they are essential and how they meet the public interest. My Communications
area has been in contact with your agencies in this regard.,,

e All proposals for consultancies that exceed $150,000 will require a strong business case and
approval by the Director-General of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet; and

e Inregard to travel, it is requested that you have 2 glearanalysis/of your agency’s current travel
spend, including where efficiencies might be made;.ard that/going forward there is a process for
travel approval that sets out clear criteria, is understodd and’adhered to throughout your agency,
and will ensure you are able to achieve the 20% reduction/ The current TMS reporting capacity will
be a useful tool in this process.

| look forward to discussing this further at our/next CLT meeting

Regards

Jon Grayson
Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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Kelly Skuse

From: Craig Evans

Sent: Wednesday, 18 April 2012 1:46 PM
To: ‘Campbell Newman'

Cc: 'Ben Myers'; Jon Grayson

Subject: RE: Savings

I will confirm now and get back to you through Jon. I like your thought of 8930 as it will
drive action,

Craig Evans AM
Deputy Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet

+61 7 34862140

www . premiers.gld.sov,au

————— Original Message----- _

From: Campbell Newman [mailto:Campbell.Newman@ministerial.gld.poyv.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 18 April 2012 12:05 PM

To: Craig Evans

Cc: Ben Myers

Subject: Savings

Craig

How are we going in efforts to pull together a summary of savings to date offered up by
Ministers and DGs ? ' :

Should we ask people to provide their’ latest figures for the @930 ministers meeting prior
to cabinet on monday ?

CamThis email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient(s) only;
and may contain privileged and/confidential information. If recelved in error, you are
asked to inform the sender as-quigkly as possible and delete this email and any copies of
this from your computer system network.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take'any
action(s) that relies/on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and /or
publication of this émail is alsp prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the
views of the Queénstand Government.

Please considefr theg enviponment before printing this email.
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Kelly Skuse

From: Michae! Caltabiano (Transport and Main Roads)
Sent; Tuesday, 10 April 2012 9:18 PM

To: Jon Grayson

Subject: Re: Decentralisation Program - Carseldine
Agreed

Kind regards,

Michaei Caliabiano

Director-General (Transport and Main Roads) | Executive Directorate
Office Of The Director-General | Department of Transport and Main Roads
Floor 13 | Capital Hill | 85 George Street | Brishane Qld 4000

GPO Box 1549 | Brisbane Qld 4001

P: (07) 33067316 | F: (07) 33067122

E: michael.a.caltabiano@tmr.qld.gov.au

W: www.tmr.gld.gov.au

On 10/04/2012, at 6:46 PM, "Jon Grayson" <Jon.Grayson@premiers.gid.goy.au> wrote:

> Michael - thanks for getting me material on the movement of/significant numbers of DTMR staff to Carseldine, which
you are seeking to stop.

>

> Based on the information received, | support your proposal to halt-the/iviove if you have established that the break
costs would not be prohibitive, and that we are not breaching a commitment under an EBA.

> .
> | have since learned that the Carseldine project was part of a broader decentralisation program. | think we need to
review the whole decentralisation program. [Sch. 3-2

Sch. 3-2 4‘

> A good forum to get the whole of government implications of the decentralisation program might be at CLT
tomorrow. Would you be happy to talk to the project from your perspective? We could also get input from Brett
Heyward and Natalie McDonald.

>

> Regards

>

> Jon
-

VoV VoV

o
> This email is interided-only for the addressee, Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time and it is not
> to be distributed without the author's consent.

o

> Uniess otherwisestatéd, the State of Queensiand accepts no liability for the contents of this email except where

> subsequently confirmed-in writing. The opinions expressed in this email are those of the author and do not
necessarily

> represent the views of the State of Queensland. This email is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal
privilege.

o>
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copyright. You may only use it if you are the person(s) it was
intended to be sent to and if you use it in an authorised way. No one
is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disciose, distribute, print
or copy this email without appropriate authority.

if this email was not intended for you and was seni tc you by misiake,
please telephone or email me immediately, destroy any hardcopies of
this email and delete it and any copies of it from your computer
system. Any right which the sender may have under copyrigh law, and
any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not
waived or destroyed by that mistake,

It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by
third parties or replication prablems {including incompatibility with
your computer system).

Opinions contained in this email do not necessarily reflect the
opinions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads,
Maritime Safety Queensland or endorsed organisations utilising
the same infrastructure.
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Kelly Skuse

From; David Hourigan

Sent: Friday, 30 March 2012 9:47 PM
To: Jon Grayson

Subject: Re: Winding up of Climate Change programs - information by end next week

Yep, everyone thought demand would drop off if adverts stopped so the clear decision is good -we can

quickly move ahead on winding it up

Cheers

Sent from my iPad

On 30/03/2012, at 8:26 PM, "Jon Grayson" <Jon.Grayson@premiers.qld.goy.au> wrot€;

David —i spoke with Andrew Chesterman today — we agreed climate smart/home ats-wowld stop
immediately. 90 days notice is required to the service provider contractors to-dveid penalties, so we should
fet it run for this period. His view is that once ads stop, demand will drop away te be raifimal in any case.

1DG

From: David Hourigan

Sent: Friday, 30 March 2012 5:49 PM

To: Craig Evans; Jon Grayson

Cc: Geoff Robson; Adam Pennicott

Subject: Winding up of Climate Change programs - information by end next week

Jan/Craig — quick update

Helen called a meeting of DGs and seniorreps forthis afternoon to discuss climate change programs; available

funding; FTE allocations etc as per Jon’s letter.ofyesterday.

Treasury have already circulated 4 gro-forma request today for information by CoB Wednesday next week...sg,

by end next week we should hate info/analysisavailable for Government decision.

Just a heads-up that one key issue will be the timing to shut certain programs e.g. solar how water rebate and

climate smart home service could basically stop accepting applications virtually overnight or have a phased
withdrawal over 30 or /60 days {with no advertising etc in the interim to lessen demand}. Obviously, we need
the agency informatior to determine.dollar cost value of the timing decision but also issues like contractual

costs of terminatiehvand-employment impacts (for example 50 electricians are employed on the climate smart

home service). '

Cheers

David Hourigan

Executive Director

Economic Policy

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Ph: (07) 322 45870
david.hourigan@premiers.gld.gov.au
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Barbara Tollenaere

From: Jon Grayson

Sent: Tuesday, 27 March 2012 2:36 PM
To: @DPC All

Subject: Message from the Director-General
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Completed

Dear All

The events of the past weekend have presented the Queensland public sector, and'the Department of the
Premier and Cabinet in particular, with a sizeable and exciting agenda.

| am pleased to advise that | have accep{ed Premier Campbéll Newman’s offer to become the Director-
General of the Department of the Premier and Cabinet, and work with you inleading a successful transition
and implementation of the Government’s policies and programs.

As some of you may know, | spent a considerable part of my careerin Queensiand Treasury and QTC,
hence | am very aware of the pressures of working in government\andin-being part of a central agency.

Thank you for all the support and well wishes | have received to date.(The Department of the Premier and
Cabinet has a unique opportunity to play the lead role in/driving the Government’s policy and reform
agenda.

The Premier and | will meet with CEOs this afternoon to discuissthe priorities and policies of the
Government, and | [ have recently written to CECs to emphasise the achievement of a 4% unemployment
target, and the delivery of the commitments in a fiscally resporisible manner.

In this context, the Premier has asked that the following measures be implemented immediately.

¢ Animmediate freeze on all public sectorpermanent and temporary appointments. The freeze on
recruitment is to apply to all rolés-with the-exception of those involved in front line service delivery
(eg nurses, teachers and police). Directors-General are asked to use their discretion in identifying
roles where recruitment action can proceed. Further advice in regard to this measure will be
forwarded in the near future.

« All advertising is to cease unless essential. My department’'s Communication Services team will be
liaising with departrnental.communication heads on essential advertising proposed to run until June
2012. Any advertising that is-considered essential will be presented to the Chief Executive Officer
advertising comiiittee for review, prior to proceeding.

¢ No consultancies are to b&'let until further notice.

o Departments mustdeliver a cut to travel expenditure of 20%. It is expected that travel will only be
undertaken when other alternatives are not possible.

The immediate implementation of these measures will commence the process of harvesting savings from
the public sector so that they can be redirected towards services to the community and the honouring of
election commitments. In addition, the Premier has released a 100 day plan with progressive milestones,
and | look forward to working with you all to ensure these commitments are delivered.

We have an extremely busy and challenging time ahead of us. If you see me in the corridors and lifts,
please don't hesitate to introduce yourself, I'm looking forward to meeting as many people as possible in
the next few weeks.
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Regards

Jon Grayson
Director-General
Depantment of the Premier and Cabinet
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The CanDo LNP First 100 Day Action-Plan
commences our strategy to get Quegnsland
back on track.

In the first 100 days we will bégin délivering
on the five pledges we made te Queensland:
to grow a four pillar. ecenomy,jower the
cost of living by eutting waste, deliver better
infrastructure and bétter planning, revitalise
frontline services Torfaiyilies and restore
accountability in/Government.

It’s time fora.change, it'’s time to get
Queensland back on track. ' '

1 /A
ey
% ..

CAMPBELL NEWMAN, LNP LEADER
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The strong and united LNPteamhﬂ% a réél plan
of action to get Queensland back on track.

Our First 100 Day Action Plan will include:

First Day

* Issue the whole of government 4% unemployment target to all
Government agencies as therunderpinning principle of policy
within a CanDo LNP Gevernments

 Direct Treasury to stdrtthe ggislative changes — across the whole
of Government ~ réguirad/te implement the LNP's Lowet Cost of
Living for Families packagé.

¢ Instruct the Director:General o the Depariment of the Premier
and Cabingt o start Macningry of Government changes
- to restore Deparinental and Ministerial accountability.

FIRST DAY AC
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First Week
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Get a full briefing from TreaSLiry on the State accouris/

Appoint the Commission of Audit to uridértake a fullaudit
of the State's finances and commende’a Wat 6n Waste on
government spending.

Meet with Police Commissicner and Palice Unién to comment__:__e =
the steps for a Police recruiting surge starting gn 1 July 201 2 e

Restart negotiations for a new nurse and i dwnfe enterpnse
bargaining agreement. .

Start a full audit of the health payrol system to determlne current
errors and faults. . S

Mest with public-sector unions/te’brief oh Machln'
of Government/changes.

vV YSgam LSUIA

Require Quesnsland-Health/to report on progress towards'National
Health Reform and the implications of Labor’s rushed departmental . ©
split in relation to-those reforms, '
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First 30 days

¢ Commence action to implement recommendations ofthe
Queensland Floods Commission of Inguiry,

¢ Appoeint the Bruce Highway Crisis Managerent Group and
instruct the Depariment of Main Roads to/compile’e/proper
enginesring based 10-year 'Crisis Action Flan’ to address the
Bruce Highway crisis. :

o Freezs or lowsr the standard domestic electricity tariff (Tariff 11)
to address soaring power bills-as part of/Gost of living relief
{to take effect from 1 Jdly 2012).

¢ Regulate to freeze faniily cat registration,

* Commence drafting legislative arngndments to once again make
it illegal to lie to'Parliament:

o FEstablish a/Cabinet/Committee chaired by the Queensland
Treasurer, focussed/on property and construction,

* Appoint an industry ‘do-to’ person far the property and - - -
construction industry“supported by Growth Managerhent
Queensiand. ;

¢ /Establish DestinationQ as part of our tourism strategy
a whaole of government approach to tourism, -

+ Commence drafting of legislative amendments to reduc;e real

estate red tape by scrapping sustainability declarations and
streamiining home sale contracts and statements.

4 Consult with the Queensland Police Union and the Police
Commissioner to begin the transition of around 50 police from
behind office desks and back into front line policing.
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Extend the existing police helicopter for the Goid-Cnast for
two vears as part of our plan to roll out two permanent poiice
helicopters for the Gold Coast and South East Quesngland.

Commence drafting legislative amendrngnts to instalithe
Independent Public Advocate as a statutory’adthority,

Act to repeal Labor’s $372 million Industry Waste Lévy to
cut costs for businesses (to take effect fromd duly 2012).

Consult and Issue an expression of Interest with the Law Society
and Bar Association for a Magistrate appointment as Coroner
for Mackay.

Initiate negotiations with the/Gommonwealth Governmenit for better
flood mitigation funding.arrangements in Queensland.
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First 100 Days

* Develop Terms of Reference and appoint a new\'Forde Inquiry’
to review progress of outcomes related fo'the ‘Report of the -
Commission of Inquiry into Abuse of Zhildrervin Quisenstand
Institutions’ and the report of the CMZ Inguing to chiait a new road
map for child protection for the next-decddé.

s Begin Statutory Regional Planning process-for'thie Darling Downs
and Golden Triangle, and agt to protect the Scenic Rim from
inappropriate resource develepment including CSG.

*  Appoint the Gasfields lzand and Water-Commissioner to
better oversee the relationship between rural Iandholders
and the CSG industry: ' : L RIS

» Act to remove Labor’s extra htamp du’cy slug of up to $7000
on the family Kofme {beginning 4 July 201 2)

* Begin planning to gstablish ihe LNP's $32 milicn Maternal énd
Child Health Servige to give all mums and bubs the best pOSSlble o
start to life. o . _ :

Aménd-he Animal Care and Protectbn.Act 2001 to'br'lhg i
Giizensiand-in line with other states and protect Queenslands
igonic dugong and turtle populations. o

100 DAYS ACTION PLAN

s/ Agt torestore the Coordinator-General’s power and authority
to properly, coordinate and facilitate major projects.

s\ Establish ‘Infrastructure Queensland’ to adviss the State
Gevernment on long-term infrastructure planning, priotitisation
and ongoing management and maintenance. '

)
o
M
-
P~
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« [stablish ‘Queensland Projects’ — a standalong unit in Queensiand
Treasury driving cooperative funding models to maximise private
investment in Queensland's infrastruciure, :

 Establish the Office of Best Practice Regulation withih the
Queensland Gompetition Authority (QEA) ag’part of our plan
to cut red tape and regulaﬂon by 20%:

e Establish a Skllts and Training Taskforce ta refoi and revamp
skills and training and ensure accountablhty, value for money, and
increased comple’uon rates : .

e Appoint a Selectlon Corfittee Tor the $10 mlllton e olarshlp L
program Supporting Wamen, L

e Stari process to amalgamals bulk/Gater entities as
of our Four Point Plan te Reduce YVater Prices, .

e Acttoput the cost of the cariaoh tax on electricifg_ bills. ..

» Reintroduce discounted-wedkly fares for regular commuters
on buses, trains ard ferries {to take effect 1 July 201 2}

* |ntroduce legislationfor tougher sentences for evade potloe
repéat child sex offenders, murder and serious assault on
police officers in Queensland.

e/ Establish the framework to begin identifying projects for
invastment under our Royalties for the Regions initiatives
to benefitcommunities in resource regions.

5 | Create a new standalone Department of Agriculturs,

o Annoint Industry and Stakeholder Group to oversee a

T

comprehensive audit of agricultural land in order to better plan
and identify additional future food production fand in Queensland.
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* |Initiate recruitment of new biosecufi{y offlcers
e Open consuitation to develop a BI ' '
Plan for Cape York.

¢ Establish Gold Coast Waterways Autho' nty to 'rnprove access
to Gold Coast waterways. SRR

e Commence arrangements for improving-agcess Ao/ Trinity Enlet.

+ Commission an immediate independent stientific peer review
of the Fraser island Dingo Management Strategy.

¢ Establish framework for Quesnsland Schogls Plan Gommission
and the Building our Future Schooils program.

¢ Start updating Toowoomba/Second-Range Crossnng
Business Case,

*  Commence processlo identifState planning powers that could
be transferred to local Governn nent

e Commence structdral adjusirnent package for net ﬂshlng :ndustry :

« Commence preparations for open expreSSlons of 1nterest
for Independent Public Schools.

¢ Comimnission a study to scope and build the business case to
gstablisha callocated High School at James Cook University
in Townsville.

" {dentify.the first 150 classes to be funded for more hours for
Prep teacher aides.

)

inltlate recruitment of Ind|gen0us Hangers who W|H have a pamcular

boundaries, with prionty gt Ven to Noosa and Port Douglas
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KEY ACTIONS
CEO LEADERSHIP TEAM

Meeting 27 March 2012

ACTION

Enli(e)tisntgo discuss implications of machinery-of-government changes on their departments at the next CEQ Leadership Team Jon Gfagson 4 April 2012
DG DPC will provide CEOs with the proposed Administrative Arrangement Order. Jon Grayson Completed
CEOs to provide advice to the DG DPC about any issues with the proposed Administrative Arrarigement Order. ALL Completed
CEQs noted that the Premier will announce his Cabinet and Assistant Ministers on 30 March 2012, that the Cabinet will be ALL Completed
sworn in on 2 April 2012 and Assistant Ministers sworn in later in the same week P
CEOs noted the Premier's directions about his Government’s reform agenda to-get Queensiand back on track, including the ALL Completed
initial priorities to sort out the State’s finances and to get Queensland’s economy, going: P
CEOs noted that every department has a role in contributing to achievement.ofthe Government's 4% unemployment target ALL Ondoin
and that they shall ensure that the target informs what and how their departments do their business. going
CEOs to ensure all their departmental staff are familiar with the Government’s priorities, including the Government's five
point action plan and 4% unemployment target: '

» Grow a four pillar economy hased-an\tourism, agriculture, resources and construction

» Lower the cost of living byCuiting waste ALL ~ Ongoing

¢ Deliver better infrastructure\ahd planning

» Revitalise font line services

» Restore accountability in government.
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KEY ACTIONS
CEO LEADERSHIP TEAM

Meeting 27 March 2012

CEOQs to immediately implement the following savings measures:

* Animmediate freeze on all public sector permanent and temporary appointments. The freeze on recruitment is to
apply to all roles with the exception of those involved in front line service delivery (eg nurses, teachers and police).
Directors-General are asked to use their discretion in identifying roles where recruitment action can proceed. Further
advice in regard to this measure will be forwarded in the near future.

8 » All advertising is to cease unless essential. DPC’s Communication Services team will be liaising with departmental ALl Immediately
communication heads on essential advertising proposed te run until June 2012. Any advertising that is considered
essential will be presented to the Chief Executive Officer advertising committee for review, prior to proceeding.
s No consultancies are to be let until further notice.
» Departments must deliver a cut to travel expenditure of 20%. It is expected that travel will oniy be undertakenwhen
other alternatives are not possible. A
g DPC and the PSC will provide departmental HR Directors with consistent wording to use to support implemeritation of the Craig Evans & Completed
non-frontline recruitment freeze. Brett Heyward P
10 CEQS to change the culture of their departments to improve customer service experience and cormmunity satisfaction with ALL Ohgoing
service delivery.
11 CEOs will discuss the Government’s 100 Day Action Plan at the next GEO._Leadership Team meeting, mcludlng advice from ALL 4 Abril 2012
CEOs about significant milestones, delivery dates and which actions could be brought forward. - P
CEOs noted that Craig Evans is the Associate EGPolicy PPC and that he will also coerdinate delivery of the 100 Day Action
12| Plan. GEOs also noted that the Premier warits fegular reporting to Cabinet on progress in delivering the 100 Day Action ALL Completed
Plan. :
CEOs noted that any urgent and urizvoidable matters that require Cabinet consideration will be considered by the Premier, onqoing until first full
13 Deputy Premier and Treasurer, pending thie’swearing in of the full Cabinet and the scheduling of the first full Cabinet ALL gabiget meetin
meeting. CEOs noted that the DG DRC willfacilitate that process and that CEOs should advise the DG DPC about any of scheduled 9
these matters.
CEOQs noted that the Premier, Deputy Rremier and Treasurer will begin meeting with individual CEOs, as relevant to the
14 portfolios that they are responsible for, untit the swearing in of the full Cabinet. CEOs noted that any matters that require ALL Ongoing until swearing in
urgent Ministerial consideration should be directed to the Premier, Deputy Premier or Treasurer as relevant until the of full Cabinet
swearing in of the full Cabinet.
15| CEOs agreed to continue weekly Wednesday meetings of the CEO Leadership Team. ALL Ongoing
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KEY ACTIONS
CEO LEADERSHIP TEAM

Meeting 27 March 2012

The next CEO Leadership Team meeting will be scheduled for 2:00-3:30 pm on Wednesday 4 April 2012.

18 CLT Secretariat 4 April 2012
17 | DG DPC invited CEOs to provide advice to him about ways to make CLT meetings more productive, ALl Ongoing
18 | DPC will circulate a CEOs contact details list. ODG DPC Completed
19 | DG DPC will provide advice to CEOs in due course about lapsed legislation and parliamentary committees. Jon Grayson ASAP
20 CEOs noted that the Premier will be writing to Ministers about the Governmient's priciities.and willadvise Ministers that DPC ALL ASAP
will be following up with each of their departments to develop key performance indicators.
01 CEOs are to advise the DG DPC (Jon.Grayson@premiers.qld.gov.au oi (07) 322 44728} or Craig Evans, Associate DG ALL Ondoin
Policy, DPC (Craig.Evans@premiers.gld.gov.au or (07} 340 62140)-aboui-any hot issues arising. going
22 | DPC will provide updated SDMG and disaster response contact details to DCS. CDG DPC Completed
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Debbie Hoger

From: Jon Grayson
Sent: Tuesday, 17 April 2012 12:40 PM
To: Andrew Chesterman {Environment and Heritage); Barry Broe (Infrastructure and Planning);

Barry Leahy {Justice); Bob Atkinson (Queensland Police); Brett Heyward {PSC); Dan Hunt

- {Natural Resources and Mines); David Edwards (State Development); Debbie Best (ATSI and
Multicultural Affairs); Graeme Newton (QRA); Helen Gluer (Treasury); Jack Noye (Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry); John Glaister (Parks, Recreation, Sport and Racing); Julie Grantham
{Education, Training and Employment); Kelvin Anderson (Community Safety); Margaret
Allison {Communities, Child Safety and Disability); Michael Caltabiano (Transport and Main
Roads); Natalie MacDonald (Housing and Public Works); Neil Castlés (Local Government);
Phillip Reed (Science, IT, Innovation and Arts); Richard Eden (Tourism arid Major Events),
Tim Spencer (Energy and Water Supply); Tony O'Connell (Health)

Ce: Ann Lane (Education, Training and Employment); Betty Callus {(PSC),/Biie-Anna Cargill
(Parks, Recreation, Sport and Racing); Daniel De Wit {QIdRA); Daniglie Fletcher (Science, IT,
Innovation and Arts); Debby Laing (Natural Resources andMines), Emma Kinhane
{Communities}; Jasmine Love (Justice); Jennefer Mardon (ATS]/and Multicultural Affairs);
Jodie Anderson {Environment and Heritage Protection); Karen Goddard {(Housing and Public
Works); Katrina Johnson (Tourism and Major Events); Kim/Velia (Natural Resources and
Mines); Kym Asprey (Local Government); Leah-Serdiuk(Queensltand Police); Rebecca
Stewart (Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry); Retee/Russ-{Justice); Roslyn Raleigh (State
Development, Infrastructure and Planning); Serena Baker (Treasury); Stacey Bryan
(Transport and Main Roads); Tracy Schineider (CGY); Trish Nielsen (Health); Vicki Puplett
{Community Safety); 'debbie.seagrott@treaslyy.qld.gov.au’; Sharon Bailey; Craig Evans;
Marilyn Buswell, Michael Tennant; CLT Secretariat;)Anthony Crack; Maree Ainsworth

Subject: Commisston of Audit

Colleagues

As you are aware from previous communication {attached}, the Conimission of Audit has a mandate to provide advice
on the Queensland Government’s financial position’and/ensurevalue for money in the delivery of front line services.

~ To assist the Commission in meeting these ajmns, couldyou.pléase provide advice on:

e Any events or initiatives withindpéur ageney-that are not adequately provided for in the Mid-Year Fiscal and
Economic Review or forward estimates,e.g. 2018 Commonwealth Games funding, the Carbon Tax;

¢ Any contingent liabilities within your agency that need to be addressed; and

e« Any recent (last 2 years) studies-or reviews of your agency’s activities/programs, that might assist the
Commission in its inquiries {these-studies may address issues of efficiency of service delivery, potential costs
savings measures, einployment issues, departmental structure, etc).

We can discuss at CLT tpmorrow, so | weuld appreciate you bringing an initial list to that meeting, and then following
that discussion, forwarding more detailed advice to my office by cob Friday 20/4/12, so that advice can be provided to
the Commission in @ coordinated way.

Thank you for your assistance:
Yours sincerely
Jon Grayson

Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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Commission of
Audit
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Debbie Hoger

From: Jon Grayson

Sent: : Thursday, 29 March 2012 4:22 PM

To: Brett Heyward (PSC); Barry Broe (Infrastructure and Planning), Margaret Allison

(Communities, Child Safety and Disability); Kelvin Anderson (Community Safety); Julie
Grantham (Education, Training and Employment); David Edwards (State Development);
Andrew Chesterman (Environment and Heritage); Tony O'Connell (Health); Phillip Reed
(Science, IT, Innovation and Arts); Jack Noye (Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry); Bob
Atkinson (Queensland Police); Natalie MacDonald (Housing and Public Works); Michael -
_ Caltabiano (Transport and Main Roads); Helen Gluer (Treasury)y Graeme Newton (QRA)

Cc: Betty Callus (PSC); Tracy Schneider (CG); Emma Kinnane (Communities); Vicki Puplett
(Community Safety); Ann Lane (Education, Training and Employmerit); Roslyn Raleigh (State
Development, Infrastructure and Planning); Jodie Anderson{(Environment/and Heritage
Protection); Trish Nielsen (Health); Jasmine Love (Justice); Tina Culpo (DLGP); Leah Serdiuk
(Queensland Police); Karen Goddard (Housing and Pubiic Works); Stacey Bryan (Transport
and Main Roads); Serena Baker (Treasury); Daniel De Wit (QIdRA)

Subject: Commission of Audit

Attachments: ATT A Commission of Inquiry Terms of Reference.docx

Dear Colleagues

Today, the Premier and the Treasurer announced the establishment 6f a Commission of Audit to provide independent
advice on the current and forecast financial position of the Queensland Gevernment and make recommendations on
strategies to strengthen the Queensland economy, restore the State’s financial position (including its AAA credit rating),
and ensure value for money in the delivery of front line services.

Although the interim report will be focussed on the state of finances, thefindings from the Commission are expected to

have significant whole-of-Government implications. It will provide the Government with a Iong term blueprint for reform
and efficient service delivery.

| have attached the Commission’s Terms of Referericé for your inferimation.

The Premier and Treasurer have appointed three indegendent’Gommissioners: the Honourable Peter Costello AC, who
will chair the Commission, Dr Doug McTaggartand Professof Sandra Harding. The Commissioners will be supported by
a small secretariat of public sector officials ahd engage external experts as required.

The work of the Commission will be critical.in.ensuring that the implementation of the Government's reform agenda is
effective, timely, and grounded in evidence.

The Commission is authorised to access such personnel, documents, information and financial records in respect of the
government departments and agencies as it deems appropriate to complete the audit. The Commission may request

those bodies to prepare reports,/ The Commission may also seek and accept submissions from interested parties outside
of the public service. -

At this stage, the- Commission will repart in accordance with the following timetable
e 15 June 2012 Interim Report covering the state of the Government’s financial position
e 30 Novembker2012 tnterim recommendations

e End February2013 Final Report.

Please ensure that your agency provides every assistance to the Commission as required over the coming months.

Regards

Jon Grayson v Helen Gluer
Director-General Under Treasurer
Department of the Premier and Cabinet Queensland Treasury
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Independent Commission of Audit into Queensland’s Financial Position,
Public Sector Service Delivery and Infrastructure Program

BACKGROUND

The new Queensland Government seeks independent advice on the Queensland
Government’s current and forecast financial position, and recommendations on strategies to
strengthen the Queensland economy, restore the State’s financial position (including its AAA
credit rating) and to ensure value for money in the delivery of front line servigés. |

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Independent Commission of Audit is asked to review and report on:

1. Financial Position ,

a) the State’s balance sheet, including net debt position-and asseciated debt servicing

~ charges; ' '

b) the forecast trend in the balance sheet position’ over the forward estimates period;

c) the trends and long-term projections in growth of dwn-state revenue, including the
various state taxes and charges as well as rescurces royaities;

d) the trends and long-term projections of GST Revenue under current arrangements
as well as potential future arrangements as a result of the Greiner-Brumby-Carter
report, which will be released before-the Comniission of Audit is due to report;

e) the trends and long-term prgjections of-growith in expenditure across the various
classes; '

f) whether there are any events,”stich as/the 2018 Commonwealth Games funding
obligation and the Carbon Tax, net adequately provided for in the Mid-Year Fiscal
and Economic Review/or forward estimates; and v

g) any contingent liabilities that should be brought to the Government’s attention.

2. Improving the State’s Financial Position
a) policy settings and strategies to address any structural factors affecting the State’s
finances, and to restoreits AAA credit rating;
b) stratggies te improve the State’s balance sheet management; and
c) strategies to improve the sustainability of the State’s capital program beyond the
forfwand)estimates period to 2030; ‘

3. Service'Delivery ‘
- a) benchmarking public sector management and service delivery issues, including
procurement, corporate services, and asset management, against other States;
b) identify any potential improvements to productivity, service  quality, and value for
money in service delivery across the public sector; '
c) effectiveness of existing performance metrics and options for greater transparency
and accountability through improved public reporting;
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d) the adequacy, affordability and deliverability of the capital program over the
forward estimates period; 7

e) strategies to encourage greater private sector involvement in the funding and/or
direct provision of public infrastructure and services; '

f) the efficiency of current pricing arrangements for regulated infrastructure, including
electricity, water rail and ports

4. Government Commercial Enterprises
a) the financial performance of Government Owned Corporations and commercial
~ agencies;
b) the level of indebtedness of GOCs and commercial agencies, how'such indebtedness -
~ compares with private sector peers and whether it is a prudent-level; and
c) measures to improve the operational performance and financial returns to the State
from Government Owned Corporations and commercial agencies;

5. The Economy

a) Whether any government policies, taxes, regulatory /airangements, ownership
structures or actions or inactions represent @ gonstraint 9n Queensland’s economic
growth; and

b) Recommendations to generate long term.systémic refofm to grow and strehgthen
the Queensland economy. -

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND REPORTING TIMETABLE

‘The Independent- Commission of/Audit /consists of three independent Commissioners
appointed by the Premier and the Treasurer as follows: The Honourable Peter Costello AC
(Chairman), Dr Doug McTaggart and -Professoi Sandra Harding.

The Commission will be supportéd by a secretariat consisting of a small group of public
service officials. The secretariat will work under the direction of the Commission. The
Commission may alsgseek external advice and support where required.

The CommissionZis authorised to access such personnel, documents, information and
financial recgrds in respect of the government departments and agencies as'it deems
appropriate to complete the audit. The Commission may request those bodies to prepare
reports./ The\Commission may also seek and accept submissions from interested parties
outside/of the' pubiic service.

Unless otherwise agreed, the Commission will report to the Premier and Treasurer in
accordance with the following timetable:

~15June 2012 Interim Report covering the state of the Government’s financial
position
30 November 2012 Interim recommendations
End February 2013 Final Report
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Debbie Hoger

From: Jon Grayson
Sent: Tuesday, 3 July 2012 10:28 AM
To: @Al OQPC; @Cabinet Secretariat (Policy); @Communication Services (DPC);

@Constitutional & Admin Law Service {(DPC); @Corporate Information {DPC); @Corporate
Information Services; @Deputy DG Office (DPC - Gov); @DPC Exec Assistants; @Economic
Policy (Policy); @Environment & Resources Palicy (Policy); @Events Coordination (DPC);
@Executive Correspondence Unit (DPC); @Executive Services (DPC); @Governance
Division (DPC); @Governance ED's & Directors; @Government Air Wing (DPC); @Human
Resource Services (DPC); @information OPSC; @Infermation Services (DPC Cl),;
@Information Services (DPC ICT); @information Services (JCT&C), @Intergovernmental
Relations (Policy); @Internal Audit & Risk Services (DPC),/@Law/&/ Justjce Palicy {Policy);
@Library and Research Services (DPC); @Marketing OPSC; @Ministeiial Services (DPC);
@ODG,; Christine Prato; Georgia Voutsis; Leanne West; Simon-Carl; ¥dnessa Rowe;
@Policy Division; @Policy Officers (policy); @Protocsl Queensland{[2PC); @Social and
Health Policy (DPC); @State Affairs (DPC - Gov); @State Affairs Directorate {(DPC); @State
Affairs Directors (DPC); @State Affairs Exec Assistanis{2PC); [@State Services (DPC -
Gov); @State Services Direclors (DPC); Adele O'Hare; Amanda/Ross; Andrew Ede; Andrew
Thorpe; Annette Sargent; Barbara Tolienaere; Carolyn Carruthers; Catherine Newman; Chris
Chinn; Chris McKenna; Chris Mcklaren; Chri§ Rumei;-Chris Test; Christine Castley;
Christopher Korab; Claire Andersen; Dana Wiimingtan; Bavid Solomon; Deberah Turnbulf
Elite Aloni; Emma Ogilvie; Errol LeBoydre; Fran'\Parker; Francine Hardy; Gloria Burns;
Jennifer Bowles; John Gardiner; John MzAlonan (Ventyx); Judy Lioyd; Julia Webb; Julie
Northage; Julie Stimson; Karen Kay; K#th Russell; Katherine McCabe; Kirsteen Thomsen; Liz -
Pini; Lucinda Kasmer; Lynn Pramberd; Maiid Wendt; Michele Rice; Michelle Holmes; Nadia
Cecil; Neil Syratt; Pamela Richardson; Sandra DaVBroi; Sharon Grooby; Timothy Gibson;
Wade Lewis; @Performance Unit; Andrea Humphreys; Catherine Collier; Cheryl Cannon;
Gehann Molachino; Libby Gregeric; Maria Werdt, Michelle Mee; Rob Lioyd-Jones; Amanda
Pafumi; @PSC; @ODDG; Lotise Startha :

Subject: iDG News - Issue 10 - 2 July 2012

Attachments: DPC2927_JDG News JulyEditions Ed 1G_FINAL.PDF
Importance: High

Dear All

To keep you updated on DPC achievements.and/Uupcoming issues, please find attached the jDG news.
David Hourigan's profile provides some interesting reading.

The link will be available on thedntranet shortly.

Enjoy your week.

Kind regards

Jon Grayson

Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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Hell

Following the Premier’s televised
address on Sunday 24 June 2012,
| would like to tallk more with you
about what this means for DPC.

For me, the Commission of Audit Interim
Report leaves no doubt about the state of
Queensland’s finances. [ am concerned
that the debt interest bill is now the
fastest growing government expense in
Queensland. It would be negtigent in my
view not to take urgent action.

So | want to reiterate the Premiet’s
message—the only way to protect our
future is by finding savings and new,

cost-effective ways of delivering services -

o Queenslanders. It really is a case
of all agencies on deck to rectify the
situation.

In the past few weeks there have been
a series of budget meetings that have
focused on savings across all agencies.
DPC has been actively involved in

this process through the Treasurer’s
Cabinet Budget Review Sub-Committee.
Likewise, each agency has presented
an overview of its existing activities and
is actively looking at how it can make

a contribution to the fiscal repair task.

DPC has been represented on the
Treasurer's sub-committee by myseif,
David Hourigan, Executive Direcfoy
Economic Policy and Amanda Pafumi,
Executive Director Public Sector
Renewal. Briefing for the sub-committee
meefings has involved many people
across DPC. | want to sincerely thank
everyone involved i preparing briefs,
including the Cabinet Secretariat for
their factlitation, particutaply given the
tight timeframes.

| acknowledge this process has been

a difficult but necessary task to identify
the required savings, | would like

to acknowledge the temporary staff
who left us last Friday and some who
are scheduled to leave in the coming
months. | understand that the people
leaving were your colleagues and made
a significant contribution to DPC.

Lers

| thank them for their dedication and
wish them well in their future endeavours.

The truth is, we need to plan for a leaner
public service in the future. DPC as a
central agency must lead by example
and shoulder some of the hurt, Equally,
| am acutely aware that we have a strong
responsibility in leading the reform
process and can only do that with the
right balance of resources.

Budget deliberations are continuing
and once the outcomes are confirmed
for DPC 1 will communicate this fo you,
In the interim, please discussany
concerns with your manageys.

While the outcomes of the budget
sub-committee meetings have een
focused on immediate savings, including
staff cuts, the Public Sector Renewat
Program is much-more focused, On
long-ferm effigiency, remeving duplication
and maxiptising the effectiveriess and
sustainability of setrvices:

The program involves & collaboration
between.the Office’of Public Sector
Renewal (OPSR) awd the relevant
agency/ It Inctudes operational efficiency
reviews to analyse the strategies each
agency-employs to meet its objectives,
how efficigntly and effectively services
are delivered or facilitated with alliance
partners and making recommendations
animprovements.

These reviews provide the context for
refocusing all of us on government
priorities and supporting the delivery
of front line services in a constrained
fiscal environment.

All employees are invited to share
their views, ideas and comments on
how we can improve our services for
our clients by contacting the OPSR at
RenewalProgram@premiers.qld.gov.au.
You will also hear about other
opportunities for DPC to get involved
in due course.

Jon Grayson, Director-General
Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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tssue 10, 2 July 2012

DG’s qﬁdte
of the week

2013

Australian of

 the Year Awards

Nominations are now open

for this prestigious awards
program that recognises
leading Australians who serve
as role models for us all.

For more information please
contact Evenis Coordination
within the department on
X55215 or visit the Australian
of the Year website to
nominate your Australian of
the Year. Nominations clese
Friday 31 August 2012,

Have a great week!
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iDG news

Giving to the
community

Angela Spiegel, Senior Communication
Officer in Communication Services,
recently spent two weeks training as

a Bridges for Peace (BFP) volunteer
representdtive in Israel,

BFP assists thecguntry’s poor, new
immigrants and victimis of war from
all walks.ofife in practical ways
including through/food banks, feed
a’child, adept atown, home repair
and wiedical assistance programs.

it was Angeld/s first time in Israel. She
was ope-offour Australians and one of
38 International volunteers from the USA,
Canada, Japan, South Africa and the UK.

' Angela at the Shuk markets in ferusalem

ICT testi ng Saturday 23 June. This iﬁ\;ol\}ed isolating \/would be fully functional in the event

the Ventyx data centre from.the/network of a major outage. Many thanks to
The ICT Operations Team, along with and operating entirely on our disastey lan Gibson and Stefan Flegg for working
Ventyx, performed the annual disaster recovery environment while cariying oUt tirelessly throughout the day and into
recovery test on the evening of rigorous testing fo ensure our systeins the late evening to monitor the situation.
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'he jDG news

David Hourigan, Executive Director, Ecoromic Policy

Where did you grow up?

On a dairy farm in Victoria’s Latrobe
Valley. When | was 14, our farm was
resumed by the electricity commission
so dad moved us up to Queenstand
and we lived at Redcliffe where dad
bought a taxi cab.

Childhood memory?

When | was seven, my uncle gave me
and my brother a Valiant Safari statien
wagon to use as a paddock bashgr;

| painted a Confederate flag on/itjust
like the Dukes of Hazzard. It begati-my
lifelong affair with muscle cars.

Tertiary education?
Public Administratiodq at QUT! |

Role in DPC?

Advise the Premier, Cabinet and
Cabinet Budget Review Commiitee on
the economic and financial implications
of government initiatives. We also work
closely with Treasury and line agencies
to make sure fiscal responsibilities are
being met.

First job in government?

Clerkin HR in the Department of
Education, Employment, Vocational
Training and Industrial Relations.

Most satisfying achievement
at DPC?

Being ctasely involved An/the team
that introduced-the Prep Year to state
education in Queensiand.

How do vouwanwind?
I"m & petrol head. 1 love VB Supercars.

| ownrone.of the great muscle cars,
a 1976 Ford XBGT.

Favourite holiday
destination?

My wife Kylie and | are passionate
travellers. I've had about a dozen
overseas trips and been to more than

40 countries, Enjoyed them all except
for one—Morocco.

If you could see any musical
performer (dead or alive)
in concert, who would it be?

Tie between Jimi Hendrix and Frank
Sinatra. Love them both.

Favourite sports team?

Anothertie. Hawthorn in the AFL
and the V8 Supercars Ford Performance
Racing Team.

What is your fantasy career?
V8 Supercar driver or army officer,

Something about you that
nobody knows?

In the early 1990s, | was lead singer

in a grunge band called Moses Played
Fuliback. We played the same venues
as Powderfinger. We mainly did Hendrix
covers, they mainly did Led Zeppelin
covers. They took off.

Do you have a motto or
favourite saying?
“Drink a cup of concrete and toughen up.”

If you could live as a celebrity
for one day, who would it be?

George Clooney. He has a house on
Lake Como, dates international models,
wears great suits and does a bit of work
for the United Nations.

if you could have one super
power, what would it be?

Infallibility so | could always give perfect
advice.
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DIRECTOR-GENERAL’S BRIEFING NOTE = _ Traoklng FolderNo12/18175
Governance . - Docunient No.121137363
To: Director-General Approved N“m

Date: 13 July2012
Subject: Internal Audit Fungtion

« RECOMMENDATION

Itis recommended that you:
_[s49-CTPI

- note the options papers prepared by the Acting Director, Internal Audit and Risk Services,
DPC in relation to the service delivery models (Attachment 2),

~ endorse the preferred option of a co-sourced model maintaming aDPC employee as the
Head of internal Audit with that person conducting functions and liaisen relating to athics,
risk and audit (with serwces provided by an outsourced prov:oer following an approprtate
tender process) and

~ note the' preferred model should be cost neutral (Or.beuer\ but-wilt have initiat staffing
impiications which wili be managed through the current EMP process.

o KEY ISSUES

-~ DPC has traditionally been serviced by a small in-house audit team, This model of service
delivery however, gives rise to limitations on tive effectiveriess of the service. Critically, it is
difficult for a small team to have sufficient expertise across all areas of an agency which in
itself, encourages audit work targeted to the teams' capabrlrttes and not necessarily -
organisational weak spots. -

- An outsourced or co-sourced modélallows for the ﬂexable use of resources to strategically
target the areas of most significance in’an orr*anlsatlon whether that be financial controls or
broader process system and perforniznce audits. Using external providers allows access to
a broader, more oontempore. y and Spacialist skrlls set resulttng in greater strategic beneﬂt
to an organisation,

- Section 78 of the FinandialAccotntability Act 2009 requiires the "accountable ofﬁcer' to
appoint an appropriately qualified Head of Internal Audit (HIA). The minimum. quatif'oatton
of the HIA is a standard accounting or Institute of internal Auditors designation,

~ Whilst an agency needs to nominate a HIA who requ:res a professsonat qualification and is
either an employee of the deoartment or of the State (with the Treasurer’ s approval), the
internal audit/function can be futflled internatty, co-resourced or outsourced, -

- Whilst the Treasurer can approve that the HIA function also be performed by the Chief
Financial @fficer, this is not recommended by the Queensland Auditor-General. The
Treasursr can also-appoint a HIA who is shared across multiple depariments. Currenitly
DPC uses an “in-house” internat audit function with a budget of around $0.45M (being
$0. 376M state revenue and $0.075M from the Public Service Comrmselon) There is
planned additienal revenue from Ministerial Offices for undertaking their internal audit work.
This allocation funds 4 staff (801, AD8, AO7 and AD3), with the remalning $0 OOSM for
other costs. Therg is also an unfunded role in the area,

— Emst & Young has prepared a discussion paper for DPC and advise that ocutside of
Queensiand, the majority of other States have outsourced or ¢o-sourced intermal audit
functions (see page 6 of Attachment 1), The oo-sourced model would retain a DPC HIA
officer. The outsourced model (whrch involves hlgher internal budget savings) would merge

Action Oﬁtcer Robynne Macgroarty Approvats by Drrect_o_rf ED /DDG

Ares: ODDGG documented in nofes In TRIM
Tslephons: 3405 3757 .
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DERECTOR-GENERAL’S BRIEFING NOTE
Governance

Tracking Folder No,12/18176
Document No.12/137363

the HIA function with the CFO function or assign the HIA function to another agency
employee (e.g. using the HIA within Treasury or similar agency).

The Acting Director, Internal Audit and Risk Services has also prepared options papers on
the matter (Attachment 2). .

s49 - CTPI

I have discussed the three options (status quo in-house, co-sourced or outsourced) with the
Acting Director, Internal Audit and Risk Services, and we agree that the preferred modet is
a co-sourced mode! which would retain a Head, internal Audit and Risk Services (and
possibly modest administrative support).

Retaining a sole in-house model can no longer be consideread as providing the requisite
benchmark service. A full outsourced model eliminates direct internal costs but may bring
contract management chalienges (and ultimately service delivery concerms) without a
dedicated overseeing internal resource. The main benefit of the co-sourced model is the
anticipated standard in the audit product and the potential for efficiencies compared with a
full In-house modet.

f is further recornmended that
549 - CTPI the department move directly to a tender process for a co-sourced mode). |
twould be expected that the winning tender, would as its first job, conduct an

organisational scoping exercise.

s49 - CTPI

CONSULTATION

- Queensland Auditor-General; Acting Director, Internal Audit and Risk Services; Acting
Executive Director, Business Services, Queensiand Treasury; and the Chair of the DPC
Audit and Risk Committee, Mr Graham' Carpenter. There is no opposition to the proposal.

~ DPG provides internal audit services for thé Public Service Commission and the Office of
the Governor but there has fgen no consuitation with elther.

« BACKGROUND

Governanca

— For independence, Interna¥ Audit and Risk Services (IARS) reports directly to the Director-
General with the Deputy Director-(3eneral, Governance having administrative responsibility
for the area. The Director, IARS Is also the secretary of the Audit and Risk Committee
(ARC).

Commenits

Aclion Officer: \Robynne Macgroarty  Approvals by Bireotor/ EB DG
Area: ODDGG documenied in notes in TRIM
Telephona: 3405 3757
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Hmmllllm..,

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving-Value from Internal Audit

Discussion Paper

June-2012

&1 ErnsT & YOUNG
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i. A mandate for change

1.1 Background
The new government in Queensland has created a mandate for change through empowering its
agencies to chailenge and increase the value they are delivering, specifically through:

» Enacting leadership changes across the public sector:

¢ Targeting cost reduction through greater efficiency of back office functions:

e Simplifying processes and reducing "red tape” without diluting accountability;

» Focusing on core government activities and considering opportunitiés for autsourcing.

The Department of the Premier and Cabinet ("Premiers”) has experienced-teadersiip and structural
change as part of this transition. Whilst maintaining its core functions of Government/éervices and
policy, Arts Queensland has been disaggregated from the department.

In light of these changes, Premiers has identified an opport ity to assess andAmiprove the value
delivered by Internal Auditthreughsinvestigatingaitermat et s The
Department is also considering how changes you implement & ¢orvoaipilotzmodel for internal

audit across the Queensfand Government mare broad)

SR

HIBHISELVE

This paper sets out the internal audit landscape at Pre'
requitements, identifies attributes of

s

models for internal audit and sugae

' ':Qhed in Premiers comprising four staff, thrée of
whom are currently acting posit] ) rpproxmnte annual internat audit spend is $400-500K.
We understand that the Director teinal Audit and Risk (Acting) reports functionafly to the
Deputy Director General Governance,/and also/has a.direct reporting line to the Audit and Financiat
Risk Committee,

Figure 1 in house internal audit dehvery maodel -

=R Premigis

e e e e e e e e o

Exematia providar

Whilst this.medei has benefits of retaining orgamsatsonal knowledge in-house, this is recognised in
the 1ntern L audit co_mmunltygas an inflexiblESTatiAuENEEE! through which cﬁéﬂ‘é’ﬁqes»aﬂse

T A ] [E A e

. {éﬁj@g@@@gﬁse across a breadth of areas from within a small team:

e Achieving sufficient focus on key Department “patEspatss: and
-  RAGHHNGS
As aresult, you are seeking to understand the different Internal Audit delivery models available.

FREEBUREES with a cultural fit for the agency.

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving Value from Internal Audit - Discussion Paper Ernst & Young | 2
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2

1.3 Legislative Considerations

Legislative Requirements and Guidance

o

The Financial Accountability Act 2009 section 78 contains a requirement for theseeaiHtanleagricar

ofnQueensland:Government:departmenttorapBoIREa NP BT PHatE N aUa e N eSS Al

Information sheet 2.6 of the éccompanying Financial Accountabiiity Handbook (the “Handhook™)
identifies the minimum gqualifications of the HIA as a standard accounting designation (CPA, CA,

MIPA) or an [nstitute of Internal Auditors designation (MIIA or CIA).

andbeoksaiswigla
on:of:theslreasuren:

gL
ssmalkdeparn

Besperformedibyramorninated:pul
enpioygsiofthestate.

B

Implications for Premiers

White Premiers must appoint an HiA, with the permissig
flexibitity to:

* Engage an outsource proyider to su
o Merge the HIA role with that of

*  SeERlGtoERpBInE:

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving Value from Internal Audit - Discussion Paper Ernst & Young | 3
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2. Internal Audit Effectiveness - Benefits and
Leading Practices

2.1 Leading Practice Internal Audit

Leadang practuce Internal Audit delivers vaiue to an orgamsat:on byBalEnEGsE: ostandvaliets

P P A T

TSR Evert gibe

v Supporting achievement of strategy through involvement In strategic inftiatives.

Protecting and improving operations through a balance of assurance’and advisory activities,
Supporting and enabling an efficient risk and controt infrastructure;

Eliminating surprises through improved identification, understanding and.mitigation of risks.

AR NEE NN

Being a key source of timely and insightful information to managemeént..the board and board

committees.

EVE BN RISk

Figures2Balanging:c

Cost - “do more with [ess"-

»  Reduce structural costs by bringing ' b DesiredStatein
together the right blend of staffmix for Cost Coverage\

each internal audit

- Minimise overhead casts and potantial
staff downtime with Internal audi teams
cleployed at the right place and time

Risk Coverage — Focus on the risks that matter

» Inecrease Internal Audit focus beyond fihancial and
compliance risk and in¢rease coverage over key -
strategic and operational risks

Risk Coverage

Valye - Be a business partner and agéntTor continucus improvement

« Increase Intetnal audit focus beyond short to/iedinm tanm priorittes arising from
busihess as usual and Increasedstratedic olgotive-andisk alignment
In¢rease the quality of internal audisouteenies by bringing together teams with the
appropriate mix of subject maiter expertise

Based on our initia)discussion with you and in our experience In working with other units across the
* Australian publiC sector, wesliave:obsemedithefollowingtypeof ,mbaLamc FifzImtEE Al ikl

Tioeya
Cost
[ Al S I B E
P HloSrativa s i K o .
i Gutverags L e
[ AN i DCesited fiture state
voverags

Value Risk

Department of the Premier and Cabinet .
Driving Value from Internal Audit - Discussion Paper Ernst & Young | 4
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2.2  What is your investment in Internal Audit returning?

Premiers make a considerable investment in internal audit. In determining the need for change and
the most appropriate future-state internal audit model for the department, it is important to
consider what the current modet is delivering in comparison to the desired state.

The following diagram illustrates the different roles that internal audit functions can typically deliver
in an organisation. In the process of driving greater value through internal audit becoming an
enabler of the department, it is important that both capability and strategic alignment are achieved:

¢ ' Capability ~ does your department have a diverse and high calibre internal audit skill sef?
¢ Strategic alignment - does internal audit activity and business improd¢ement
recommendations support the effective achievement of the departrngnt’s strategic

objectives?

To fall short of expectations with respect to capability or strategic éliqnmcnt will deliver an
ineffective or sub-optimal service relevant to the investment made.

Figure 4: internat Audit Functions- capability and alignment

Internal Audit Functions- capability and alignment

Strategic
Alignment

Cost acknovledged by business Value Zchinowledged by department who

" Rescurcesbase nof sufficiently actiyely'seek inteiial audit Input
skilled or fiexible to deliver business - Retoramendations resultin réal change
insight - not respected; ) “\Fiipely and sGcdinct reporting on activity

- Limfted assurance provided which is afignéd with strategic objéctives
Create “battlenecks” to audii and risks

* Flexible resource model - skills & insight

avallable

Cogtefficient technigues used to defiver

vsutance (data drivén, continuous) 1A Capability

outcomes and business impact.
" Businessimprovement not achieved

1A Capability

tded on areas assessed

Campliance
Fotus

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving Value from internal Audit - Discussion Paper Ernst & Young | 5
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3. Internal Audit Models

As alternatives to the in-house madel that Premiers currently usESsiaraian
W :magjygppijed ACFOSS]OVerAN [ »AUsIraJLa»

Dt

e s

o SEOESGUTCENNnteREmalzaudit~ an in-house team and outsourced provider are used in
combmatlon to deliver mternal audit.

o JOtSEiTREdRTenal-atdit - all internal audit activity is delivered by an outsourced provider.

These models are presented on the following pages.

Figure 4: Internal Audit models in government

Co-sourced

: Qutsourced

%‘i 4LD Gove:a.;nent

Dapantments

In-house
GLIYGovernment-Owned

Corporations

= Queensland Gavernment
departments are
dominated by in-house
internal audit funcﬁons

. R
T e

Source; internal anslysis (NB: Informaticn was not svaitsbly foraliStale/Depariments)

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving Vatue from Internal Audit - Discussion Paper : Ernst & Young | &
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3.1
Co-sourced internal audit mvoEves USim
FEsplrGes.

It is highly fiexible from a staffing perspective, with the leve| of externai support used dependent on
the nature and volume of skills available in-house. Examples of practical applications of this model
include:
« REERHRCHSEFIRE
exieanalpraidenhones WG
+ Retention of an in-house team Some pro;ects on the plan are delivered by the in-house
team, some by the external provider and some in combination, depending on the subject
matter {refer to figure 5 below).
s Refention of an in-house team Wthh is only supplemented by subject matter resgurces of an

external provider. .

f,;-,;*.;;{.‘:r; o 2=

ol Eera ol fol el

For example, a co-sourced model could be established in the followiny/form at Premiers;
Figure 5: |llustrative co-sourced internal audit model

Psemiers

HNote: There is flexibikty o change the mix of resowrces ‘*eiwwn i huuse and co~sourced. The above
mix of fesourcesTepragents mataining a Some setaf Intemal Auditors,
o

o Retain experienced internal/auditers and departmental knowledge

e« Access to external provider capacity and resilience

» Broader risk assurancer coverage

+  Ability to charrgethe mix and volume of resources

* Access to/subject matter professionals, bringing their deep specialist expertise
* Highly flexihle.model

e Accessto bench"narkmg and leadlng practices

« “Cultdraitritegration of different audit teams
s  Existing personnel development challenges

L@EEQ& FapprotiEteealisre

Departmeht of the Premier and Cabinet
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At Premiers, this would mean that the
ITEHTEE

e,

IS es FoT s g EEEts

For example, an outsourced model could be established'in the following form at Premiers:

Figure 6: Hlustrative ouisourced internal audit modet

Premiars Extefnal 1A Providit

Key benefits of this model lnclude:~ ‘ _
* Limited in-house time Investedin'managing the internaf audit function
e Increased independengé of provider
¢ Most flexible to expanhd/contract resgurces to cover risk profile
=  Ability to trahsition to te-séurcing model, if desired
s Access to subject matter professionals .
* . Access to benchmarking and feading practices
Key challenges of this model Mclude:
» Change’management and communication considerations
o Assignment of HIA-and required application for approval to Treasury

» /Peéople decisions (retain, transfer, separate)

e ~Loss/Of departmental knowledge retained within current in-house team

Department of the Premier and Cabinet ‘
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i

3.3 Case Study - Internal Audit Outsourcing in Government

Co-sourcing and outsourcing internai audit models are commonly applied in many.government
departments outside of Queensland. We present the following case study to illustrate how these
arrangements operate in practice:

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Driving Value from Internal Audit - Discussion Paper Ernst & Young | §
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4, Next Steps

We would be pleased to discuss this paper with you in person to share our thoughts and ideas on the
maost effective course of action for Premiers,

70 confirm that a case for change exists, w
in any or all of these steps:

éi‘;'?é’%"

of Transpart Victoria, to garner his msughts on how internal audit co- sourcmg,/outsourc ing
can be effectively defivered in Government.

0 validate and develap a case for change, we would suggest that the current’state of
internal audit is assessed and/or confirmed through engagenment of Key stakehotders of
Premiers, for example:

+ Audit and Financial Risk Committee Chair

» Director General
« Chief Financial Officer

e Director of Risk and Internal Audit (HIA)
o Other Key Executive

efunctionawillzassist
performing this assessmer
the function as illustrated’®

e Byl BB EKsT0

EaRinteradiEekoh

Aast i Lo

Governance

Purposs
and mandate

People

Resourcing -

Infrastrueture
and )
operations  Meitic

- Knowladgs © - ¢
| rmanagemeént Ouality

VDé‘;'eIopIng Established Advanred

Department of the Premier and Cabinet
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Department of Premier ancl Cahinet

Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced model - In-house Head of Internal Audit (HIA)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

Preferred Model for BPC - Internal Audit and Risk Services — In-house HIA plus external provider

resources

The advantages and disadvantages of five alternative models for the provision of Internal Audit has
been analysed in the paper titled “Analysis of Setvice Delivery Models for InternabAudit” to
determine the preferred approach for the provision of an efficlent, effective and/economical internal
Audit function for DPC.

The paper stated that the preferred model for DPC is a flexible, co-sourced-model with arin-house
Head of Internal Audit and access to external provider resources, The/key advantage-of this model is
that it provides the ‘best of both worlds’ or the ‘best of breed’ — a stable internal"audit role within
the agency supporting a culture of strong governance, risk management aiid inteinal control,
supplemented by access to leading edge skills from the external provider/s.

En relation to risk management, the paper advised that the DPC\isk r{ahagement function also sits
/' with the DPC Internal Audit and Risk Services team and tHat the prevailing best practice is to
maintain anin-house ¥isk managemant function supplémented by technical advice and education

" & from externa} specialists as required.

It4$ riot eohisiderad to be effectivé arid'éfficient to-separateiisk management outfrom Internal Audits =
wat:this time:They are compatible functions and-the external service providers generally have strong

risk management capabilities which could’be taken advantage of under the co-sourced model

selected.

This paper further articulates how the prefeired mddel would be implemented within the
Department. The following diagram provides.a high level view of the change to the current

arrangements:
CURRENT MODEL PREFERRED MODEL
-Head of Internal Audit and Risk -Head of Internal Audit and Risk

Services {S03)
-Audit Managapr/{A0B8}
-Principal Projact Officer {Risk)

Seru_'u:es_ .
Ad-' nis' ati\ie Support

(A07) ' -External Provider of Internal
-Auditor {AD6) Audit services plus advice and ad
-0.6 X Administrative Support hoc services in relation to risk
Officer (A03} ‘ management

The impact on current Internal Audit resources is outlined later in the document.
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Department of Premier and Cabinet

Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced model - In-house Head of Internal Audit {HlA)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

d model could be implemented in a number of ways. The following models are
considered to be the most appropriate:

1. Independent, standalone HIA team reporting directly to the Director-General on audit and risk
matters with administrative reporting line to Deputy Director-General, Goves hance;

2. Independent;standalone HIA‘in “Office” of Deplty ‘Director-General £'Governanca reportmg

sdirectly to the Director-General'on ‘atidit-and fisk matters with'direct adiministrative re‘mrtmg

line:to-Deputy Director<Genéral; Goverharice; ..

3. Independent, standalone HIA reporting directly to the Director-General {part oftheOffice of the
Director-General} on audit and risk matters;

4. HIAis Director, Internal Audit, Risk Management, Planning and Reporting. Djfect reporting line
to the Director-General on Internal Audit and Risk matters. Direct reporting/ine to Deputy
Director-General Governance on all other matters,

it is anticipated that the in-house Internal Audit and RisK function wauld be responsible for:

‘e Arranging, managing and reviewing Internal Audit cantrdct/s with external service provider/s (3
yr contracts); '

o Review and approval of Strategic Internal Audit Plans and&nnual Internal Audit Plans provided
by external service provider;

o Review and approval of Internal Audit /Engagementdiemorandums’ and ‘Reports’ provided by
external service provider;

e Provision of ad hoc advice and audit assistance’where outside of contract with external provider
or required yrgently;

&  Secretariat for the DPC Audit and Risk Management Committee;

¢ Risk Management - methotlology, facilitation and reporting {informed hy regular reviews
undertaken by external service provider over contemporary approach to risk management);

e Provide DPC response to whole of\gdvernment matters in relation to internal audit, risk
management and governance;

e Provide responge to relevant.correspondence on behalf of the Director-General and Premier as
required;

o  Audit Committee memher — Great Barrier Reef Marine Park Authority and advisor to Director-
Generadl en related financial matters,

It is assumed that:
e The Head ofinternal Audit and Risk Services will be sufficiently senior to negotiate and manage
contracts with Partners of external audit service providers and liaise with Executive Directors

and Directors/Managers across DPC;
e The Head of internal Audit is appropriately qualified and experienced;
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Department of Premier and Cablnet

Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced model - In-house Head of Internal Audit {HIA)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

¢ The Head of Internal Audit and Risk Services will have appropriate administrative support
(required to support risk management function, secretariat function, financial control, diary
management};

¢ Accommodation will need to be provided for external service provider staff throughout the year.
There may not be significant savings in accommodation costs.

Common advantages of retaining the HIA function plus use of external service provider under ali of
the models include:

e HIA continues to provide cost-effective approach to Risk Management.informed hy leading edge
thinking provided by external service provider; e

¢ A strong HIA presence {a seat at the table) acts as a catafyst for a strong/riskand compliance
culture within the agency. internal Audit visibility is a ‘contral i itseif;

e  HIA continues to perform all other responmbtilttes of Internal Audit and Risk Services,

o HIA in place to perform contract management rote Oyer external resources

¢ HIAin place to review strategic and annual pians, rngagament rmmorandums and reports

a and quality

provided by external provider to ensure value for m
provision of Internal Audit;

¢ HiArole in place internally means Iess risk. of cross- seng of other products / services in audit
reports by external providers; : ' '

s Audit documentation maintained on-site; e

e internal relationships built and maintalngd/betwaen HIA and manaéement and staff;

e External relationships built and maintained betwieen HIA and other auditors across the sector
and wider community and with-the QAGC; i

o HIA works: WIth DPC management/and staff to resolve issues raised and reduce the likelihood of
adverse_audlt |ssues bem raised by the QAD;

° Entefnal HIA function can operate-as. a training ground for future, senicr staff — in many agencies
former- audtt staffare ope" ing In aemor roles in Finance, Governance and other areas.

An analysis of the di.;:i_ngt advantaéas and disadvantages of each model is provided below:

Independeit, 51andalone htA.team reporting directly to the Director-General on audit and risk
matters/with administrative reportmg {ine to Deputy Director-General, Governance:

Advantages

Retain full independence, objectivity in function;

Very similar to current approach. Cost to implement is minor;

Deputy Director-General Governance has been administrative report for internal Audit for some
time and knows the function. HIA has support of the Governance Division and Deputy Director-
General - Governance.
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

Disadvantages

There may be additional administrative costs for the separate team e.g. accommodation, elements
of administration {which may or may not be cheaper if co-located with another areas e.g, Office of
Deputy Director-General);

Organisational isolation — a small team of two people;

Independent, standalone HIA in Office of Deputy Director-General ~ Gpveyhance repotting directly
to the Director-General on audit and risk matters with direct administfative reporting line to
Deputy Director-General, Governance:

The Model i
HtA rale is part of Office of Deputy Director-General ~ Governawce 'H A reports administratively to
the Deputy Director- General — Governance. HIA reports to Dlrecfo.-aeneral directly on audit and

risk matters. :

Advantages
Save cost of totally separate Internal Audit function / cost centre’e.g. accommodation,
administration costs e.g. separate corporate£ard,. May save costs of purely administrative tasks e.g.
purchasing, reporting, etc to allow greater-focus-onthe buwness on»lnternal Audit and Risk e.g.
secretariat function, risk management proicess and reporting etc; '

Similarities to current approach FairlyQuick/and efficient to |mpiement

Potential to share administrative resourees withir'Gffice of Deputy Director-General Governance
and save money;

Deputy Dlrector-GeneraI Goveérhance hac heen administrative report for Internal Audit for some

time and: knows the function HIA kias support of the Governance Division and Deputy Director-

General ‘:governance; .
Whilst reportlng directiy-to the.._Dlrector -General, this model has the advantage that the HIA is part
of the Governance Division ‘team _'-;._' A significant portion of the audit coverage occurs within this

= not a separate, distinct entity;

Division — HIA is seén asa partof,

Less likelihood/of orga n.sattonai lsoiatlon for HIA and administrative support,

Disadvantoges
Perception of reduced mdependence, objectivity {NB there is an administrative reporting line to
Deputy Director-General anly and it is the current model);

Increases direct size/budget of Office of the Deputy Director-General which may be unpalatable;
Accommodation may be a chalienge'ifthere is a requirement for HIA to be co-located within the
Office of the Deputy Director-General. This should not be necessary if it costs a significant amount
to make this happen. ‘

RTI Document No0.149




3.

4,

This document has been released under the RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2009 (Qld)

Department of Premier and Cabinet

Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced mode! - In-house Head of Internal Audit (HIA)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

Independent, standalone HIA reporting directly to the Director-General {part of the Office of the
Director-General) on audit and risk matters:

The Model
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Services reports directly to Director-General.ang iz a part'ofthe.

“Office 6f the Director-General, -

Advantages

HIA role is part of Office of Director-General ~ clearly reinforces indepeidence-and objectivity of
role;

Reduces reliance / overhead on Deputy Director-General Go_ve,r_'na'nce / Governange Division;
Stronger relationship between Director-General and HIA — bet{er-ahility for HIA to support objectives
and performance of DPC on behalf of Director-General;

Potential to share administrative resources within Office of Director~General;

May save costs of purely administrative tasks e.g. pufthasing, reporting, etc to allow greater focus
on the business on Internal Audit and Risk e.g. secrefafiat function/tisk management process and
reporting etc; '

Less isolated organisationally.

Disadvantages

Administratively, this may take some time to implement/e.g. accommodation, reporting lines etc;
Accommodation would be required for‘exteinal provider staff — this may not be appropriate on Level
15; /

Increases direct size/budget of Dffice of the Director-General which may be unpalatable;
Director-General has anothep/direct regort=this may not be desired;

Question of whether HIA is a direct report to Director-General on ali matters including
administrative matters e.g. leave applications, expenditure etc;

Accommaodation may te achallenge if there is a requirement for HiA to be co-located within the
Office of the Director-Generai> This should not be necessary if it costs a significant amount to make
this happen.

The HiA is the Ditector, Internal Audit, Risk Management, Planning and Reporting;

The Mode!
HIA is Director,Intarnal Audit, Risk Management, Planning and Reporting;
Direct reporting line to the Director-General on Internal Audit and Risk matters;
Direct repaorting line to Deputy Director-General Governance on ali other matters;
Administrative reporting line to Deputy Director-General Governance;
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Services is now also responsible for: '

& Corporate Planning;
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Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced model - In-house Head of Internal Audit (H1A)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

e Corporate Reporting;
e All other required functions of Corporate Planning and Reporting team,

Advuntages

The size and scope of this team may be more appropriate orgamsat;ona!ly to be'léd by a Director
over the smaller 2 person team;

There may be scope to save or combine some resources in the new Corporate Planning and
Reporting team (unsure at 9 July 2012);

Save cost of totally separate Internal Audit function / cost centre e.g. agcommodauon
administration costs e.g. separate corporate card;

Potential to share administrative resources across the whole team;

May save costs of purely administrative tasks e.g. purchasing,reparting, etc to allow greater focus
on the business on Internal Audit and Risk e.g. secretariat function, rjsk/management process and
reporting etc;

Whilst reporting directly to the Director-General on audit and’risk matters; this model has the
advantage that the HIA remains a part of the Goverdance Division /team’. A significant porticn of
the audit coverage occurs within this Division - HIA is sean‘as a pai't of it ~ not a separate, distinct
entity.

Disadvantages

A greater level of complexity in reporting/arrarigements/it can be done);

Perception of reduced independence, Ghiectivity ofinternal Audit role;

May dilute the focus on Internal Audit to-ather matters e.g. planning and reporting;

Directar of unit will need to be appropriately qudlified and experienced in Internal Audit, Risk
Management {as well as have capabijlityin reiation to ptanning and reporting};

Any audits or planning or reporting will need to be carefully managed to ensure independence and
objectivity; .

Accommodation may be achalienge re co-location of staff.

Preferred Model

There are advantages and disadvantages of all the above models and many of the advantages and
disadvantages are common to many or all models; '

if the dverridinggoatisto reduce cost, further detailed analysis will be required to compare the
costs of each model; '

If the desired outcome is an efficient and effect;ve model for delivery of Internal Audit and Risk
Services it is considered that. models:2:and: reasonableoptions. Model 1 provides no great
advantages over the other models and increases the risk of organisational Isolation for the HIA and
support staff. Models 2, 3 and 4 have similarities in that the HIA is part of a larger group with the
potential to access shared resources and reduce costs, The best model will need to he decided by
the Director-General and Deputy Director-General. Model 4 has the potential to compromise the
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Provision of Internal Audit and Risk Services

Option 3 - Co-sourced made! - In-hause Head of Internal Audit (HIA)
and Risk Services plus external provider resources

focus on internal audit matters, however, may enable some savings, and may be preferred
organisationally in terms of the size of the team to be led by a Director level role.

Model for provision of DPC Risk Management

It was stated above that the HIA would continue to have responsibility for risk ranagement -
methodology, facilitation and reporting.

fn the immediate period, under the existing model for Internal Audit and Rigk Setrvices,the HiA will
continue to support the current risk management approach without ahy risk nianagenvent resources
{current resource ison Iong term leave).

with the approval for an outsourcing arrangement it is proposed that the first réview to be
conducted by the outsourced provider is a review of DPC Risk Management approach with
recommendations for improvement to the process. This may identify/atterndtive {more efficient,
effective) ways of managing risk and may involve the periodic use of éxternal provider resources.

Impact on permanent staff within Internal Audit and Risk Services

There are currently 2.6 permanent staff within Internal Audit:
o |549-CTPl Iprincipal Project Officer (Risk)|549 =Gl |

o |%9°CTPU laudit Managéy{a0g) s+ - CTP! |
49 - CTPI
o [$49-CTPI Administration Gfficey(A03) — part-time.

All other staff in the unit are teriporary, staffwith' contracts ending at 26 October 2012 {2 staff) and
28 September 2012 {1 staff). |

Once a firm decision is made regarding the model going forward, action will need to be taken to
understand the impact on the positions of these staff, the staff members’ preferences for their
careers and the impact on the budget position of Internal Audit.

Options for secuyiriz:a Head oftnternal Audit:

The role is currently being filled by a secondee from the Department of Science, information
Technology, Inhiovation and the Arts.
There.is ion to maiptain this staff member in role fora period of time to enable stabilisation of

could be sought/ If no suitable ERP — advertise publicly;

Fill position through other allowable recruitment mechanisms e.g, transfer at level of staff from
another agency OR by direct appointment - on 11 April 2013, current staff member will have been in
the role for one year and has been through a merit based recruitment exercise — there may be scope
for direct appointment.
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Analysis of Service Delivery Models for internal Audit
Tracy Laurence-lohnson, A/Director Internal Audit and Risk Services

OVERVIEW

Definition of Internal Audit [institute of Internal Auditors (lIA})

According to the definition of Internal Auditing in the llA's international Professional Practices
Framework, internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and cohsuiténg activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation's operations. It helps an gyganisation accomplish
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and.improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.

Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC) Internal Audit and Risk Services

The DPC Internal Audit and Risk Services team Is responsible for

e Annual development of Strategic Internal Audit Plany’and Annual internal Audit Plans;

o Management and conduct of Internal Audits by iiternal/staff and external contractors
/resources as required — DPC / PSC/ OQPC.

e Contract management ~ over Internal Audit contracts with/external providers;

¢ Supporting QAQ in the review of annual financial statemenits as requested;

» Monitoring and reporting of outstanding internal Addit and QAOQ issues;

e Facilitating Risk Management activity and.,'replorting;

e Performing secretariat function far/the AQdit and Risk Management Committee;

e Annual reviews of Internal Audit, Risk Manag"er_n'ent and the Audit and Risk Management
Committee performance;

¢ Responding to whole of governmint matters in relation to internal audit, risk management and
governance;

e Responding to relevant correspondence on behalf of the Director-General and Premier as
reguired; -

e Audit Committée member -G_fgat Barrier Reef Marine Park Authority and advisor to Director-
General on refated financial niét:te_rs.

The team currently includes:a
experienceinciude:

‘Birector and.wo Internal Auditors, The team qualifications and

o AQBA~ 10 yrsinterpal and external audit experience in Australfa, Hong Kong and China /
governiwent and private / Masters in Commerce / CIA / CPA Hong Kong.

e AD7 - 10yrsexternal audit experience Australia and Singapore / government and private /
Chartered Accountant / BBus. :

e A/Director Internal Audit and Risk Services - 20 years internal / external / financial / risk
management experience government and private sector / CPA / Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) /
Certified information Systems Auditor {CISA) / Certified Government Audit Professional {CGAP) /
BBus.
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Analysis of Service Delivery Models for Internal Audit
Tracy Laurence-lohnson, A/Director Internal Audit and Risk Services

The Department of Premter and Cabinet

The Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC) is a unique entity. Whilst small in size, it is significant
in function. Asone of Queensland Government's key central agencies, the actions of the
Department influence the actions of all other agencies. In establishing new arrangements for
internal Audit, DPC needs to ensure the best outcome for the Department and Q}t{imately for
Queensland Government in supporting all Directors-General in meeting their’alcountability and
performance obligations in this time of overwhelming change.

Internal Audit arrangements should support DPC and ultimately, other agencies to:

o Meet Government commitments in this period where loss of controi may ocour, e.g. during
times of critical policy, service delivery, business system and staffing change;

e Ensure continuity of service delivery and avoid seryice defivery failure due to complexities in
cross agency matters (e.g. service agreements; policy responsihility vs-delivery responsibility),
poor procurement and operations, |nformat10n comn.unlcatmn and technology [ICT] systems
changes / consolidations; g

o  Ensure risks are identified and management (no‘ iudden)* o

o Ensure the efficient use of ex:stmg resources anc.reduge the potential for maladministration
through reduction in staff exercising key controls; /

o  Ensure that reliahle information is available t___ support d(:"ISIOI'] makmg (e.g. reduce risk that
agencies don’t have or can’t trust the infartnation ayaila :

o Mitigate the increased opportumnes rorfram~ and corruptlon {resulting from the anticipated
staff reductions, {T changes, machinery of government changes, changes to internal control
environments, increases in use of electronic medns for facilitating payments).

Australian National Audit Office:Public Secter inrernd!‘Audit Better Practice Guide {September 2007}

This Better Practice Guide té-tnterngl/Audit ohserves that, similar to the Queensland Government,
within the Australian Government.sector, internal audit Is performed in a range of entities that vary
considerahly in purpoge, size, structure;and complexity. As a result, there is a range of models used
to deliver internal gudit'services i.e. in-house, co-sourced, out-sourced and variations of each of
-these models,

The guide statés that each-model has its benefits and its risks. The most appropriate model will
depend oprihe entity’s particular needs that could well change over time as circumstances change. It
is important, therefore, to periodically consider which service delivery modet will best suit the
entity’s needs;

To:decide onthe-appropriate service'delivery modél the guiderecommends considering the:
“following: "

o -Ability to attract-and re'tafh'SS'[J'itarb!é"?st'a'f'_ﬁii':' ;
For a variety of reasons it may be difficult to attract and retain suitably skilled in-house audit
staff, As a consequence, co-sourcing or outsourcing the internal audit function to an external
service provider, who assumes some or all of the responsibility for recruiting and managing the
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required staff, may be an effective means of overcoming staff shortages. Alternatively, the
development and implementation of a comprehensive staffing strategy as part of the internal
audit strategic business plan may be successful in obtaining sufficient staff with the necessary
skills and experience.
o The skills and experience fequired '
Generally, in-house staff could be expected to have a greater knowledge of the entity’s business
objectives, systems, risks and cuiture. They can be seen as ‘part of the team’ and can be more
easily approached for informal and ad hoc advice. There are no issues over possible confiicts of
interest and there is more direct control over the quality of work undertaken. Corporate
knowledge may also he more readily retained by in-house staff and in-hodse internal audit units
are in a position to offer a good training ground for future senior managers.~On the other hand,
service providers may have access to leading practices and expertis€ from the-public’and private
sectors in Australia and overseas that may be helpful to the entity,
e sifosti I
The cost of in-house provision compared with the alterha'tiv'es fs a key considetation. It is
important when comparing costs to take into account the full costs of the different options
including the salaries of in-house staff plus overheads such'as trammg, leave, superannuation,
staff management, accommodation and facilities. In the case'of co-sourcing or outsourcing, the
costs of contract management as well as of the contract itself should also be taken into.account.
@ Flexibility ‘
Many internal audits require access to special techinical’audit skilis from that are either not
available or not cost-effective to maintain in-house, Thé ability’to respond quickly to new
requests for audits without disrupting.the planned programpe or the need to resource
workload peaks can also be important. Co-sourced or outsOurced arrangements may be able to
provide the required fiexibility in such cireurnstances,
e Viahility - '
For some small entities there may not he the critical mass to make an in-house internal audit
function viable and sustainahle. Sndall internal audit units may find it difficult to supply sufficient
staff with the full range of skills necessafy to undertake a comprehensive internal audit plan. In
this situation, there is a risk the audit pian will be determined more by the skills of the staff
available rather than the rigeds of the entity. Limited career progression and development
opportunities can also aét‘as a disincentive for the recruitment and retention of staff,

Queensland Audit Office Report; Reporb:No, 5 — 2012 - Results of Audits — Internal Control Systems

- raises concerns over effectiveness of internal control structures within departments

The report tabled 6n 28 June 2012 summarised findings in relation to the effectiveness of financial
controls, the efféctivenass of fraud controls and IT governance. Section 3.1 of the report Managing
fraud risk explained that-an'ongoing theme raised in QAO reports Parliament has been thé:tisk:of .

wfraud. The report reiterated the importance of an effective system of internal control as both a
preventative and/detective countermeasure to the incidence of fraud. The repoit further
emphésised that theinternal control structures within departments are heing increasingly
challenged-because of;

e regular transfers of functions and staff both within departments, and as part of machinery of
government changes—there have been four significant restructures in the past six years
increasing the risk that lines of responsibility, authority and accountability become blurred
thereby weakening the control environment
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e the loss of experienced and key staff through voluntary separation programs (VSPs)—during the
2012/13 financial year in excess of 4200 non front-line departmental staff have accepted a
voluntary separation package leading to a heightened risk of foss of corporate knowledge and
experience in the ‘back office’ where most internal financial control activities operate (NB Four
staff from DPC [nternal Audit took VSPs).

o the need to do more with less as required by budget savings—increasing the risk that resources
will be diverted from necessary internal control monitoring measures, such/as Internal Audit
(e.g. current DPC budget is insufficient to fund the establishment; the professional development
budget per professional internal auditor is $500 per person — not sufficiert to fund a day’s
training).

The new government should ensure that Internal Audit arrangements are not compromised in this
time of transition to greater accountahility and efficiency, economy and effectiveness across
Government,

Ernst & Young - Driving Value from Internal Audit =Disgussion Paper—June 2012

The Ernst and Young discussion paper “Driving Value from/nternal Audit” provides a sound overview
of altérnative models for the defivery of Infernal Audit;-however, i§ not completely accurate in its
diagram (page 6} in relation to the models currently applied-across the Queensland Government.
Most Government organisations in Queensland a[reac_liy use.a combination of internal staff and staff
provided by external organisations i.e. co-sburcing. A.g.e:icies use a combination of in-house
resources {or a designated Head of Intgrnal Audit (HIA)Y plus resources from chartered accounting
firms, specialist firms in IT and risk management‘and sbecialist contractors, among others.

Most organisations have determined the best it of 'rellso_urces based on the maturity, size, risk profile
and nature of the organisation,/The Ernst and Young model does not provide a revolutionary new
approach, As mentioned abeve; thé Department of Premier and Cabinet makes use of internal staff
and contract resources as required.

Advantages and Disa dvaritages’ df:a_lter'natEVé-’s'érvEcé..ede|ivéwgmode§5 for Internal Audit

Department of Premier and Cahinet (and ultimately, other agencies).

1. fullipsssurced model = no external resources - this model would be moving backwards from the
curiefit arrangements in place within the Department and is not recommended;

2. ~Cossourced:model with in-house Internal Audit resources and external provider resources;
3. ACo-sourced model with in-house HiAonlyand external provider resources;

4. #Qut-sourced model with ho internal audit resources internally — CFO to operate as designated‘
HIA with external provider resources;
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5. Qut-sourced model with no internal audit resources internally — Another agency HIA to operate
as designated HIA,

Tahle Cne below autlines the advantages and disadvantages of the aiternative models 2 — 5.

Risk Management

The risk management function also sits with the DPC Internal Audit and Risk Services tearn.
Prevaliling best practice is to maintain an in-house risk managemept function supplemgnted by
technical advice and education from external specialists if require
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Table One: Advantages and Disadvantages of Service Delivery Models for Internal Audit

Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Service Delivery Models e
: ureed model. =+ o Low cost— DPCinternal Audit has reduced in size and budget | ¢ Maintain fuli cost of internal resources and infrastructure.
ciInterRakREsalirces. significantly over last 10 years despite increasing cost of the ¢ Internal reSources - retaining appropriate skill sets /
public sector in Queensland. . experience 7/ qualificationsds current staff move on.
@ In-house HIA plusin- ® Internal DPC staff commitment to supporting Department
house Internal and Director-General achieve the stated objectives /
Auditors plus use of performance.
specialist external e Internal HIA with qualifications and expenence per financial
resources as reguired legislation. o
s HIA performs contract managehiiér'i'“c"role over external
¢ CURRENT DPC MODEL resources to ensure value for money prnwsaon of intemnal
audit.
e PREFERRED MODEL = HIA reviews reports from.internd] md extcmal iESOU'CF’b
FOR QLD prior to issue to senior management to ensure. quality control
GOVERNMENT and appropriateness of rP\.on‘menoavoh" - OF‘C context.

AGENCIES GENERALLY | o  Flexible blend of in-holise and external lewurces as reqmred
to suit the changing role and risk:prefile of the' department.

a Supp!eme-m skill and knowledge gapswith- external
resouirces. L

o  Audit documentation maintained on-site. -

e _in-house function remains independent and objective — ‘no
fear or favour’. i

o /Current function, infrastructure in place ©.g. audit software in
place.. No cost'to change.

s The in-house Internal Audit function is a key part of the
corporate cuiture and corporate governance of DPC. Internal
Audit is also responsible for the department’s risk
management framework.

e Astrong internal audit presence (a seat at every table} acts as
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Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Service Delivery Models '

a catalyst for a strong risk and compliance culture within the
agency. Internal Audit visibility is a control in itself.

¢ Internal relationships built and maintained between i
auditors and management and staff.

e External relationships built and maintained bet
auditors and other auditors across the secto
community and with the QAO.

¢ Greater continuity of Internal Audit staff {notne
every year) and those staff get to know the of .-
can better add value to achievi '

spots’}.
Immediate notification of managem

system with
then-quote

with the agency to the problems and reduce the
likelthood of adverse issues being raised by the QAO.

e Higher level of confidentiality over audit issues. Not
disclosed to non-essential external parties.
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Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Service Delivery Models

e Aninternal function can operate as a training ground for sta
~in many agencies former audit staff are operating in-sen
roles in Finance, Governance and other areas. Staff
management from other areas can work on audit p _
up skill and cross skill others. Capacity to swap.and-share
resources.

e Contracts with external providers can inclu
skills transfer of internal staff under agreéa

o Less risk of cross-selling in audit reports by
providers.

e No risk of conflict of interest in
an in-house Internal Audit functioh
undertaking work for other organiss
conflict of interest.
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isk Services
Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Senm:e De[wery Models ' _
del-24n- Advantages stated above PLUS o e Maintain cost of in-tiouse HIA,
e Acquiring appropriate skili sets / experience / qualifications
e Save on cost of in-house Internal Auditors. B for HIA role now and\in fature.

< Internal HIA plus ‘e Save on audit infrastructure costs e.g. audit software ($3000

external reseurces p.a.), accommodation, rent etc. Outsourced auditors will still -

° No in- house Staff need office space and access to network. _

RRED o Internal HIA with qualifications and experience per financial
legislation {full-time or part-time as requirad}.

e HIA performs contract management role over external
resources to ensure value for money provision of internal
audit.

e HIA continues to perform all other respansmlhﬂes of Internal
Audit and Risk Services i.e. risk management: ‘ .

e HIA reviews all reports prior to issie to senior ménﬁgement
to ensure guality control and {.opmpumeness nf
recommendations‘in BPZ context. :

= Flexible blend of in-house and external resources as required
to suit the changmg role dand risk-profile of thé’department

» The nghr skills:and resources can be sourced at the right time
in am.o.dance with objectives and risks.
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Lo D
Director intern

v Laurence-ichnson, &/

2] Audit and Risk Services

‘Alternative internal Audit
Semce Delivery Models

ADVANTAGES

DISADVANTAGES f RISKS

'd’model =

e {FO takes on role of
HIA

o This is essentially a full
auisourced model
given no internal
Audit expertise ar
capahility internally

e The advantages-of co-sourcing outlined IN 2 AND 3 above
PLUS

e Save on cost of HIA-and in-house Internal Auditors (Other
resources may need to be brought in to support CFQ in
performing all of the activities related to the'rdfe).

e Save on audit infrastructure costs e.g. software {$3000 p.a.),
accommodation, rent etc. Outsourced auditors will stifl néed
office space and access to network.

*Additional advantage of outsourcmg over co-snurced models
abave:

» Avoids independence and familiarity- threats of in= hmv
function.

= All of the potential disadvantages of outsourcing described
below PLUS:

e CFO may not have-the reguired qualifications to operate as
the HIA (CPA, CiA eic) under Queensland Financial
Legisiation, nor theknowledge and focus on strong internal
controls / risk management.

e \Lossofall internal audit expertise in DPC - No strong
internal audit presence (a seat at every table) —there is no
longer a catalyst for a strong risk and compliance culture
within the agency.

¢ Compromises independence and objectivity of internal
audit activity - CFO across those functions where fraud
most likely —potential for conflict of interest or resources
to be diverted to areas where the CFO is short of resources
instead of where risks are — audit resources may be
diverted to operational tasks.

s Potential for stronger focus on financial matters and less
focus on achievement of objectives; compliance;
information technalogy risks, efficiency and effectiveness.

e An officer in DPC will need to manage the contract with the
outsourced provider. Additional resource will be required
to support the CFO in this work — this may erode desired
savings.

o  Other work of Internal Audit and Risk Services still needs to
be undertaken. Again, resources required.

Risks of outsourcing generally:

o The department loses control of internal audit and loses
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Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Service Delivery Models '

internal focus on businéss and risk of the agenty.
e The organisation has to payextra for anything that is above
the agreed scope of seryices and the external provider may:
not have capacity to provide i
Lose responsiveness, of inteémal capacity. Cannot jurmp to
i.address a fraud withgut resources or provide advice when
required urgently:
o \Potd tialfor outsourced provider to focus on revenue
element-of service level agreement (finishing jobs quickly
and wntht_ﬂrf'.-budget) and lose focus on adding value and
improving governance. ,
Outsourced provider may cross-sell other services through
internal audit reports which starts to compromises
independence.
Over time, cutsourcing providers will command an ever
greater premium for their services, since many outsourcing
firms buy market share and then increase prices as
competition decreases. ‘
Outsourcing does not enable fearning and skills
development within the agency.
The potential exists for mixed allegiance, in that internal
employees have allegiance to the organisation, while the
outsourcer's employees are loyal to the outsourcing firm. In
other words, the cutsourcer does not have to [ive with the
results — DPC daoes.
Qutsourcing providers may utilise inexperienced personnel
to perform audits e.g. graduates inexperienced in internal
audit and in the agency’s business.
= Potential for provider to be less than honest — protecting
source of income
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Alernative Internal Audit
Service Delivery Models

ADVANTAGES

DISADVANTAGES / RISKS

If a confract in place’less pressure to perform and respond
in timely manner exg.\curréntly, there are chartered
accounting firms with tad much-work who cannot deliver to
existing clients {scurce’ HiAs- Clld Govt Departments)

Less hours on-the ground\compared to in-house.

Critical matters are’ndt identified and addressed e.g. Qld
Heaith fraud =a-ehartered accounting firm did work in Qld
Heaith to.examine related concerns prior to the significant
in€ident— this did not result in preventing the extreme fraud
friom occurring.

e Outsource full 1A
function to another
Qld Government
agency

The henefit is the financial saving of ha’ oflht cost of DPC
HEA. g N
All other costs will be replicated'ts soi*n'e dpgree
agency and be on-charged-to DPCe.g  if there ate’ wa person
years of work in DPC ~two staffjwill\need 1" be. pa:d for."IT"
systems will need t¢ 'be funded/ete, Thereare also.a number
of activities that will still need to-be undertaken in DPC and
which will require resources and dollars.

Similar disadvantages to outsourced model, but potentially
without the access to leading edge external resources.

Host agency Internal Audit Unit may not have required
resources, skill sets, qualifications to undertake the DPC
[nternai Audit coverage.

New Agency [nternal Audit Unit has no corporate
knowledge or relationships within DPC — learning curve.
DPC will need to arrange a service level agreement between
DPC and the provider and manage the contract on an
ongoing basis. This will pose an additional cost to DPC.

DPC will still need an independent ARMC and will still
require resources to support this committee,

DPC will still need to periorm risk management, ARMC
secretariat and other related tasks.

DPC priorities compete with priorities of the host agency of
the new [A team. ‘

DPC may cross-subsidise higher risk activity in the other
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Alternative Internal Audit ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES / RISKS
Service Delivery Models

agency.

¢ Historically governmant 2gesicies fail to adequately manage
service leyel agréements with gther government agencies
e.g. Shared Services (sourceOAO Reports over last 3
financialyears)-

7:DPC loses control of internal audit and loses internal focus
the-business ard risk profile of the agency.

udlity of andits are subject to internal management

s within the new 1A host agency regarding
aflucation‘and timing of resources. DPC may get junior,
inexperiehced staff but still pay for senior, experienced staff
under the SLA.

Resources focused on work of DPC may be compromised in
an effort to meet the needs of the host agency Director-
General.

Potential for host to focus on revenue element of service
leve) agreement (finishing johs quickly and within budget)
and lose focus on adding value and improving governance
in DPC.

Preferred Model for DPC

The advantages and disadvantages above hav
economical Internal Audit function for BPC, and ult)
public research and reports published by the Queen

n analysed o determine the preferred approach for the provision of an efficient, effective and
forother Queensland Government departments. The view has also been informed by current
Office and the Australian National Audit Office. '
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The preferred model for Queensland Governmient agencies generally is Optio
internal Auditors plus external provider resources.

A flexible co-sourced model - In-house Heéad of Internal Audit, in-house

The key advantages of this model is that it provides the ‘best of both worlds’ or the ‘best of breed’ — a stable internal functioin within the agency supporting
a culture of strong governance, risk management and internal control, supplemented, as required by access to {eading edge\skills from a range of external
providers. It is also a lower cost option overall, there is mare continuity in the internal resources relativeto the revolving/déor of external provider staff
and less risk that urgent work cannot be undertaken because the external prb\'ﬁ'c“i'érs are busy elsewhere.serviting other clients.

delis Op C

‘model _ tise Head of Internal At
Sroviding criticalServices ane: C | s no
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Queensland Government Air Wing
Beechcraft King Air 350 Full Flight Simulator Training Proposal and Business Case

1. Introduction

1.1. The Queensland Government Air Wing {GAW) operate two aircraft, a Hawker 850XP and a
King Air 350 for transport of senior Queensland Government personngland for support of a
number of other Government activities. The aircrafi are crewed by six full tfime pilots based
at the GAW/Police Air Wing facility at Brisbane Airport.

1.2. Each year GAW pilots are required by Aviation Legislation to c@mplete-a.number of training
and checking activities including:

Aircraft type Endorsement training,

Instrument Rating Issue or Renewal (one per year),

Base training and checking (2 per year),

Line checks (two per year during normat line/gperations)

oo oo

1.3. GAW’s training and checking requirements for’'the Kirig Airhave, up until now, been
completed in the actual aircraft operated by GAW./In July,/2012 CAE Australia Pty Ltd
commissioned a King Air 350 Full Flight Simulator {FFSYat the Melbourne Simulator facility
of Ansett Flight Training. This device has now obtained Civil Aviation Safety Authority
{CASA) approval for use by Australian King-Air aircraft operators for a range of training and
checking activities, including those required for GAW pilots. ‘

1.4. CAE Australia Pty Ltd (the Australian/a‘m of thie large Canadian based Simulator
manufacturer and simulator training‘provider} have presented GAW with a proposal and
draft contract to provide a FFS based training and checking service to GAW. A copy of the
CAE proposal and draft/contract/aill he included with this proposal.

* 1.5, This Proposai will outline the benefits of using a FFS for King Air specific training, including
safety and econemic benefits.

1.6. It must, howéver, be noted that there is no Hawker Jet type specific FFS in Australia. The
nearest such device is located at Dubai in the UAE and is also operated by CAE as Emirates
CAE Flight/Traimning.. A separate justification will be provided for the continuing need for
Hawkerlet type specific FFS training using an overseas FFS.

2. SafetyBenefits of Usiing a FFS

“If you think safety is expensive, try having an accident.”
{Sir Stelios Haji-loannou, Easyjet Airlines)

2.1. On22 March 2012 a Embi’aer EMB -120 Brasilla aircraft was conducting a training and

checking flight at Darwin, NT. The Brasilla is a 30 seat, twin turbo prop aircraft similar in
configuration and performance to the 10 seat King Air 350 aircraft operated by GAW,
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2.2. Shortly after lift-off on the first take off of the training flight, the check and training Captain
simulated the failure of one engine by retarding the Power Control Lever for the left engine.
The aircraft then entered a descending left hand turn and impacted the ground, killing both
occupants and destroying the aircraft. A copy of the Investigation summary is at Annex A, a
full copy of the report can be obtained at:
http://www.atsb.gov.au/publications/investigation reports/2010/aair/ao-2010-019.aspx

2.3. The operator of this aircraft had just entered into an agreement with a FFS provider to
complete required training and checking for this type of aircraft. The accident occurred on
the last planned training and checking activity using the actual aircraft/ All training and
checking, subsequent to the accident, involving the practice of abnofmal aridemergency
procedures is now completed using the type specific CASA approved FES,

2.4. GAW has a long history of safe training and checking using the actual aircraft, however
there has been a small number of minor incidents, such as blown tyres, that have occurred
during abnormal configuration landings. GAW Training and Checking pilots act in an
extremely conservative manner while conducting training and checiiiig-activities, this has
led to the excellent safety record maintained by GAW far such-activities.

2.5. Due to safety considerations, training in the actual aircraft 'miust limit the exposure of the
trainee. Many situations are beyond risk tolerance and during training these are discussed
in detail, but not experienced. '

2.6. Training in a FFS enables the full range of emergency-and abnormal situations to be
experienced, frozen and evaluated.

2.7. Attached at Annex B is a list of training sequeénces/situations that can and should be flown
during aircraft type endorsemepit/training. Thetable shows those sequences that can be
conducted safely in the aircraft against thosé that can be trained for, or practiced, in the
FFS. As can be seen the FFS offers.a vast ingrovement in risk/safety over training in the
aircraft.

2.8. The safety case for training using a FFS is undeniable. It is therefore strongly recommended
that no further training inabnarmal and emergency sttuation be conducted in the actual
GAW King Alr aircraft. All suchtraining should be now conducted in the type specific FFS
availabte in Melbourne.

2.9. CASA aremoving to mandate, by Regulation, the use of FFS where such devices are
availablé/in Australia. While use of a FFS is not yet a mandatory requirement for
operations such as-that conducted by GAW, it is increasingly industry best practice to use
such devices where they are locally available.

3. Economic Benefits of FFS Training
3.1. In the Financial Year (FY) 2011/2012 GAW conducted 12.9 hours of dedicated training in the
King Air. In addition 6.8 hours of training was conducted in the Hawker Jet. Using the

current cost recovery rate for each aircraft this gives an approximate cost for training in
each aircraft of:
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Aircraft Cost (GST Exclusive} | Remarks

Hawker Jet 523,569 This cost includes Instrument
Ratings conducted in the
Hawker Jet when the King Air is
unavailable on tasking.

King Air 523,018.69 _ King Air used for Instrument
Ratings as far as possible.
Figures provided by DPC
finance.

Total $45,584.69

3.2. CAE Australia have submitted a draft commercial agreement {Attached}providirg a range
of costs for use of the Melbourne based FFS. The cost per hodrfor “dry™ hire/of the FFS is
|s4e-CTPI Note that dry hire does
not include the provision of an FFS operator/instructor, requiredto opeiate the FFS. With
the small number of available GAW staff pilots (six in total, including the Chief Pilot) it is not
seen as feasible to train one of our own training and ¢hecking staff {GAW have two staff
approved by CASA for these activities in actual GAW aircraft)to operate the FFS. It is
therefore proposed to use CASA approved CAE provided RFY operators/instructors.

3.3. To meet the need for annual checks and tests for GAW pilots(six on staff), it is proposed to
send each pilot to the FFS twice a year, To gain tile’'maximum benefit to GAW from the FFS
training and checking process, including the compiletici of the Annual renewal of a CASA
Instrument Rating {see 1.2 .a above) itis proposed to $end a complete crew (two pilots) for
each FFS session, This process will also-minimise the disruption of GAW’s service delivery
due to the unavailability of pilots. In this regard.the option regarded as providing the most
operational and cost benefit is to use the “CAE Wet Session” provided for in the attached
Commercial Agreement {see also cost summary at Annex C). The gquoted CAE cost of this
option §s|S49 - CTPI |;ession. This includes the use of
the FFS and the provision of a CAE qualified operator /instructor delegated by CASA to
conduct and issue Instrument Ratings. The tctal cost from CAE per year for use of the FFS is

therefore|s49 - CTPI

3.4, Some additional'ensts will be required, in the form of air fares to and from Melbourne and
overnight accommodation for the crew should this be required to meet FFS availability
periods. l¥should be noted that the FFS is expected to functicn for 20 hours per day, with a
four hour period {usually early AM} made available for maintenance each day. Training
“slots” can therefore Geeur from the early morning to late at night. The current HRG gquotes
cost’of fully flexible air fares is $600 per person return Brisbane — Melbourne, Motel
accommodaticn-sampled in the vicinity of the CAE Facility is $110 per person, capital city
allowanicé cost is $173.

3.5. The draft ceimmercial agreement requires a commitment to a number of hours use of the
FFS. 1t is proposed that GAW enter into an agreement for use of 20 hours of FFS per year
{five sessions), The proposed programme would need six sessions per year (24 hours of FFS
use}. Committing to a minimum of 20 hours of FFS use will provide a buffer of four hours
should the FFS not be used.
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3.6. A detailed summary of expected costing is at Annex D; the total expected annual cost is not
more tha n As stated in the Safety benefits {(Para 4) this cost, vs. the cost of
training in the aircraft, should be balanced by the benefit of removing the high risk
requirement for training in the actual GAW King Air. Compared to the cost of actual King

Air training conducted in FY 2011/2012 the net cost would have been

4. Recommendations

4.1, Recommendation 1: GAW conducts all Emergency and Abnormal Training and Checking for
the King Air 350 in an Australian based FFS.

4.2, Recommendation 2: Following assessment by DPC Corporate LegalService /GAW Enter into

an agreement, as per the Draft Agreement attached, for a minimum of20G-houi'sof FFS use
in-the CAE Australia FFS located in Melbourne, VIC.

Prepared by:

John McGhie
Chief Pilot/Director
Government Air Wing

8 August 2012
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Annex A to:
FFS Training Proposal
Dated:

Investigation: AO-2010-019 - Loss of control - Embraer S.A. EMB-120ER Brasilia, V... Page | of 2

Anstrallan Government
R * Anstralian Tesesport Bafety Bures

Aviation safety investigations & reports

Investigallen tile

Loss of contro{ - Embraar 3.A. EMB-120ER Brasilia, VH-ANB, Darwiri Sirgort, Northany
Territory, 22 March 2010

Investigation NMumber:AQ-2010-012

Inve%ﬁaailon stﬁ!uszcompleted

Summary

On 22 March 2010, an AirNuith Embraar 5,A. EMB-120ER Brasilla alrerdlt (EMB-120), registfation VH-ANB, crashed moments after
takeofl {ram runway 28 at Darwin Airport, Northarn Territery, fatally injuring both plials. The fght was for (he puspose of rvalldating
lhe command Instrumant mtfng of the pilot undar check and was undarthe coampiand of a fraihing and checking caplain, who
octupied Lha copilot's seal, Tha lakealf included a simulaled engire filure,

Data from Lhe alreralt’s fight recorders was used to establish tha circuimstencys leading'to the accldant and shawed that the pilotin
commend (PIC) retarded the [stl power lever lo flight idle to simutate an enalng fallurg. That Inroducad s simultaneous fallure of the
left engine and propeller autofealhering system,

The Increased drag from the windmilling' propeller inzfeased the conlrol {orces required to mainfaln the slrcralt's flightpath. The plict
under check aifowad ha spead o decreasa and the aircralito bank foward the incparafive engine. Additionally, he Increased power
on the sight angine, and angaged the yaw dampeeln an akampita stabillse/the alrcraft's fight. Thoss acllons increased his workioad
and made centrol of the aircraft mora difficult. ThePIC did notvasidra powerto the lel engine to discontinua the manoeuvre. The
few seconds evattable befors the aireraft bscamd uncontrollabln were [nsufficlent to ellow ‘rouble shooting’ and deliberation befora
resalving the situation.

Shortly after iha eceldant, an EMB-120%imuialor ard Hs stafl weis rpprovad lo undedake the aparator's frafning requirements. In
raspensn, (he oparator lransitionad the majority of iy EMB-120 proficiancy checking, including asymmatric flight s9qusnces, to
yround-based lralnlng af that facllty.

Na crganisalanal or systemic fssues thal might adverssly affect tha future sefely of aviation operations wera Identifled. Howevez, tha
occLgrence pravides e imely reiminder of e risks assodated with In-filght asymmaetric iraining and Lha imparance of the work balng
certied cul by the Givil Aviatign Safety Aulhority 1o mendate the use of simulators for ron-narmal flying tealning and proficlenty
chacks In farger aircraft, in.addifion, this mportance of appropriale operalsr procadures, and pilot awareness of the potentigl hazards
ware reinforced as risk millgaiors wiiera he only option was In-lighl asymmaetric training and checking.

A compuler graphiss. arimati e Filght Data Re dafa was produced. The enimation covered a 2-minute period
commancing with the alicralt laxling onto the runway and conlinuing unfil the and of recording. .

Anlmatior: Byl Anlmation 1356 MBI

Pfeliminary

Protiminary roport folaassd 19 May 2070

022 March 2010, at 1009 Ceniral Standard Time, an Embraer - Empresa Braslleira de Aerongulica EMB-120ER Brasilia with two
ciew, prapared to take off on & training flight from runway 2@ at Darin Aerodroma, Narthem Tasritary. The éraw wers the anly
eteupanis: The iraining caplain advigad the aeredrome conlroller that tha deparfure wold incorporala asymmatrc filght {simutatad
englnefaiiure;end was approved by the conlroler to perform the manoeuvre.

Afier becorning altbame, wiinasses raported seelng the aircrafl roll and diverga Jefi from its leka-off path, They watshed as the
alreraf conlinued rolling lefl, and entered a steap nose-down atlituda, i disappeared Into trees, soulh of the runway threshcld from
whase @'calumn of black smoka was sean shorly eftarwards,

Aercdroma rescue and fire fighting services wars in slfendance vary shortly thereafier and extinguished the fire, Bath pitts were
fafally Injured and the aircrall was serously damaged due lo Impact forces and an intense poalimpact fire.

hitp:/’www.atsh.gov.aw/publications/investigation_reports/2010/aair/ac-2010-019.aspx ~ 23/7/2012
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Gonaral Details

Dater 2aMarzofo  GpesIEAOn  gomgietad

. _ Ocrurrenca
Tima; 1040 CS5T Invastigaiion Type: tnvestigatian
Logalion: Oamwin Aleporl Qecumance Typa: Teyrain Collision
Stata: NT Dccurenes Class: Operafional

. Occurronce .

Reloasa Dale: 2.3 Feb 2012 Category: Accident
Repori Stales:  Final ﬂﬁ:ff‘ tlury g

Alrcrafi Detalls

ﬂﬁmﬂur«: Embraer-Empresa, Braslielta De Aeronautica
Alreraft Modal: EMB-§20-ER

Alrcrafl

Ruglsiealion: VH-ANB

Barlat Number: 120-116

Qperator: +AirtNonth

Type of Qparation: Alr Transport Low Capecily

Damage to

Alreraft: Substantial

Departurs Folnt:  Darwln, NT
Destination: Darwin, NT

Lansf updinia 23 Fobruary 2012

http//www.atsb.gov.au/publications/investigation_reports/2010/aair/ac-2010-019.aspx  23/07/2012
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Annex B to:
FFS Training Proposal
Dated:
King Air Full Flight Simulator/Aircraft Training
Sequences Aug-12
Flight ErhergencylAbnormal or Aircraft FFS Remarks
Phase Training Sequence Training Training
Pre Flight N\
Start Hot Start No Yes
Hung Start No Yes
After Start Electrical faults No Yes
Run Up Governor Fault No Yes
Run Up Prop Solenoid Fault No Yes
Run Up Rudder Boost Fault No 'Yes
Run Up Auto Fx Fault No { Yes
I
Taxi Brake Fail No/, Yes
Evacuation Yes Yes
N Yes,' Blown tyres
Take-off | Engine Fail <V1 - Abort/ Limited Yes highly probable
Flight Manual
Yes, limits exist for
Engine Fail >V1 ~Contintie Limited Yes aircraft practice.
Yes, High risk in
Engine Fail >¥1 No Auto FX Limited Yes aircraft
Engine Fire >V1- Continue No Yes
Obstacle Avoidance No Yes
FFS enables
setting of "real"
low visibility
Low Viz. Take-off No Yes conditions.
FFS enables
setting of "real"
Low Viz Vake-off - Engine Fail low visibility
2N No Yes conditions.
FFS enables
setting of "real"
| low visibility
Low Viz Take-off - divert No Yes conditions.
Wind Shear encounter No Yes
Climb Generator Fail No Yes
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Double Generator Fail No Yes
Yes,
PFD Fail limited - | Yes
Yes,
MFD Fail limited Yes
Audio System Fail No Yes
FUEL PRES LO No Yes
Electrical System Smoke or Fire | No Yes
Environmental System Smoke
or Fire No Yes /
. RisK of engine
Engine Re Start - Air Start no damage in
Cruise starter assist Yes limited | Yes aircraft.
BLEED FAIL No |\Yes
Pressurisation - emergency High risk in
descent Yes,linmited | Yes aircraft.
Double Engine Fail - Glide No A X es
Trim Runaway No | Yes
TCAS avoidance - INe [/ Yes
NO FUEL XFR No Yes
L DC GEN Ne S Yes
GEN TIE OPEN No Yes
BAT TIE OPEN ~_ | No Yes
ENG ICE FAIL Ng Yes
| FFS enables
Approach _ setting of real
and Yes, low visibility
Landing LS - Cat 1 Miriima - Land limited Yes conditions.
FFS enables
setting of real
ILS - Cat 1 Minima - Engine Fail | Yes, low visibility
-missed limited Yes conditions. .
FFS enables
setting of real
NDB/GNSS - Low Viz Circle to | Yes, low visibility
fand limited Yes conditions,
FFS enables
setting of real
Yes, | low visibility
NDB/GNSS - Missed limited Yes conditions.
Manual Gear Exension Yes Yes
Blown tyres
Flapless Landing Yes Yes highly probable
FFS enables
runway blocked
Normal Landing - Go round Yes Yes situations.
8
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Yes,
ESIS ILS - Land limited Yes
EGPWS Alert/\Warning No Yes
QOther Wind Shear encounter No Yes
' PROP GND SOL fault No Yes
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Annex Cto:
FFS Training Proposal
Dated:

Summary of CAE Cost Proposal

Course Description Unit
Dry rate Hr 549 - CTPI
Instructor Hr
Wet Session 4hrs FFS angd’5.5hrs IP

Standard Recurrent

Extended Recurrent

Standard Initial Endorsement | Per Crew {2 Students)

Extended Initial Endorsement Per Crew (2 Students)

10S Panel Opéerator

Per Crew {2.Students)

Per Crew (2 Stadents)

Max 2 Instructor Students

Classroom Hire

Hr
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Annex D to:
FFS Training Proposal
Dated:
FFS Cost Analysis Aug-12 -
Number Element
Serial | Element Cost Required | Frequency | Total Remarks
i . $
4 | A fares Brisbane - Melbourne 300.00 6 2| $2560000 |
Taxi fares/car parking (GAW - 3
2 | terminal) 30.00 6 -2 $ 36000
. . 9 :
3 Taxi Fares {Airport - Hotel) 30.00 3 21 $ 180.00
. 3
4 | Accommodation 173.00 > % 21$ 2,076.00
: $
5 Taxi fares (Hotel FFS) 30.00 3 2| $180.00
$
g | Allowances/meals 114.00 6 2| $1,368.00
. . . e ‘%
7 FFS Training session : 3 5 i
. . 5 3| E
8 Taxi Fares (FFS - Airport) | 30.00 3 2| $180.00
. , _ s
9 Air Fares Melbourite -~ Brisbane 300.00 6 2| $ 3.600.00
S
10 | Taxi fares Airport< GAW 30.00 6 2| $ 360.00
Total cost of FFS S
Current Training method $23,018.69
Net Cost to GAW of FFs option o
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Pages 178 through 423 redacted for the following reasons:

Contrary to Public Interest

Sch 3(2) - Cabinet Information brought into existence on or after commencement
Sch 3(7) - Information subject to Legal Professional Privilege





